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ABOUT CIFI

Headquartered in Shanghai, CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“CIFI” or the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is principally
engaged in the property development and property investment business in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”).

We principally focus on developing high quality and end-users driven properties
in first-, second- and third-tier cities in China. Our development projects cover
various properties types like residential, office and commercial complexes.
Leveraging our effective business model and strong execution capabilities, we
are poised to continue our rapid growth and develop into a leading nationwide

property developer.

We have achieved a nationwide operating coverage and a strong presence in
major first-, second- and third-tier cities in China. As at 31 December 2018,
we had property projects in 44 cities in 4 regions: the Yangtze River Delta, the
Pan Bohai Rim, the Central Western Region and the South China Region. As
at 31 December 2018, we had a land bank with total and attributable GFA of

approximately 41.2 million sq.m. and 20.7 million sq.m. respectively.

Looking forward, driven by our missions of “creating value for our customers” and
“building for a better life”, CIFI strives to become a leading and well-respected

real estate enterprise in China.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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www.cifi.com.cn
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P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mzr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Dongbiao

Mr. YANG Xin

Non-Executive Director

Mr. WANG Wei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman)
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Zhong

Mr. TAN Wee Seng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mzr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. LIN Zhong
Mr. LIN Feng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mzr. LO Tai On

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.cifi.com.cn

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

CIFI Center

Lane 1088, No. 39 Shenhong Road
Minhang District

Shanghai
PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 2002-2003, 20th Floor
One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd
Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd.

China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd.

China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LISTING INFORMATION
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(Stock Code: 00884)

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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CIFI's Nationwide Coverage in China
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@ = —&H ™ Second-tier cities
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CIFI's Representative Projects in China

B=AMA Yangtze River Delta

[T N,
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LHLOMBH Shanghai LOM Project Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center

IR E T LT Shanghai Huangpu District Madang Road Project

MM BER S Changzhou CIFT Pack Mansion SEB U PERART Wuxi CIFI Cang Long Mansion FBUBEERMRAT Yixing Henderson CIFI Mansion

6 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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B=AMA Yangtze River Delta
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B AR L34 BERY Hangzhou CIFI Binjiang East Mansion
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ﬁ”mﬁmﬁw}langzhml CIFI Ronchamp County B LRI E A Hangzhou CIFI Hechang Metropolis Mansion B S5 AL Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glotious City

SO BT IR Ningbo CIFI Jiangshan Mansion LUART Ningbo Prosperous Reflection
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2 AR BERIE Wenzhou Country Garden CIFI Lake Mansion M AR BG 2 Wenzhou CIFI Future City R L Nanjing CIFI Park Mansion Yuan
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B=AMA Yangtze River Delta

LRy L EiE 3 Nanjing CIFI Park Mansion Qinhuai

AR Hefei CIFI Jiuzhu Mansion

A MABBAL L B Hefei CIFT Jade Seal

RHMBRBLREE Tianjin CIFI Tianyuel
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AMMMA LK T Hefei CIFI Lake Mansion

K UM %EBE Tianjin CIFI No.6 Courtyard

i 5 B B K Shenyang CIFI Bochen Mansion

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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1R)%17%8 Pan Bohai Rim

W BUMIERRS Shenyang CIFT Luxury Mansion BN BERB R Jinan CIFI Pack Mansion Fengxi T RSV R B Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Zhengyang Mansion

B AUBRALBE Qingdao CIFI Xingyue City WA Zibo CIFI Xingyue City Hbi MR BUR 2 Weifang CIFI Bo Guan

A 7530 Central Western

A

Y ¥

Htath

JEAWBHEAPRR Chengdu CIFI Jinke Tang Mansion WA B AT Chengdu Huayu CIFI Glorious Flower City AU ALY E Wuhan Yulong CIFI Peninsula

WM HEIESR K Zbengzhou CIFI Grand Mansion TR AAHIBEME Chongqing CIFI Prime Orient

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER 9
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AR 748 Central Western

HRRBTIL #E Chongqing CIFI Waves River

il LT - |

r <

| I"F R
2ETE

R BNl R Changsha CIFI Hushan Mansion

.
| 1

Sze Shan Street Project

10

#£ 75 South China Region

s

R BHS Chongging CIFI Glory Land

TR ARRALA Chongqing CIFI Jiangzhou Impression

RWMMRRAT Changsha CIFI Nanchen Mansion

FiHRA%H Hong Kong Chung Hom Kok Project

M A BB Quanzhou Shishi CIFI City

7S B 1L B Nanning CIFI Landscape

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

B¥EPE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
i
AEM (RN
Mt b CFiok)  BHEE
Interest Rentable GFA iR
%H JEH skt HHMRR attributable ~(excluding carpark)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status to the group (sqm.) use of the project
L B LR BT B 20685 /AW G i 100% 5400 ¥
Shanghai CIFI Haishang International No. 2068 Kongjang Road, Completed and Commercial
Yangpu District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
LiLeMEERAES L R 2229 ERTRRRHH 50% BT Tk
Shanghai LCM No.2229, Zhangyang Road, Pudong Completed and Commercial
New District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
LR SR AT E HiETRTES R AR O BRt ZF-NERT 50% 51805 ¥
Shanghai Minhang District Xinzhuang ~ Xiuwen road Yuanxiu Road intersection, Expected Completion in Commercial
Town Min Hang New Town Project Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC 2019
LEERERSHEDs-¢EH HETE RS ER R R ONE BRt - JUERT 50% 541 TiE
Shanghai Putuo District Changshou The junction of Changde Road and Changshou  Expected completion in Commercial
Community D5-6 Project Road, Putuo District, Shanghai, PRC 2019
L RBER T L RERATER 1720575 S AW G i 100% m o
Shanghai MeiLiHua Villa No.7 of Lane 1720 of Honggiao Road, Completed and Residential
Changning District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
I RN LR B b5 ERTRRR 100% 102 A
Shanghai Gaohe Building No.2 Huashan Road, Jingan District, Completed and Office
Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
FRLERS TR LR B o665 ERT M 100% 8600 ¥
Jiaxing CIFI Square No.066, Zhongshan East Road, Completed and Commercial
Nanhu District, Jiangxing, PRC commenced leasing
BRI ERCHRREN 5 DATRRG L 100% D460 T
REEES
Chongging CIFI City Next to the Xuetangwan station Completed and Commercial
of Metro Line 3 in Longzhou bay, commenced leasing
Banan District, Chongging, PRC
R R RES WE AR IR RSB 225 CRLRRR 100% 4967 ¥
Changsha CIFI International Plaza No.222, East Laodong Road, Yuhua District, Completed and Commercial
Changsha, PRC commenced leasing
Sy e e J T 2 e R G 209 CRLERRLH 100% 4900 A
Beijing CIFI Wangxin No.209 Lize Xiyuan, Wangjing Area, Completed and Office
Commercial Centre Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC commenced leasing
LGy Siz N P A S 6% S/ AW G i 100% 1816 HHAH
Xiamen Yongsheng Hailian Centre No.456 Xianyue Road, Siming District, Completed and Office
Xiamen, PRC commenced leasing

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

BV ) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Conined)
T
AEM (RUERER)
Mt i (CFik)  BHEE
Interest Rentable GFA  HlE%&
%H VR RN BHMRR attributable ~(excluding carpark)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status to the group (sqm.) use of the project
LR o L ML S TR M 17938 ERTHERAR G 45% 29665 LK
Shanghai CIFI Pure Center No.178 Puhui Road, Jiuting Town, Completed and Office
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing
Ll o AT AL PR B 993 Hirta09FR T 349 n5f %
Shanghai Jiuting Center No.199 Huting North Road, Jiuting Town, Expected completion in Commercial
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC 2019

LiFEHESERAR S S M B Hita020FR L 50% IRISU N
Shanghai Huangpu District Madang Block 45, Huaihai Middle Road, Expected completion in Office

Road Project Huangpu District, Shanghai, PRC 2020
LR R S A B R i 138 Hih20204% T 50% 143829 WAR
Shanghai Yangpu District Dinghai No.138 Jiefang of Dinghai Road, Expected completion in Office

Community Project Yangpu District, Shanghai, PRC 2020
L LERER o AL AR AR A 110083 CRTHERR AL 2% 0981 HE

FREXEM B0 #URE
Shanghai Baoshan District Luodian No.11008 Jiefang, Luodian Town, Completed and Commercial

Town Meiluo Jiayuan Community Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC commenced leasing

No.01 Project

12

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

EEIE/ES DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
R
b L
Bk i
(Fufpriify)
(Fiik)
Total GFA under
development and
EH AEH  held for future
RTAN A RERR development ~ FHFE
Expected Interest (excluding ik
BiH Wi H bt BHMRH Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sq:m) useof the project
AR T 2R E RN NN ) S 2020 15.2% a0 fE
i
Hefei CIFI Xizi Grace City The north-east corner of the intersection of Under Residential
Wangjiang West Road and Hou Dian Road, Development
High-tech District, Hefei, Anhui, PRC
G EiN FRARETERR IR ERERCON R 2020 200% w1600 i
(i
Hefei CIFT Wonderful Mansion The northwestern corner of the intersection of Under Residential
Wangjiang West Road and Hou Dian Road, Development
High-tech District, Hefei, Anhui, PRC
ARG 1907 FRASETENSELRRERR AT FEh 2020 17.0% w00 fE
Fitfa
Hefei CIFI Metro Politan Crossroad of Sichuan Road and Guiyang Road Under Residential
(northwestcorner), Binhu New District, Hefei, Development
Anhui, PRC
BREEATET FRE AR BRI A Zrph i 2020 5% 25900 HERFE
Hefei CIFI Lake Mansion Crosstoad of Zhujianglu Road and Yunnan Road, Under Residential and
Binhu New District, Hefei, Anhui, PRC Development commercial
AL FHE AN BIEHE RS A% 2020 30.0% 00
Hefei CIFI Glory Land Crossroad of Science Island Road and Lake Road, Under Residential
Shushan District, Hefe, Anhui, PRC Development
AEBRILILED FRARLENTE CEREETRLORY R 2020 254% w0 EEREE
Hefei CIFI Jade Seal Crosstoad of Shanghai Road and Ziyun Road (East ~ Under Residential and
Side), Binhu New District, Hefei, Anhui, PRC Development commercial
MR R RIREREREREME  REMEH Rl 2019 100.0% 0536 T
o mENCHR WEERN t2mY
Kik
Hangzhou CIFI Powerlong East to county lane of Xiaosibu Village, South Under Residential
East Lake City to Bei'er Road, West to Qingliu North Road, Development

NEHERE I (SR ) A7 PR W

North to Nansha Dam, Yipeng Sub-district,
Daijiangdong Industrial Collected District, PRC

| —F— R

13
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

IS a0) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Cominued)
LELY 3
HHERRINE
EFETT
(Asffah)
(Fik)
Total GFA under
development and
T H Hit KEH  held for future
RTAM HEfhtede development  FHFE
Expected Interest (excluding — HLMH%E
HH iR it BHRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  wseof the project
AR R MR E R SRR L GEG 209 100.0% 000
Hangzhou CIFI Crosstoad of Wanma Road and Fuxing Street, Under Residential
Dongyuan Majectic Mansion Ling'an, Hangzhou, PRC Development
BB B 7 AU A FOMBR% B 7 1 MR KRB RBD  de 2020 50.0% B0 EEREE
Hangzhou Lin ‘an District, Qingshan Crossroad of Keji Road and Dayuan Road, Lingan ~ Under Residential and
Lake Sci-tech City Light Rail Project Qingshan Lake Science and Technology City, Development commecial
Hangzhou, PRC
SR BB SRR HMBLRETER RS ELgy 2020-2021 100.0% w0 fE
Hangzhou Xiaoshan District, Shushan Unit,  Zengjiaqiao Parcel, South of Shushan, Hangzhou, Under Residential
Zengjiagiao Project PRC Development
BMRLAHNE CREIER)  RIGREREARHERER g 2019-2020 3L1% uss0
Suzhou Kunshan Lakeside Mansion (Bacheng ~ Crossroad of Hubin Road and Xueyuan Road, Under Residential
County No.12-8 Project) Kunshan, PRC Development
EH AR R CELIR T BN FRBL DR GEa) 30% o6 fE
A~ BESEBDIR - GRBRLLE  KRILLIT
il
Ningbo CIFI Shanghuchengzhang East to the Green-belt of Xijia River, South tothe  Completed Completed Residential
Green-belt of Beitang Road, West to Mingxing
Road, North to JiansheNo.1Road, Ningbo, PRC
SRR ARMFERS RO 00k g 20192020 50.0% a0 fE
Ningbo CIFI Landscape Poetry 100 Meters East of Yuyao Shinan Road and Under Residential
Zhongshan Middle Road Intersection Development
HRIEEGs6HHA THABAT R EREERAEDR . R 2020 190% BLs0  fEE
ZOUTHLLL - %2 =HUIE
Nanjing Jiangning District, G36 Project South of Suyuan Avenue, North of Yuntai Shanhe  Under Residential
Road and south of Zijin Three Road, Moling Development
Town, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu, PRC
EHHARRNY IH AR 20% ELay 20182021 50.0% ase6s  LERAE
Wuxi Yixing Grand Lakeview No. 520, Xiandong Road, Yixing, Jiangsu, PRC Under Residential and
Development commercial
14 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

PPk a0 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Cominued)
LECYE
SRR
EHETT
(AR
(F1ok)
Total GFA under
development and
SH Gt ASH held for furure
N [dl1 1 development  FHE
Expected Interest (excluding — HIMRE
HH iR it KRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  useof the project
SO IHERGTEIEREHERF TR R 2019 60.0% 0
ARALT
Waxi CIFI Times West of Kowloon Bus Station, Sheng An West Road ~ Under Residential
South, Qiangiao Street, Huishan District, Wuxi, Development
Jiangsu, PRC
SIS (LRTRE) IR 3 0 TONSE S T GG 019 TL8% w00 fEE
Wuxi CIFI Mansion (Jiangyin City Project) ~ Crossroad of Renmin East Road and East Outer Ring ~ Under Residential
Road, Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC Development
WHEHTERR BT RECHAPE BNWRBEII NEARARINER R 2020 0% w900 fEE
H)
Wenzhou Oujiang River Estuary Area, Crosstoad of Oushi Road and Neihong Road at Under Residential
C-03AE Project Oujiang Estuary, Dongtou District, Wenzhou, Development
PRC
MELT BRI GO AECoARE) BNRFBENINEARARINCER R 2021 3L0% g fEE
Wenzhou Oujiang River Estuary Area, Crossroad of Oushi Road and Neihong Road at Under Residential
C-05A Project Oujiang Estuary, Dongtou District, Wenzhou, Development
PRC
RRIBRLIEN L ERERETARIE LR S B 2019 100.0% 4600 fHE
Jiaxing CIFI Star City Near Dajincheng, ShanXi Road, Jiashan County, Under Residential
Jiangxing, Zhejiang, PRC Development
TSR (LR TEER) MR TILARA R GESH 2020 40.0% myn
Wuhu New Joy Mansion (Yijiang District, ~ Crosstoad of Dagongshan Road and Cangjin Road, ~ Under Residential
Yuanmutang Project) Wuhu, PRC Development
pRed PRI TR EERI06EE g 2019 25.0% mes
Tianjin CIFI Tianyuefenghua 106 provincial road, Jinnan district, Tianjin, PRC ~ Under Residential
Development
PR AN 1 K RERREE GEA B4 200% 935 HE
Tianjin Haishang International Rongda street, Dongli district, TianJin, PRC Completed Completed Residential
IR (R EASHS9RR)  REHILERLS05 g 2020 100.0% mew
Shenyang Central Palace (Shenhe District, No.39 Tuanjie Road, Shenhe District, Shenyang, Under Residential
Tuanjie Road No. 59 Project) PRC Development

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

IS a0) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Coninued)
B4
HE AR
EF S
(AfEfah)
(Frk)
Total GFA under
development and
Bt AEH held for furure
RTAN WA RERR development ~ FHFE
Expected Interest (excluding ~ H#MFE
KH B BHRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm) wseof the project
FRURRERLRN TR 7 B S S ELgd 200 50.0% w0 fE
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Zhengyang Jingcheng Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao, Under Residential
Mansion Shandong, PRC Development
HEBM KR ISR 3 TR A A ELgy 201 37.5% w00 fERHE
Qingdao Jiaozhou City, Taihu Road Project ~ Taihu Road, Jiaozhou, Qingdao, Shandong, PRC Under Residential and
Development commercial
FHERESEEER 5 e g w1 B.5% msen  fEE
Jinan Licheng District, Hancanghe Project ~ Hancanghe Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong, ~ Under Residential
PRC Development
BB EA AR BENREELTHDL RN KGR 2021202 2021-2022 100.0% 800 (FERE
Yantai Development Zone, A2 & A10 Project ~ Yantai Development Zone, Notth of Beijing Middle Residential and
Road and Intersection of Suzhou Street, Yantai, commercial
PRC
R TR UREETRLERRRANGEREE R b)) 25.5% dos00  ERFE
Linyi Xinghe City Intersection of Yimeng Road and Xian Road, Under Residential and
Lanshan District, Linyi, Shandong, PRC Development commercial
BT AR BT B R T RSB g 2020 700% nL0 g
i
Linyi CIFI Yinshengtai Boguansincheng West  Southwest Corner of the Intersection of Yimeng Under Residential
North Road and Xr'an Road, Beicheng New Development
District, Linyi, PRC
BRI BRI BB R B EAT GEa) 3.3% M8 ERRE
Chongging CIFI Prime Orienting Nan Bin Road Incernational circus side, Completed Completed Residential and
Nan An District, Chongging, PRC commercial
EFEEIA EETif b s6% ELay b 50.0% mBen
Chongging CIFI Jiangzhou Impression No.186 Shiyang Road, Chongging, PRC Under Residential
Development
ERIATIRE ERCHEHENE GG 01 B3% 750900 %
Chongging CIFT Waves River The south of Nanbin Road, Banan District, Under Residential
Chongging, PRC Development

16 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

IS a0) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Cominued)
LELY 3
Bl ARG
EFET
(Ffffah)
(Fiik)
Total GFA under
development and
R AEM  held for furure
BLHM Mt development ~ HHFE
Expected Interest (excluding ~ BHMR
¥%H JH HHRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  wseof the project
RN LEETREEA RN ERERRHE g B 30.0% 6oL fEERHE
Chongging Yubei District, Lijia Incernational Business District, Yubei District, ~ Under Residential and
Huayu Lijia Project Chongging, PRC Development commecial
ERILUEHE EREAR0NAR) EETERENERERLE g 20202021 100.0% W50
Chongging Verdant Landscape (Banan District, Longzhou Bay, Banan, At the Foot of Nanyunzhuang ~ Under Residential
Yu Dong No. 18032 Project) Mouncain, Chongging, PRC Development
BRI CHE LT s UER) BEHARIRARAE Bl 2020 35.0% B fE
Chongging Cloud Poem (Banan District, Yudong New Town Mingchen Avenue, Chongging, ~ Under Residential
Yudong Xiaonanhai 18051 Project) PRC Development
1 il ERTRLRER GEG 20192021 B.3% B0 EERHE
Chongging CIFI Panorama Lixian Road, North Chongging, PRC Under Residential and
Development commecial
EERRRAILINE BN LR A LTS EAT BAL 30.0% 01206 FEREE
Chongging Dongyuan CIFI Jiangshan Yue ~ Next to Jiuguhe station of Metro Line 6, Yubei Completed Completed Residential and
District, Chongging, PRC commecial
REEREERNADE WLEREMERESKRILIE AR W 20192021 55.0% o0 FERHE
Wuhan Hanyang District, Hangiao Village  Incersection of Moshui Lake North Road and Bailing ~ Under Residential and
Project Section B Road, Hanyang District, Wuhan, Hubei, PRC Development commercial
BB EHK 1208 PHERETREER I RER W 01 55.0% 84800 (EEREE
Rl
Wuhan Hongshan District, Qingling Village  Intersection of Wujindi Road and Jianqun 2nd Under Residential and
K1-24 Project Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan, Hubei, PRC Development commercial
REIEFEHKAR BLERETREE AR ARAHLER W 201 510% 658800 fHE
Wuhan Hongshan District, Qingling Village,  Intersection of Nanjiao Road and Lishui Road, Under Residential
K3 Project Wauchang District, Wuhan, Hubei, PRC Development
RIEMBILE N (LERAOHEH) RIEMRY Ll g 2020 50.0% B840 fEE
Wuhan CIFI Jiangxia Palace (Jiangxia District, - Zhifang beihua Strect, Wuhan, PRC Under Residential
Qixin Village Project) Development

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER
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Major Property Projects

TR M JH H R A R

Schedule of Principal Property Projects

PP a0 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Comined)
LELY 3
Sl A BB
St
(Fudbprify)
(k)
Total GFA under
development and
BR B AEW  held for future
BLHM Mt development ~ HHFE
Expected Interest (excluding ~ BHMR
¥%H JH HHRR Completion attributable carparks)  Primary intended
Project Location Project status Date to the group (sqm)  wseof the project
RUEAF M MR RUTRPREDEEES 15 e 20182019 300% 8022 FEREE
Changsha Henderson Arch of Triumph No.31, Tangpo Road, Xingsha Street, Changsha Under Residential and
County, Changsha, Hunan, PRC Development commecial
RO Wag RUmRRRREY GESH 20182019 50.0% 80356 fE
Changsha Henderson CIFI Hushan Mansion ~ Xinglian Road, Kaifu District, Changsha, Hunan, ~ Under Residential
PRC Development
BRI (BAERERL HER) REEREEREE NI g 2020-20%3 80.0% W i
Xi'an Landscape (Xixian New Area, Qinhan ~ Norcheast Corner of Intersection of Lanchi Avenue  Under Residential
Lanchi 2nd Avenue Project) and Qingongsi Road, Xi'an, PRC Development
HABHE B SR H DU A S R A B GESH 2020 30.0% 0300 FERFE
Chengdu Chenghua District, Longtan Temple West Road, Chenghua district, Under Residential and
Beichengzhongyang Project Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC Development commercial
bl AL BRI KESRBREHII T R 2019-2020 100.0% 8579 EERFER
Foshan CIFI Homeland Songhe Road and Lucun Road north of the Under Residential and
intersection, Sanshui District, Foshan, Development commercial
Guangdong, PRC
il RREBIT=KENEEENS XY CRT ERL 100.0% uiyn FEREE
PN Kl
Foshan CIFI City No.30, Nanfeng Road, Kejigongyeyuan, Xinnan Completed Completed Residential and
Street Sanshui District, Foshan, Guangdong, PRC commercial
WISEAR (BEELER0sER)  WBUTEERLEAGNOAE-HEN - 2020 60.0% W0 fE
i i
Foshan Shunde District, Beijiao Ma Village, Beijiao Town, Shunde District, South of ~ Under Residential
No. 00 Project Le Road and West of Longitudinal Road, Foshan, Development
PRC
B BRI R GG YN DY 53 3% ik i 01 34.0% W fE
Foshan Gaoming District, West of Hef Avenue, Xijiang New Town, northof ~ Under Residential
Xijiang New Town Project Lijing East Road, Foshan, PRC Development
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Performance Highlights

AR
ZE NI | FE L Year-on-Year
2018 2017 Growth
£ W 8 Contracted sales
AREESHARE ) Contracted sales (RMB'billion) 152.0 104.0 46.2%
R S SRR CF oK) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 9,569,400 6,291,713 52.1%
AR E Y EE Contracted ASP (RMB/sq.m.)
(NRWT/FIrk) 15,900 16,530 -3.8%
FEMHER AR EEL) Selected financial information (RMB’million)
ERERRIA Recognized revenue 42,368 31,824 33.1%
eVl Gross profit 10,613 8,621 23.1%
I SRR i FE AL 47 70 1L Profit for the year attributable to equity owners 5,409 4,828 18.5%
JE RORE 45 JREAG AZ L 30 1) 1 Core net profit attributable to equity owners 5,536 4,082 35.6%
FEEEAEREE(ARETHEIL)  Selected balance sheet data (RMB’million)
4 Total assets 241,061 151,758 58.8%
SRATEE R B4 Bank balances and cash 44,618 29,787 49.8%
fiBs A Total indebtedness 77,865 47,239 64.8%
A £ M Total equity 49,446 34,270 44.3%
e UM #5 AL AN R 45 Equity attributable to equity owners 25,604 20,904 22.5%
ZR N | ZFE L
2018 2017
TEMHEILE Selected financial ratios
EN R (K% ) Gross profit margin (adjusted) 34.7% 29.7%
WL A Core net profit margin 13.1% 12.8%
BERFEAZA > NS Earnings per share (basic), RMB cents 70 68
RERRFEAZOER  NRED Core earnings per share (basic), RMB cents 72 57
SRl NmE ES Return on average equity 23.8% 22.8%
FEEEBALLR  FX Net debt-to-equity ratio, at the end of year 67.2% 50.9%
TIHEF- BB A » 4EAK Weighted average cost of indebtedness,
at the end of year 5.8% 5.2%
Tk (AR FETK) Land bank (GFA, million sq.m.)
Tl CESTERE > F oK) > 45K Land bank (GFA, sq.m.), at the end of year
— &t — Total 41.2 31.0
— FEAG — Actributable 20.7 16.0
T T i T A New land acquisition (GFA, sq.m.),
(RREEME - FIK) » SER during the year
— At — Total 12.4 13.2
— A — Attributable 7.1 5.5
JOERE N (SR AR | —F— /AR 19
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Glossary and Definitions
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“Contracted sales” includes contracted sales by the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associated companies. Contracted sales data is unaudited and is
based on internal information of the Group. Contracted sales data may be subject
to various uncertainties during the process of collating such sales information and
is provided for investors’ reference only.

“Core net profit” excludes fair value gains/losses, net exchange loss/gain, expenses
relating to share option grants, loss on early redemption of senior notes, and share
of fair value gains/losses and net exchange loss/gain at joint ventures and associated
companies, net of deferred taxes.

“Bank balances and cash” include restricted bank deposits.

“Total indebtedness” includes bank and other borrowings, onshore corporate
bonds, convertible bonds and offshore senior notes.

“Core net profit margin” is calculated based on core net profit attributable to
equity owners over total recognized revenue.

The calculation of “return on average equity” is based on our core net profit
divided by average equity attributable to equity owners for each financial year.

“Net debt-to-equity ratio” is calculated by the Group’s total indebtedness
under IFRS less bank balances and cash (including restricted bank deposits) as a
percentage of total equity at the end of each financial year.

“Weighted average cost of indebtedness” is the weighted average of interest costs
of all indebtedness outstanding as at the end of each financial year.

The expression “we”, “us” and “our Company” may be used to refer to our
Company or our Group as the context may require.

References to our “land bank”, “development projects”, “property projects” or
“projects” refer to our property projects with land for which we have obtained
land-use rights and property projects for which we have not obtained land-use
rights but have entered into the land grant contracts or received successful tender
auction confirmations as at the relevant dates.

The site area information for an entire project is based on the relevant land use
rights certificates, land grant contracts or tender documents, depending on
which documents are available. If more than one document is available, such
information is based on the most recent document available.

The figures for GFA are based on figures provided in or estimates based on the
relevant governmental documents, such as the property ownership certificate, the
construction work planning permit, the pre-sale permit, the construction land
planning permit or the land use rights certificate.
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Dear shareholders:

I am pleased to present to you the business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, and the outlook for 2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for 2018 (payable in
cash with a scrip option) of RMB19.68 cents per share (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”). The Proposed Final Dividend declared in RMB is proposed to be
paid in Hong Kong dollars equivalent to HK23 cents per share, which is based
on the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China for the five business days preceding the date of the annual
results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Annual Results
Announcement for 2018”). The Company paid an interim dividend (“Interim
Dividend”) of RMB6.09 cents per share (or HK7 cents per share) in respect of the

first six months of 2018.

Together with the Interim Dividend and based on the total outstanding
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of the Annual Results
Announcement for 2018, the total dividends for the year under review amounted
to approximately RMB2,004.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
40.1% over RMB1,430.3 million in 2017.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved contracted sales
of RMB152.0 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 46.2% from
RMB104.0 billion in 2017. The contracted sales achieved in 2018 exceeded the
Group’s full year contracted sales target of RMB140.0 billion by 8.6%.
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RESULTS (Continued)

The recognized revenue in 2018 was RMB42,367.6 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 33.1% over RMB31,824.3 million in 2017. The Group’s
net profit attributable to equity owners increased by 12.0% to RMBS5,409.0
million in 2018 from RMB4,828.1 million in 2017. The Group’s core net profit
attributable to equity owners increased by 35.6% to approximately RMB5,535.6
million in 2018 from RMB4,082.4 million in 2017.

The Group’s gross profit margin was 34.7% in 2018 (adjusted to exclude the
effects of accounting treatment due to financial consolidation of certain projects
as subsidiaries of the Group), versus 29.7% in 2017. The Group’s core net profit
margin was 13.1% in 2018, versus 12.8% in 2017. The Group delivered a core
return on average equity of 23.8% in 2018, versus 22.8% in 2017.

REVIEW OF 2018

Market review

In 2018, despite that China’s real estate market continued its surges in both
overall transaction volume and price, market sentiment reversed dramatically due
to real estate austerity measures and liquidity headwinds. According to the China
National Bureau of Statistics, during 2018, transaction volume of commodity
housing was 1.72 billion sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 1.3%;
while sales of commodity properties housing were RMB15.00 trillion, which rose

by 12.2% on a year-on-year basis.

Since early 2018, the central government has repeatedly reiterated the real
estate policy tone that “homes are for living, not for speculation”. More local
governments have further intensified restrictions on home purchases, mortgage
loans, property pre-sale prices and resale after primary purchase, with significantly
more stringent measures in stronger-tier cities. Bank liquidity related to real estate
sales further tightened which affected mortgage lending and increased interest

Costs.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Market review (Continued)

Real estate sales in different regions and tiers of cities became increasingly
divided in 2018. The transaction volume in first-tier cities continued to shrink
but has tended to stabilize, while the transaction volumes in second-tier and
strong third-tier cities cooled down but were very uneven depending on the city,
and volume in other third- and lower-tier cities outperformed in the first-half of
the year but slowed down dramatically in the second-half as demand was fatigued
by rising home prices. Overall, China’s real estate markets corrected noticeably in
2018 with developers adopting more flexible pricing strategies since mid-2018

in order to achieve the desired sell-through.

In light of such market sentiment in 2018, large-scale national real estate
developers with massive saleable resources diversified their projects, which are
widely spread across different tiers of city and geographical regions of China. They
have demonstrated their resilience against a challenging policy environment and
outperformed their smaller and regional peers. While small and medium-sized
developers suffered from intensified real estate control measures and tightened
liquidity, large-scale developers are less affected due to their competitive
edges in funding channels and counter-risk abilities. Market consolidation and

concentration in favour of large-scale developers further accelerated.

Sales performance

Due to its abundant and diversified saleable resources across different regions and
cities, the Group achieved contracted sales and contracted gross floor area (“GFA”)
of RMB152.0 billion and 9,569,400 sq.m. respectively in 2018, representing a
year-on-year growth of 46.2% and 52.1% respectively. The Group’s contracted
average selling price (“ASP”) in 2018 was approximately RMB15,900/sq.m.,
compared to approximately RMB16,530/sq.m. in 2017. The Group achieved a

cash collection ratio of over 85% from contracted sales in 2018.
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ZF )\ A [l ) REVIEW OF 2018 (Conined)

BRI () Sales performance (Continued)

AEED ZF— ) FR SR HESE  The Group’s contracted sales in 2018 were dispersed among over 195 projects in
H 44T @195 M IEH » & —/\ 44 cities. In 2018, the Group launched pre-sale of 50 new projects, including the
o AREEMEL SO HE FE - 4 following major new launches:

AN B EZIHE -

o UMM EHAHE

o LN UHE B S BT
o MUMIIKEEER

o AL PR UL R A A
o P UL R T [ R R
o RN UL R iy

o RMNEERLE 2

o EINTODIE 38 ik

o EEJNIHEEHE = VLIBER
o EEJIEEER LT

o BRI

o AARNKELFE T

o FRMIIKEETRY

o IEEBNUKER TN

o CEJNJEEEEA TR B

o EEJHEEMEERMIL

o  HEBEJHETIIEE

Hangzhou CIFI Ronchamp County
Hangzhou CIFI Dongyuan Majestic Mansion
Hangzhou CIFI Prime Land

Hangzhou CIFI Xianghu Glory

Wenzhou CIFI Oujiang World’s Metropolis
Wenzhou CIFI GLORY Mansion

Wenzhou CIFI Future City

Wenzhou TOD International New Town
Ningbo CIFI Powerlong Sanjiang Palace
Ningbo CIFI Landscape Poetry

Nanchang CIFI Lingyun Mansion

Hefei CIFI Park Palace

Suzhou CIFI Kuan yue

Wuxi CIFI Chengqing Mansion

Changzhou CIFI Park Mansion

Chongqing CIFI Panorama

Chongqing CIFI Waves River

° N e Guiyang CIFI Skyline
o dbEUMEME T Beijing CIFI Wise Mansion
LI | By lih: 87 Beijing City of CIFI

o JLRUEMERE M

o AERUBAEEG BT

o RPN

o PENEBER S AR I L
o H SRS 2B
o EEMESRE AR IE T
o HIEIHMESRAES BRI
o HREIHMSRAE TR E LRI
o H ISR W
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o LiRAHRAK I

o MBI

o BTN

o EINMBMBECR A (E K

o P AR AR

o FAARUBMEIR SR E

o ERINIBMEERENT

o RN L1 ]

o RUBHERIEA

o RUPIEELNE RN LK

o VUMM EE

o VULHAHE BT

o FEEETELAHI LIk
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Beijing CIFI Lakeside Mansion

Beijing CIFI Joy Palace

Jinan Zhonglu Mansion

Jinan CIFI Yinshengtai Jinyu Lanshan
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Starry City
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Zhengyang Mansion
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Boguanxinghai
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Xiangjiang Mansion
Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Boguanjinan
Shanghai Xinzhuang Center

Shanghai CIFI La Baie D’Evian

Wuhan CIFI Jiangxia Palace

Wuhan CIFI Yangtze River Mansion
Guangzhou CIFI Flowers Bay

Nanjing CIFI Times Mansion

Nanjing CIFI Honor Masion

Xuzhou CIFI Dragon Regency

Xuzhou CIFI Noble Mansion

Changsha CIFI City Mansion

Changsha Henderson CIFI The Landscape
Xi'an CIFI Park Avenue

Xi'an CIFI Honor Mansion

Nanning CIFI Landscape
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Sales performance (Continued)
The Group also continued to record contracted sales in other projects the pre-sale

of which started in previous year(s).

CIFI was ranked 15th nationally in terms of contracted sales amount in 2018
according to the “China Real Estate Enterprises Sales Ranking in 2018~
published by CRIC Information Group.

Profit margins

The Group’s gross profit margin improved to 34.7% in 2018 (adjusted to
exclude the effects of accounting treatment due to financial consolidation of
certain projects as subsidiaries of the Group), as compared to 29.7% in 2017. The

Group’s core net profit margin was 13.1% in 2018, compared to 12.8% in 2017.

The Group sustained its profit margins in 2018 mainly because of higher
profitability for property projects delivered, reasonable land costs, low finance
cost as well as product premium achieved through improving quality and brand.
The profit margins also reflected the profit margins of recognized sales which
were mostly contracted before the government imposed price limits on property

sales.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Land acquisitions

In early 2018, our strong performance in contracted sales imposed an urging need
for replenishing our saleable sources for our future sales growth. We inevitably
became proactive in acquiring suitable and cost-effective land resources in the
first half of 2018. Due to stricter government real estate control measures and
tightening financing environment, most land markets softened in the second half
of 2018, leading to significant corrections in transacted land prices. Since mid-
2018, we have become more conservative and avoided acquiring land at high

COsts.

In 2018, the Group acquired interests in 93 new projects with an aggregate land
consideration attributable to the Group of RMB41.1 billion. From January to
February 2019, the Group further acquired interests in 11 new projects with
an aggregate land consideration attributable to the Group of RMB9.8 billion.
For land acquisitions made since early 2018, the Group strictly adhered to its
value investment principles and utilized multi acquisition channels including
government public auctions and tenders, private acquisitions as well as urban

village transformations.

During the year, we strategically entered 15 new cities, expanded our
geographical coverage and diversified into cities of different tiers, enhanced our
regional and provincial penetrations. In particular, we entered the following new

cities in 2018:

o Yangtze River Delta: Nanchang, Xuzhou, Changzhou, Nantong, Wuhu
and Taizhou, expanding our presence in second- and third-tier cities in the

region;

o Pan Bohai Area: Yantai, Weifang, Jining and Zibo, expanding our coverage

in Shandong Province;

. South China Region: Quanzhou and Jiangmen, further gaining strategic

foothold in Guangdong and Fujian Province;

. Central-Western Region: Guiyang, Yinchuan, etc, gaining foothold in

Guizhou and Gansu Province.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Financing and liability management

In 2018, the fundraising markets for China real estate developers were
phenomenally tightened. As onshore funding channels were more restricted,
real estate developers reverted to offshore debt markets with massive supply of
debt issues. Sentiments for both onshore and offshore bonds and loan markets

significantly weakened with higher interest costs.

Leveraging our multiple low-cost funding channels, both onshore and offshore, as
well as our long-established endorsements by the capital markets, CIFI has great
competitive edge in terms of funding capabilities and financial strength. Since
the beginning of 2018, we have decisively executed the following major financing
transactions, which have been more than adequate for our landbank expansion

and re-financing needs:

Offshore financings

o In January 2018, the Company issued the 5.50% coupon, 5-year maturity
US Dollar Bonds due January 2023 (“2023 Due USD Bonds”) with a
principal amount of US$300 million.

o In February 2018, the Company issued the zero-coupon convertible bonds
due February 2019 (“Convertible Bonds”) with a principal amount of
HK$2,790 million (approximately US$358 million). The redemption price
of the Convertible Bonds at maturity was set at 101.5% (“Redemption
Price”) of its principal amount. The Convertible Bonds were convertible
into new shares of the Company at an adjusted conversion price of
HK$8.90 per share (adjusted for the final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 and the interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2018). Between October and December 2018, the Company
repurchased an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,762 million of the
Convertible Bonds below the redemption price at maturity. Before their
maturity, the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$4 million
were converted into new shares of the Company at the adjusted conversion
price of HK$8.90 per Share. At their maturity in February 2019, the
remaining Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,024 million were delisted from the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and were redeemed by the Company at the

Redemption Price.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Financing and liability management (Continued)

Offshore financings (Continued)

In March 2018, the Company entered into a facility agreement in respect of
an unsecured 3.5-year US dollar/Hong Kong dollar club loan (“2018 Club
Loan”) of the final principal amount of approximately US$243 million with
an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR + 3.32% per annum. In the second half
of 2018, the Company further entered into bi-lateral facility agreements in
respect of an unsecured 2-year/3-year Hong Kong dollar loan facilities with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$1.2 billion (approximately US$154
million) with interest rates ranging from HIBOR + 3% to 3.96% per

annum.

In April 2018, the Company issued the 6.875% coupon, 3-year maturity
US Dollar Bonds due April 2021 (“2021 Due USD Bonds”) with a
principal amount of US$500 million, and further issued the 6.375%
coupon, 2-year maturity US Dollar Bonds due April 2020 (“2020 April
Due USD Bonds”) with a principal amount of US$300 million.

In September 2018, the Company issued the 7.75% coupon, 2-year
maturity RMB Bonds due September 2020 (“2020 September Due RMB
Bonds”) with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, and further issued
additional US$300 million principal amount, 5.5% coupon offshore bonds
due January 2022 (“2022 January Due USD Bonds”), at issue yield of
8.625%.

In December 2018, CIFI priced 2-year the 7.625% coupon, long 2-year
maturity US Dollar Bonds due February 2021 (“2021 February Due USD
Bonds”) with a principal amount of US$400 million. Such bonds were

issued and settled in January 2019.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Financing and liability management (Continued)

Onshore financings
In March 2018, JEKEAE B R34 BRZA 7] (CIFI Group Co., Led.*) (“CIFI

China”), the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary in China, issued an

aggregate of RMB3.5 billion domestic non-public corporate bonds in the

following tranches:

(1)

(1)

RMBS800 million at coupon rate of 6.50% per annum, and tenure
of 4 years (with the Issuer’s right to adjust the coupon rate and
investors’ option to require the Issuer to repurchase the bonds, at the

end of second year after the issue); and

RMB2.7 billion at coupon rate of 6.80% per annum, and tenure of 5
years (with the Issuer’s right to adjust the coupon rate and investors’
option to require the Issuer to repurchase the bonds, at the end of

third year after the issue).

In August and September 2018, CIFI China issued an aggregate of

RMB3.375 billion domestic public corporate bonds in the following

tranches:

©)

(i1)

RMB2.5 billion at coupon rate of 5.46% per annum and tenure of 3
years (with the Issuer’s right to adjust the coupon rate and investors’
option to require the Issuer to repurchase the bonds, at the end of

second year after the issue); and

RMB875 million at coupon rate of 6.39% per annum and tenure of 4
years (with the Issuer’s right to adjust the coupon rate and investors’
option to require the Issuer to repurchase the bonds, at the end of

third year after the issue).

During the year, proceeds of the above fundraisings were partially used for the

repayments of an aggregate of approximately USD754 million offshore debts and

approximately RMBS billion onshore corporate bonds.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (continued)

Financial positions

Our international and onshore credit rating agencies continued to endorse CIFI's
efforts in sales execution, disciplined land-bank expansion and prudent financial
management. During the year, Fitch and Moody’s maintained the Company’s
credit rating at “BB” (with “Stable” outlook) and “Ba3” (with “Positive” outlook)
respectively, while Standard & Poor’s upgraded the Company’s credit rating
outlook to “BB—" (with “Positive” outlook). On the other hand, each of the
onshore credit rating agencies, namely China Chengxin Credit Ratings, United
Ratings and China Lianhe Credit Rating, assigned “AAA” onshore credit ratings
to the Company and CIFI China.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s:

. net debt-to-equity ratio was 67.2% (as at 31 December 2017: 50.9%);

. net debts (total indebtedness less cash-on-hand) amounted to
RMB?33,247.5 million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB17,452.2 million);

. cash-on-hand level amounted to RMB44,617.6 million (as at 31 December
2017: RMB29,786.9 million);

. total indebtedness amounted to RMB77,865.0 million (as at 31 December
2017: RMB47,239.1 million);

J guaranteed joint ventures/associated companies debts amounted to
RMBS,431.9 million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB2,631.9 million); and

o weighted average cost of indebtedness (excluding convertible bonds) was
5.8% (as at 31 December 2017: 5.2%).

As at 31 December 2018, unpaid committed land considerations attributable
to the Group were approximately RMB5,188.1 million (versus cash-on-hand of
approximately RMB44,617.6 million). Despite the increase in total debts mainly
for land acquisitions in 2018, the Group maintained a comfortable debt position

and control over off-balance sheet commitments.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

Awards and recognitions
In 2018, we received various prestigious national and international industry
honours in recognition of our notable achievements in line with our growth in

scale and rising industry position; notably:

o “Aon Best Employers — China 2018”. For two consecutive years, CIFI
received this highly comprehensive and prestigious honour in human
resources awarded by Aon Hewitt, the world’s leading human resources
consultancy firm during the year. CIFI again was the only awarded real
estate developer in 2018, in recognition of its continued human resources

development.

o “Real Estate Design China Award 2017-2018” and “Kinpan Award 2018”.
CIFI received 68 awards in 2018 in these highly influential construction
design contest in China’s real estate industry. CIFI was the real estate
developer which won the most awards in these two contests, signifying the

marker recognition of our dedications to product capabilities.

. “Institutional Investor Magazine — All-Asia Executive Team 2018”. CIFI
received the “Best CFO — Overall Number 1, Buy-side and Sell-side
Number 17, “Best IR Professional — Overall Number 1, Buy-side and Sell-
side Number 1” and “Best Investor Relations Program — Sell-side Number
3” in the “Property” category of executive rankings in Asia (ex-Japan)
published by this global finance magazine in 2018. The magazine asked
portfolio managers and buy- and sell-side analysts at financial institutions
all over the world to score the performance of executives at companies they
covered. The ranking of CIFI showed the international recognition of its
dedication to financial management, corporate governance and effective

communications with global capital markets.

o “Inclusion into the MSCI China Index”. CIFI was admitted into the China
Index of MSCI Global Standard Indices (“MSCI China Index”) in February
2018. The MSCI China Index, which currently includes large and mid-
sized internationally listed Chinese stocks available to international
investors, is used as a common benchmark for global stock funds to track
Chinese equity market performance and to measure portfolio performances.
The inclusion recognizes CIFI's significant re-rating of its equity valuation
and improvement in stock liquidity.
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REVIEW OF 2018 (Continued)

“Real estate plus” businesses

“Real estate plus” businesses refer to the Group’s associated companies which
are complimentary to its core property business. These ventures include (i) Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle Services (formerly known as Yongsheng Property Service),
which provides property management services; (ii) Lingyu Apartment Rental,
which provides long term apartment rental services; and (iii) EPC Construction

Services, which provides industrialized prefabricated construction services.

In 2018, the Group’s “real estate plus” businesses made the significant progress.

During the year,

o Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Services Group Limited, the holding company of
the property management services business, completed its initial public
offering raising HK$741 million, and commenced listing of its shares on
the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 17 December 2018.
During the year, Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Services substantially increased its
operating scale and reached contracted management area of 65.55 million
sq.m. as at 31 December 2018, with a good mix of contributions from

projects developed by CIFI as well as third-party developers.

o In 2018, Lingyu Apartment Rental further grew its scale and had
contracted over 50,000 apartments for its management. It has successfully
positioned itself as one of the fastest growing apartment rental operators in

China.

These “real estate plus” businesses as part of the real estate-related service sector
in the PRC enjoy enormous growth potential characterized by clear industry
consolidation trends, massive market opportunities and benefits of utilizing
innovations in industry reforms. They have great synergies with the Group’s core
property development/investment business by providing services to the Group,
and on the other hand could grow rapidly by expanding its business coverage to

third-party, non-CIFI customers.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019

China is now approaching a new phase of economic reform and transformation.
At present, domestic economy and consumption showed imminent signs of
slowdown. Since the second half of 2018, the government’s deleveraging and
austerity measures in the real estate sector have been effective and China’s overall
real estate sales demand volume has softened noticeably. The softening economy
may prompt the government to adjust its austerity and liquidity measures
against the real estate sector. While we believe that any potential loosening in
government real estate control measures would be gradual, we would closely
monitor the reversal in policies and its impact on real estate markets and take

advantage in adding land resources at cheaper costs accordingly.

Due to the stringent real estate controls and tight liquidity environment in
2018, land prices in second- and strong third-tier cities have shown dramatic
corrections. We believe that these city segments will offer attractive investment
opportunities in the medium and long term, especially in the more challenging

industry environments.

Due to our proactive land-banking strategy in the past two years, we have
effectively diversified our land bank to cover 60 cities in different geographical
regions. Other than our traditional emphasis on first- and second-tier cities, our
land bank now also covers a growing number of third-tier or other cities which
have different real estate demand and policy cycles. Our relatively conservative
land acquisition approach in the second half of 2018 and our outstanding sales
achieved by the end of 2018 have provided us with good cash reserve and have
well-positioned us to capture the opportunities during the corrections of the land

markets.

The Group has set an initial contracted sales target for the full year of 2019 at
RMB190.0 billion, representing an increase of 25% from the contracted sales
in 2018. Supply of saleable resources of the Group are estimated to amount to
over RMB350 billion for the full year of 2019. Based on our abundant saleable
resources and conservative sell-through assumption, we are confident of achieving
our 2019 yearly sales target. We are confident that our massive and well
diversified portfolio of saleable resources acquired at reasonable land costs will be
defensive in the current tight real estate environment and will provide substantial

upside potential when real estate policies become favourable again in future.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019 (continned)

CIFI is a large-scale developer with national coverage and we have proven our
ability to execute efficient and high asset-turnover operating strategies. Our
efficient operations stress on short development cycles, high cash turnover,
defensive debt positions as well as balanced profitability. We are well-positioned
to capture further market share and outperform other market players in the

industry especially in the current challenging real estate environment.

CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
LIN Zhong

Chairman
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

The Group achieved contracted sales of approximately RMB152.0 billion in
2018, representing a year-on-year growth of 46.2% as compared to RMB104.0
billion in 2017. The overwhelming growth in the Group’s contracted sales
was due to the Group’s abundant and well diversified saleable resources across
different regions and cities and mainly driven by the strong performance of
certain second- and third-tier cities which were less affected by government

controls.

The Group contracted sales in GFA was approximately 9,569,400 sq.m. in 2018,
representing an increase of 52.1% over GFA of approximately 6,291,713 sq.m. in
2017. The Group’s contracted ASP in 2018 was approximately RMB15,900/sq.
m., representing a decrease of 3.8% from RMB16,530/sq.m. in 2017.

Contracted sales from the Yangtze River Delta, the Pan Bohai Rim, the Central
Western Region and the South China Region contributed to approximately
47.8%, 24.1%, 22.7% and 5.4% of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2018
respectively. Contracted sales from first- and second-tier cities accounted for
approximately 78.5% of the Group’s total contracted sales in 2018 whereas
those from third-tier cities accounted for the remaining 21.5%. Contracted sales
derived from residential projects contributed to approximately 93.5% of the
Group’s total contracted sales in 2018 whereas those from office/and commercial

projects contributed to the remaining 6.5%.

Cash collection from property sales during the period by the Group’s subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associated companies represented over 85% of contracted sales
in 2018.

37



B PG ks B 2 B

Management Discussion and Analysis

I Y v B 8% ) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Comined)
B RIS ) Contracted sales (Continued)
F*— 1 ZF— )ELFRSEFN Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2018
Fichl i ) 43 By city

A4 Tl B

sWAA SRS SRHH
HAMEBLE  wofml  REHE  FHEE

Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted

sales sales GFA ASP

(ANRWIL,/

(ARWTIL) CEITxK) FIiK)

(RMB’000) (%) (sqm.) (RMB/sq.m.)

HhE Hefei 15,933,859 105% 1,001,226 15,914
G Chongqing 15,741,945 104% 1,214,845 12,958
deat Beijing 11,840,608 7.8% 322,824 36,678
T Wenzhou 10,935,367 7.2% 816,816 13,388
Ak Suzhou 9,628,305 6.3% 458,148 21,016
. Wuhan 8,150,657 5.4% 431,323 18,897
fnkicd Shanghai 7,890,189 5.2% 274,700 28,723
k233 Ningbo 7,323,515 4.8% 295,620 24,773
H Qingdao 7,196,559 4.7% 512,626 14,039
R Tianjin 6,716,692 4.4% 402,340 16,694
HoM Hangzhou 6,455,880 42% 311,730 20,710
it Shenyang 6,134,303 4.0% 511,445 11,994
il Foshan 5,777,096 3.8% 482,212 11,980
fieg5) Wuxi 4,971,213 3.3% 408,786 12,161
W Jiaxing 4,808,885 3.2% 320,519 15,003
JSAR Chengdu 3,274,770 2.2% 289,255 11,321
(73 Xi'an 2,997,762 2.0% 256,870 11,670
[T Linyi 2,741,943 1.8% 301,609 9,091
i=30) Changsha 2,349,457 1.5% 223,903 10,493
A Nanjing 2,294,855 1.5% 83,327 27,540
RN Xuzhou 1,683,557 1.1% 149,341 11,273
i3] Jinan 1,385,559 0.9% 92,658 14,953
g Zhengzhou 1,292,345 0.8% 95,959 13,468
JEE Guangzhou 1,023,850 0.7% 25,760 39,746
[ Nanning 763,546 0.5% 66,312 11,514
HE Nanchang 455,175 0.3% 57,379 7,933
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BB 41) Contracted sales (Continued)
Fx— 2R )EARSEEE ) Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2018 (Continued)
?Eﬁﬁigjﬁ (%) By city (Continued)

A4 B B

SWAA SRS SR
BHMEEB  wofroral  BEWR  THEMK

Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted

sales sales GFA ASP

(ANRWIL,/

(ARWTIIL) CEAXR) FIiK)

(RMB’000) (%) (sqm.) (RMB/sq.m.)

Hedi Weifang 325,129 0.2% 24,264 13,400
=5 Sanya 264,918 0.2% 3,382 78,332
T Zibo 250,650 0.2% 28,910 8,670
H N Changzhou 237,022 0.2% 11,893 19,930
Tl Quzhou 194,597 0.1% 13,112 14,841
B Guiyang 166,858 0.1% 16,114 10,355
Hrily Zhongshan 140,498 0.1% 15,969 8,798
kil Nantong 113,990 0.1% 6,543 17,422
E 3 Wuhu 98,013 0.1% 8,199 11,954
N Quanzhou 91,854 0.1% 8,112 11,323
Gia=] Xuchang 85,637 0.1% 9,659 8,866
G HE Jinhua 74,804 * 4,160 17,982
HIE Dongguan 64,367 * 3,258 19,757
BT Zhengjiang 47,849 * 2,661 17,982
M Jiangmen 42,020 * 4,035 10,414
Ko Dalian 40,690 o 1,616 25,179
st Total 152,006,788 100.0% 9,569,420 15,885

* DJR0.1% # Less than 0.1%

JATRERE (SR AR R | R — R4 39
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2 A PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Consinued)

B SHE 4) Contracted sales (Continued)

F— ZF— ) EFRMEEFN @) Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2018 (Continued)
FiTH H A A H 4y By type of project

Residential 142,088,406 93.5% 9,098,099 15,617
Y AES Office/Commercial 9,918,382 6.5% 471,321 21,044

,

¥ W
r> o

&
e

Total 152,006,788 100.0% 9,569,420 15,885

Fic Hb [ 1 43 By region

R=A Yangtze River Delta 72,691,900 47.8% 4,166,781 17,446
IR Pan Bohai Rim 36,632,133 24.1% 2,198,292 16,664
PR Central Western Region 34,514,606 22.7% 2,595,307 13,299
iy South China Region 8,168,149 5.4% 609,040 13,412
st Total 152,006,788 100.0% 9,569,420 15,885
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Contracted sales (Continued)
Table 1: Details of contracted sales in 2018 (Continued)

By first-, second- and third-tier cities

L etk
sWAA SRS SRHH
HAMEBLE  wofml  REHE  FHEE

Contracted contracted Contracted Contracted
sales sales GFA ASP
(ARWL,/
(ARWTL) CPIiK) FIik)
(RMB’000) (%) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
— & First-tier cities 19,730,797 13.0% 597,524 33,021
s ] Second-tier cities 99,591,500 65.5% 6,351,838 15,679
=R Third-tier cities 32,684,491 21.5% 2,620,058 12,475
Mk Total 152,006,788 100.0% 9,569,420 15,885
Fi5E Notes:
1. — 4IRS g S dbET o 1. First-tier cities refer to Shanghai and Beijing.
2. AR TR E N ~ BEN o MO FBEaT - AR - 2. Second-tier cities refer to Guangzhou Suzhou, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Hefei, Ningbo, Nanchang, Xi’an,
W E - TR N HE - BYW O RER - B Wuhan, Chongqing, Changsha, Chengdu, Zhengzhou, Tianjin, Shenyang, Qingdao, Jinan, Nanning,
M R R WS WM M BRBAK Guiyang and Dalian.
o
3. ARE TR - S - AR~ B BUT - B 3. Third-tier cities refer to Wenzhou, Wuxi, Sanya, Jiaxing, Zhenjiang, Xuzhou, Weifang, Zibo,

I~ HEDT ST RN Wl e
W~ SR FRE R HSE - Rl TP R
UT o

B ORI

W FE N HEYECHERIA
£ B N R H539,014,000,000 7 > $% 4F 1
228.8% » M HERR LA HEH92.1% -
A% A T — AR A B A A
#12,664,438 - KM - EME
29.4% o i TE— \4E » AREE B EY)E
(1 RS- 2 BB 40 7y AR 14,6420
Tk BT —EEW AR 14,710
Tt/ VI K T #0.5% o AL T — )\
FER B EYEC R AR > EE R
PR B 3 A g S g s o

JATRERE (SR AR R | R — R4

Changzhou, Quzhou, Zhongshan, Nantong, Wuhu, Quanzhou, Xuchang, Jinhua, Dongguan, Foshan,
Jiangmen and Linyi.

Revenue recognized from sales of properties

Revenue recognized from sales of properties in 2018 was approximately
RMB39,014.0 million up by 28.8% year-on-year, accounted for 92.1% of total
recognized revenue. The Group delivered approximately 2,664,438 sq.m. of
properties in GFA in 2018, up by 29.4% year-on-year. The Group s recognized
ASP from sales of properties was approximately RMB14,642/sq.m. in 2018,
representing an decrease of 0.5% from RMB14,710/sq.m. in 2017. The increase
in the Group s revenue recognized from sales of properties in 2018 was mainly

attributable to the increase in GFA delivered.
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e OHERBA @) Revenue recognized from sales of properties (Continued)
K ZE)UERAMENENCTHW  Table 2: Breakdown of recognized revenue from property sales in 2018
PR WA W] A
Fichk i ) 43 By city
haime
HEMECEDRA KA E 2 b
Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue 3 A S CHBTHER
from sale of properties  from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
ARBT 7 Fiik N TR 2
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
“ENE (SR |SRNE SR LE SRR SR |22 SR
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

BN Suzhou 9,590,608 | 7936922 246 262 | 459,192 | 462,108 | 20886 | 17,175
B Hangzhou 6,373,025 334,458 16.3 1.1 453,004 33,804 14,068 9,894
F Qingdao 4,157,502 - 107 £ 420555 - 9,886 -
K Tianjin 3,256,563 | 2,388,303 83 79 | 206434 | 190,634 15,775 12,528
A Nanjing 2,783,240 | 2,005,465 7.1 66 97,182 | 121,550 28,640 16,499
i Shenyang 2,630,790 | 1,798,137 6.7 59| 269428 | 213,181 9,764 8435
in'} Shanghai 2,523,128 | 7,752,773 6.5 25.6 80,603 | 208,293 31,303 37,221
Eil Chongging 1,634,823 | 1,685,944 42 56| 233924 | 276929 6,989 6,088
E4id Ningbo 1,449,159 - 37 % 67,817 - 21,369 -
i Wuhan 1448911 | 1,657,950 37 55 76,067 90,676 19,048 18,284
itez] Jinan 1,063,318 - 27 * 99,054 - 10,735 -
ieal] Changsha 649,741 | 911,509 17 3.0 60,486 85,754 10,742 10,629
i3 Xian 597,609 - 15 % 46,149 - 12,950 -
il Foshan 566,731 - 15 * 53,691 - 10,555 -
FH Jiaxing 80,520 | 638476 0.2 21 14,677 84,240 5,486 7,579
A Hefei 77928 | 1,624,861 0.2 54 12,661 100,351 6,155 16,192
L Zhenjiang 60,065 | 930,637 0.2 3.1 8826 | 162,566 6,806 5,725
Tx Beijing 59,617 | 586,755 0.2 19 3,554 21,997 16,775 26,674
i Langfang 10,729 4872 * 0.1 1,134 7,360 9,461 5,825
Gl Total 39,014,007 | 30,295,062 100 100 | 2,664,438 | 2059443 | 14642 | 14710

42

*Less than 0.1%
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P Y E B 8% 4 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Comined)
e OHERBA @) Revenue recognized from sales of properties (Continued)
K ZE)UERAMENENCH  Table 2:Breakdown of recognized revenue from property sales in 2018
ﬁ%{ q&]\ Eﬁ 4%&] (#%) (Continued)
FRIH H R A H) 43 By type of project
i} itiEd
HEETEIRA CHBMA T2
Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue DR AR R TR THER
from sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
NRHT Flik ARWIE /i
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
“E-NE|CELE [CRNE |2FLF (SR ST LF 230 2T tE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ik Residential 32,217,278 | 23,601,817 826 719 | 2275543 | 1,606,947 14,158 14,687
HNE T Office/Commercial 6,796,729 | 6,693,245 17.4 2.1 388,895 452,496 17,477 14,792
&t Total 39,014,007 | 30,295,062 100 100 | 2,664438 | 2,059443 14,642 14,710
il [ ) 43 By region
LEAES
LB AT TLION TR T2
Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue DR MR RN O THER
from sale of properties  from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
ARHET L Fiik AR/ ik
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
= B e L = T B U i
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
R=A Yangtze River Delta 21,012,248 | 21,223,592 53.9 700 | 1038433 | 1,172,912 20,235 18,095
R Pan Bohai Rim 10,957,069 | 4,816,067 28.1 15.9 964,037 433,172 11,366 11,118
FTGE Central Western Region 6,477,959 | 4,255,403 16.5 14.0 608,277 453359 10,650 9,386
il South China 506,731 - L5 - 53,691 - 10,555 -
A Total 39,014,007 | 30,295,062 100 100 | 2,664,438 | 2,059,443 14,642 14,710

JATRERE (SR AR R | R — R4
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Consinued)

Revenue recognized from sales of properties (Continued)

Table 2:Breakdown of recognized revenue from property sales in 2018
(Continued)

By first-, second- and third-tier cities

RS
HEMETHIRA CHlEBRAT 2
Recognised revenue % of recognised revenue DR AR R TR THER
from sale of properties from sale of properties Total GFA delivered Recognised ASP
YN & T Phk N TVEDT S
RMB’000 % sq.m. RMB/sq.m.
CERNE SR LF |2RNE |23 |28 N |25 LE [0 [2FLE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
— B First-tier cities 2,582,745 | 8,339,528 6.6 275 84,157 230,290 30,690 36,213
s i} Second-tier cities 36,279,947 | 20,343,549 93.0 612 | 2,555,642 | 1,574,987 14,196 12,917
=i (i Third-tier cities 151315 | 1,611,985 0.4 5.5 24,639 | 254,166 6,141 6,342
At Total 39,014,007 | 30,295,062 100 100 | 2,664,438 | 2,059,443 14,642 14,710
Coe B Completed properties held for sale

=T — N A B B e UE H )
AR SRR A £5'5,700,000°F- 5 ok (&
— L 4E 1 2,900,000 K) > EHEFE
W & 2 1 /9 2,300,000 F 5 K (- F —L&
11,600,000 75 K ) B A A S B
73\ 1 3,400,000 7 5 K (ZF— L4 -
1,300,000°F- 1K) o it —FE—/)\4F+ " H
=t—H > REEAF10ZHD R TYHE
THH > R 8 SR 3 A 48 8 5 Al % g
iy 2 58 R 20 Bl 49 £ 7,300,000°F 75 K K&
4,300,000°F- 75 K e

BHEEH R AR SRS R 4 3
RoF—/E+A=+—H  AREME
F 1702 TH B 8% b SRR AR AR B R I 2
TEH > 4 S T R % M A5 7 5 T R 40
#9 £ 33,900,000 77 K £ 16,400,000°F- F7
* o
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In 2018, the total GFA of newly completed projects of the Group amounted
to approximately 5.7 million sq.m. (2017: 2.9 million sq.m.) comprising 2.3
million sq.m. by its subsidiaries (2017: 1.6 million sq.m.) and 3.4 million sq.m.
by its joint ventures or associated companies (2017: 1.3 million sq.m.). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had over 100 completed properties projects with a
total and attributable unsold or undelivered GFA of approximately 7.3 million

sq.m. and 4.3 million sq.m. respectively.

Properties under development/held for future development
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had over 170 property projects under
development or held for future development with a total and attributable GFA of

approximately 33.9 million sq.m. and 16.4 million sq.m. respectively.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental income

The Group’s rental income in 2018 was approximately RMB237.0 million, up
by 151.0% year-on-year. The rental income in 2018 were mainly contributed by
Jiaxing CIFI Square, Shanghai CIFI Haishang International and Chongqing CIFI
City, with its growth mainly derived from new rental contribution from Shanghai
CIFI Haishang International, Shanghai LCM and Chongqing CIFI City.

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 16 investment properties with a
total and attributable GFA of approximately 841,400 sq.m and 472,900 sq.m.
respectively, of which 10 investment properties with a total and attributable
GFA of approximately 428,000 sq.m and 289,500 sq.m. had commenced leasing.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s recognized revenue was approximately RMB42,367.6 million
in 2018, up 33.1% year-on-year. Out of the Group’s total recognized revenue
in 2018, (i) sales of property increased by 28.8% from 2017 to approximately
RMB39,014.0 million; (ii) rental income increased by 151.0% from 2017; (iii)
project management and other property related service income increased by
117.2% from 2017.

Table 3: Breakdown of recognized revenue in 2018

RN\ —E LA
2018 2017
fiC B TR A
HBH MEME DL
BB % of Total | EfERRILA % of Total YARS T
Recognized  recognized Recognized recognized Year-on-year
revenue revenue revenue revenue change
ARWTI ANR¥F0
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
LE ek Sales of properties 39,014,007 92.1 | 30,295,062 95.2 28.8
A Rental income 236,978 0.6 94,428 0.3 151.0
JHHEH K HABY 2 Project management and
AH B IRES U A other property related
service income 3,116,662 7.3 1,434,798 4.5 117.2
At Total 42,367,647 100.0 | 31,824,288 100.0 33.1
JOERE N (SR AR | —F— /AR 45
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BN ¥ 621,500,000 CHE 12319 ©
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost of sales
The Group’s reported cost of sales in 2018 was approximately RMB31,754.8
million, up 36.9% from 2017.

Gross profit and gross profit margin
The Group’s reported gross profit in 2018 was approximately RMB10,612.8
million, up by 23.1% compared to RMB8,621.5 million in 2017.

In 2018, the reported gross profits were understated by the accounting treatment
due to re-classification of certain project companies from non-consolidating joint

ventures or associated companies to subsidiaries of the Group.

Eliminating the accounting effect of remeasurement of fair value of the costs of
relevant properties delivered, the adjusted gross profit in 2018 was approximately
RMB14,681.6 million, up by 55.5% compared to the adjusted gross profit in
2017.

Our adjusted gross profit margin was 34.7% in 2018, which remained high
compared to the adjusted gross margin of 29.7% in 2017.

Net exchange gain/(loss) from hedging arrangements

In 2018, the Group incurred net exchange loss of RMB575.4 million due to the
effects of RMB exchange rate depreciation during the year, compared to exchange
gain of RMB108.4 million in 2017.

The Group had entered into currency capped forward contracts to hedge certain
of its foreign currency exposure in non-RMB denominated indebtedness. In
2018, the Group recorded in a fair value gain on derivative financial instruments
of RMB14.9 million due to hedging arrangements (2017: loss of RMB538.7

million).

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Loss on early redemption of senior notes
In 2017, the Group realized a loss on early redemption of senior notes of
RMB118.5 million, no such loss was incurred in 2018.

Gain on remeasurement and gain from business combinations

In 2018, the Group reclassified the accounting treatment of certain project
companies resulting in financial consolidation of such project as subsidiaries.
As a result, the Group recognized a gain of RMB903.4 million in 2018 (2017:
RMB574.3 million) from remeasurement of the fair value of the equity interests
in certain project companies (which were previously recognized as joint venture
or associated companies, before acquisition of the equity interests during the
period and thereafter they were recognized as subsidiary) and a gain of RMB200.0
million from business combination in 2017 for the acquisition of interest of the
aforesaid companies, for the excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the

consideration.

Change in fair value of investment properties
In 2018, the Group recognized a fair value gain on investment properties of
approximately RMB106.4 million as compared to a fair value gain on investment

properties in 2017 of approximately RMB657.8 million.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by 89.2% to
approximately RMB1,153.1 million in 2018 from approximately RMB609.5
million in 2017. This increase was in line with the Group’s massive new launches
of property projects available for pre-sale in 2018. During the period, the Group

kept its selling expenses at an appropriate level.

Administrative and other expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 67.4% to approximately
RMB2,121.7 million in 2018 from approximately RMB1,267.8 million in
2017. This increase was primarily due to the Group’s business expansion. During
the year, the Group’s administrative expenses were kept at a reasonable level
due to implementation of stringent cost control and improvement in per capita

efficiency.
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Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group’s share of results of joint ventures and associates amounted to profits
of RMB2,175.5 million in 2018, versus profits of RMB2,105.6 million in
2017. Included in the share of results of joint ventures and associated companies
in 2018 were RMBS5.5 million share of exchange loss (2017: exchange gain of
RMB112.9 million) and RMB175.1 million share of gain in the fair value of

investment properties under construction (2017: RMB844.6 million).

Eliminating the effects of exchange loss and fair value gains, the Group’s share of
results of joint ventures and associated companies were profits of RMB2,005.9
million in 2018, compared to RMB1,148.1 million in 2017.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs expensed in 2018 was approximately RMB368.7
million, versus RMB262.3 million in 2017. The change in finance costs expensed
was primarily attributable to the change in the total finance costs incurred, net of

the portion being capitalized in properties under development during the year.

The Group’s total finance costs expensed and capitalized increased by 89.9%
to approximately RMB4,388.6 million in 2018 from RMB2,310.8 million in
2017. The increase in total finance costs expensed and capitalized was due to the
increase of the Group’s total indebtedness level. The Group’s total indebtedness
was RMB77.9 billion as at 31 December 2018, compared to RMB47.2 billion as
at 31 December 2017. The Group’s weighted average cost of indebtedness as at
31 December 2018 was 5.8%, compared to 5.2% as at 31 December 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by 7.9% to approximately
RMB4,198.7 million in 2018 from approximately RMB3,892.6 million in 2017.
The Group’s income tax expense included payments and provisions made for
enterprise income tax (“EIT”) and land appreciation tax (“LAT”) less deferred
taxation during the year. The Group’s effective income tax rate decreased to
37.1% in 2018 from 38.8% in 2017.

The Group made LAT provisions of approximately RMB3,676.5 million in
2018 versus approximately RMB2,123.9 million in 2017. The Group made
actual LAT payments of approximately RMB1,027.3 million in 2018 versus
approximately RMB714.9 million in 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
had accumulated unpaid LAT provisions of approximately RMB4,387.3 million.

Profit for the year

As a result of the factors described above, the Group’s profit before taxation
increased by 12.7% to approximately RMB11,317.0 million in 2018 from
approximately RMB10,041.2 million in 2017. The Group’s profit for the
year increased by 15.8% to approximately RMB7,118.3 million in 2018 from
approximately RMBG,148.5 million in 2017. The Group’s net profit attributable
to equity owners increased by 12.0% to approximately RMBS5,409.0 million in
2018 from approximately RMB4,828.1 million in 2017.

The Group’s core net profit attributable to equity owners increased by 35.6% to
approximately RMB5,535.6 million in 2018 from approximately RMB4,082.4
million in 2017. The Group’s core net profit margin was 13.1% in 2018,
compared to 12.8% in 2017.

Interests in and amount due from joint ventures and associates

The Group recorded interests in joint ventures of RMBS8,511 million and interest
in associates of RMB5,779 million as at 31 December 2018, versus RMB5,802
million and RMB2,823 million respectively as at 31 December 2017. The Group
recorded amount due from joint ventures and associates of RMB27,798 million as
at 31 December 2018, versus RMB17,451 million as at 31 December 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Interests in and amount due from joint ventures and associates (Continued)

The interests in joint ventures and associates, and the amount due from joint
ventures and associates are related to the holding of interest of the Group in
relevant joint venture entity formed with joint venture partner and engaged in
single purpose property project developed for sale which is of revenue nature in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. The amount due from
joint ventures and associates represented the shareholder’s loans contributed
by the Group in the capacity of partner of the relevant joint venture incidental
to the development of the aforesaid single purpose property project, including
payment of the land premium and construction cost of the project. The increase
in the interest in joint ventures and associates, and the amount due from joint
ventures and associates was attributable to the proactive land-banking strategy
of the Group implemented by way of diversifying the land bank in different
geographical regions in the PRC through forming joint venture entity with local
partners for single purpose property project development in such regions so as
to achieve a nationwide operating coverage and a strong presence in major first-
second- and third-tier cities in the PRC. Details of new land acquired in 2018
and increase in attributable land bank through joint ventures and associates of the
Group are set out in paragraph headed “Land Bank — Land acquisition in 2018”
of this Management Discussion and Analysis section. Increase in attributable land
bank in 2018 and the related land acquisition consideration attributable to the
interest of the Group in the joint venture projects contributed to the significant
increase in the interest in, and the amount due from the joint ventures and
associates. Please refer to note 17 (interest in associates) and note 18 (interest in
joint ventures) to the notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in
this annual report for further details.

Properties under development for sale

The Group recorded properties under development for sale of RMB84,138
million as at 31 December 2018, versus RMB34,603 million as at 31 December
2017. Such increase was due to the land-bank expansion in 2018 mentioned in
the aforesaid paragraph.

Deferred taxation assets

The Group recorded deferred taxation assets of RMB1,022 million as at 31
December 2018, versus RMB503 million as at 31 December 2017. Such increase
was due to increase in prepaid LAT made by the Group in 2018 in correspondence
with the growth in contracted sales of the Group. Details of increase in contracted
sales are set out in paragraph headed “Property Development — Contracted sales”
of this Management Discussion and Analysis section.
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ATE - NFH H=Z4+—H > A4EB  Asac 31 December 2018, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was
o b fit g 4 A S TR R 4 £541,200,000°F- )5 approximately 41.2 million sq.m., and the attributable GFA of the Group’s land
Ko T AS R B AL A R SR MRS A) bank was approximately 20.7 million sq.m.

%520,700,000°F- 75K ©
=M AREEP ZF— NHE+ H Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018
= H - A B A
I H #4r By project
CANN
LE Y4 1)
WA NS
LB ST
(AFEHraih:)
Remaining AEH
unrecognised MR
saleable/rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended remaining unsold attributable to
HH Project T HFERM S use of the Project (carpark excluded) the Group
(EIR)
(sq.m.) (%)
= Yangze River Delia
Dl TR Shanghai CIFI Pujiang International LN Office 1,184 100.0
L Shanghai CIFI Luxury Courtyard € Residential 4,778 100.0
R i Shanghai CIFI Comfortable Joyous Bay #E Residential 399 100.0
Fif R A Shanghai CIFI Pebble Beach e Residential 14,554 100.0
B R Shanghai CIFI Pleasant Garden e Residential 3,184 100.0
Ly A Shanghai CIFI City € Residential 14,071 100.0
i AR Shanghai CIFI Samite Life e Residential 5,751 100.0
Hif WSS Shanghai CIFI Jiangwan Mansion £ Residential 7,592 100.0
b R Shanghai CIFT U Block 7N VA Office/Commercial 6,639 100.0
T R Shanghai CIFI Arthur Shire #E Residential 5,421 100.0
T SRR R Shanghai Greenland CIFI E World Center N / [EES Office/Commercial 11,745 50.0
T B Shanghai Elite Mansion kz Residential 9,942 50.0
T AL Shanghai Henderson CIFI Center Ve N VAES Residential/Office/ 24777 50.0
Commercial
B A LB Shanghai CIFI Haishang International N VA Office/Commercial 614 100.0
ki Y A ] Shanghai CIFI Haishang International frEmE Investment properties 45,400 100.0
T A Shanghai CIFI Park Mansion West e Residential 9,205 67.5
i EEE Shanghai CIFI Shilu fiE Residential 1,668 100.0
L AL Shanghai CIFI Pure Center N / [HES Office/Commercial 3,803 45.0
L JREAE D Shanghai CIFI Pure Center REmE Investment properties 29,663 45.0
L b Shanghai Shangkun CIFI Villa HE Residential 3,198 50.0
i HABRESR Shanghai BCL CIFI the Great City ik Residential 34,008 40.0
Hi BERWEFCIHA Shanghai Lujiazui Yangjing Project WA/ T Office/Commercial 14,477 50.0
I LOMEBMEMARDS  Shanghai LCM REmE Investment properties 135,377 50.0
I REEFEEAEH  Shanghai Changning District, #E Residential 10,500 100.0
Huashanliyuan Project
b AEHD Shanghai Jiuting Center /T Residential/Commercial 115,633 34.0
L s Shanghai Jiuting Center HEmE Investment properties 72,540 34.0
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j:ﬂl.’»f%ﬁ (#45) LAND BANK (Continued)
=oAL R F— NHE+ H Table4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018
E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂﬂ%ﬁ H)%lﬂ (#4F) (Continued)
?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
BR T AR
Wak /T
AN
W AL i
(MuFRaLLL)
Remaining AgEH
unrecognised Al M
saleable/rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended remaining unsold attributable to
JHH Project BHEERMN S use of the Project (carpark excluded) the Group
(Fik)
(sq.m.) (%)
T HlREEE Shanghai Baoshan District Luodian Town N / [HES Office/Commercial 42,939 25.0
FRFELEFEIUER  Meiluo Jiayuan Community No. 01
Project
T D Shanghai Office Park UG YA E S Office/Commercial 37,7124 50.0
L L) Hefei CIFI Central Park itz Residential 1,323 100.0
A8 R Hefei CIFI Private Mansion *E Residential 32,765 100.0
A JURIBEESANE M Hefei North Star CIFI Park Mansion Luzhou {1 Residential 125,731 50.0
A8 BFEMMMAR  Hefei CIFI Lake Betsuin ftz Residential 197,933 50.0
AR A ER Hefei CIFI Ronchamp Courtyard € Residential 104,535 22,5
B AR Hangzhou Henderson CIFI Palace #E Residential 9,556 100.0
U SRS Hangzhou Greenland CIFI Glorious City ¢ Residential 9,033 50.0
U AR Bt Ry Hangzhou Shunfa CIFI Honor Mansion £ Residential 21,045 30.0
WM ETIEEZZE  Hangzhou Binjiang CIFI Wanjiazhixing € Residential 695 35.0
f ERHIAEG LA Hangzhou Vanke CIFT Luna Sea T/l Residential/Commercial 43,157 33.0
BM R E L Hangzhou CIFI Hechang Metropolis [ Commetcial 1,818 100.0
Mansion
L) ARG i Suzhou CIFI Canal County e Residential 10923 100.0
| 3lih e Suzhou CIFI Luxury Courtyard e Residential 30,826 100.0
BN RHEE AR Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion *E Residential 9,440 100.0
B BRI Suzhou CIFI Private Mansion Usonian City z Residential 11,247 100.0
Villa
[ 31 E Suzhou CIFI Elegant City £ Residential 21,387 100.0
WM RN Suzhou CIFI Sunny Life € Residential 6,837 100.0
B O R Suzhou CIFI Apple Paradise FE Residential 50,679 100.0
BEM LR Suzhou Henderson CIFI City iz Residential 4910 50.0
WO RS R Suzhou CIFI Lake Mansion e Residential 47,707 40.0
Mr MERMAEML  Nanjing CIFI Yincheng Baimalanshan HE Residential 1477 51.0
MR ELE Nanjing CIFI Nine Modern Life ftE Residential 213 100.0
BRI R Nanjing CIFI Park Mansion Qinhuai #E Residential 6,905 100.0
B BESRN Ningbo CIFI Bochenfu 13'5%/ [GE2 Residential/Commercial 8,897 70.0
B WL Ningbo CIFI Shanghuchengzhang € Residential 300,106 33.0
REWEES (HE) Jiaxing CIFI Square (Commercial) V4 -LIE 3 Investment properties 82,600 100.0
1) Jiaxing CIFI Ronchamp Town fE Residential 3,501 100.0
FOL JBRERIU Zhenjiang CIFI Times £/ Residential/Office 2,056 100.0
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

(Continued)

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
BR T AR
CEL4 A
AN
W L R
(MuFRaLLL)
Remaining AgEH
unrecognised Al M
saleable/rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended remaining unsold attributable to
JHH Project BHEERMN S use of the Project (carpark excluded) the Group
(Fik)
(sq.m.) (%)
R Pan Bobai Rim
Tm JEEEERERLD  Beijing CIFl Wangxin Commercial Centre £ 4% Investment properties 4,900 100.0
o R Beijing CIFI Olympic City 7N VA E Office/Commercial 5,629 100.0
T ez Beijing CIFI International Negotiate 7N V4 Office/Commercial 326 100.0
Garden
T MRS Beijing CIFI The Upper House e Residential 13,384 80.0
T JUHEERH Beijing CIFI The Education Park N VA E Office/Commercial 82 100.0
Tx ERuEE Beijing MOMA CIFI Residence e Residential 5,351 50.0
xS A Beijing CIFI Yihexiang WA/ TR Office/Commercial 188 59.5
T B Beijing CIFI N0.26 Block LN YA E Office/Commercial 116,342 10.0
Tm KiEmE R Beijing Tianheng CIFI No.7 Courtyard /¥ Residential/Commercial 193,430 49.0
Ix BB Beijing Vanke World 7N V4 E Office/Commercial 74,708 324
W SHIEIGEESE  Shenyang Gemdale CIFI Jiugunfenghua HE Residential 850 50.0
TR0 AR SRR Shenyang CIFI Dongyuecheng /T Residential/Commercial 135,838 70.0
W AR Shenyang CIFI Luxury Mansion HE Residential 121,594 100.0
KH TR Tianjin CIFI Rosedale *E Residential 4,182 100.0
K R Tianjin CIFI Private Mansion ftE Residential 12,588 100.0
K iﬁkfﬁz;“ﬁ Tianjin Chengshizhiguang Kz Residential 109,959 25.0
Kt B Tianjin CIFI No.6 Courtyard i Residential 1,715 70.0
R e Tianjin Haishang International € Residential 499,395 20.0
HE BESEAEMEIAN  Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Dejun € Residential 15,506 100.0
Fifth Phase
HE LEEN Qingdao Shuxiang Bancheng € Residential 2,586 5.0
HE BAEREEEESE  Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Boguanjinan FE Residential 104,859 100.0
TR K Jinan Changhe Estate e Residential 98,590 40.0
W AR SBE L Jinan CIFI Yinshengtai Jinyu Lanshan #E Residential 16,823 50.0
Y T U Langfang CIFI Path Walf HE Residential 36,115 100.0
i Central Western Region
BE WEHER Chongging CIFI Ronchamp Town ftE Residential 58,816 100.0
B R Chonggqing CIFI Langyuejun € Residential 774 100.0
BE UHLH Chonggqing CIFI Purple City WME /T Office/Commercial 32,406 100.0
BE RN Chongging CIFI City € Residential 27937 100.0
Eif )i Chongging CIFI City WME /% Office/Commercial 81,817 100.0
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(Continued)

LAND BANK (Continued)
Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
BT AR
CE74 1)
WA
W AL i
(A fhfrih:)
Remaining AgEH
unrecognised Al M
saleable/rentable GFA Interest
Primary intended remaining unsold attributable to
JHH Project BHEERMN S use of the Project (carpark excluded) the Group
CEk)
(sq.m.) (%)
BE RN Chonggqing CIFI City REE Investment properties 42,460 100.0
B FURMAT LG Chongqing Dongyuan CIFI Jiangshan Yue £ /% Residential/Commercial 310,126 30.0
B JERSARRE Chonggqing CIFI Prime Orienting /% Residential /Commercial 349,148 333
RiE T Wuhan CIFT Private Mansion HE Residential 13,284 100.0
R RS Wuhan Yulong CIFI Peninsula 1£%/ [GE2 Residential/Commercial 159,079 55.0
RE BEAE Wuhan CIFI Tower /N YA Office/Commercial 44,946 51.0
R R Changsha CIFI Private Mansion € Residential 106,026 100.0
R ARG Changsha CIFI International Plaza /N VA Office/Commercial 24,097 100.0
R TR B Changsha CIFI International Plaza BEmE Investment properties 24,967 100.0
R WEAHAE Changsha CIFI Dream Mansion € Residential 6,531 80.0
[ ik Xi'an CIFI Centre /N YA ES Office/Commercial 44,979 100.0
#i South China
Tl ELER Fuzhou CIFI Riverside /¥ Residential/Commercial 3,700 100.0
el R Foshan CIFI City T/ Residential/Commercial 214,311 100.0
& HomE Hong Kong Nos. 44, 46, 48 & 50, Iz Residential Net saleable area: 100.0
44 46~ 485075 > Chung Hom Kok Road, 2,450 sq.m.
SN b No.1 Horizon Drive (26,369 sq.ft.)
B -
2450k
(26,3691 %)
(Ex Carparks 2,366,045
st GRAND TOTAL 7,303,617
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R At
AR
R
(Mufhfsch)
Total GFA under
development
HHER and held AEH
ik for future JER R
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fiik) (Fiik) (Fiik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
=y Yangtze River Delta
L EERER Shanghai CIF Evianbay i 2019 189,800 24,500 14621 100
Residential
L EEREMEDCEE  Shanghai Putwo District Changshou BEmE 2019 11,648 d5401 - 500
Community D3-6 Project Investment properties
L wREEEHER Shanghai Huangpu District, Madang Road ¥/ /2 2020 8,600 25,800 - 50.0
Project Office/Commercial
L RAMEED (BRIEEE  Shanghai Global Innovation Center (Yangpu ¥ /Tt 2020 36,500 109,500 2424 50.0
EHA) District, Dinghai Community Project) Office/Commercial
A RSN Hefei CIFI Xizi Grace City i 2020 104,800 225,00 21031 152
Residential
A MEETA Hefei CIFI Wonderful Mansion fez 2020 139,700 297,600 319,576 200
Residential
A mEDE Hefei CIFI Jiuzhu Mansion fE 2019 22,600 56400 3,151 1000
Residential
AL EERE1907 Hefei CIFl Metro Politan ixd 2020 111,400 245,000 252819 17.0
Residential
A8 HiENsHRA Hefei New Station District, No. 215 Project ¢ 2020 85,500 154000 - 510
Residential
A BEATKT Hefei CIFI Lake Mansion fe/Hi% 2020 130,900 295,900 2668 25
Residential/Commetcial
A BERRLL Hefei CIFI Glory Land i 2020 151,400 229,700 182910 300
Residential
A BT ILE Hefei CIFI Jade Seal fkx/H% 2020 178,000 387,100 261,776 254
Residential/Commercial
A TTIBEME (ERE L7045 Hefel Landscape (Luyang Districe, No.1704 {5 2020-2021 92,200 174,200 15,853 510
JEH) Project) Residential
A FREXZQIDRBSHIEH  Hefe Xinshan District, No. XZQTD238 fEE 2020-2021 86,000 154,800 - 340
Project Residential
N RS Hangzhou CIFI Junyuefu e 2019 57,394 114,788 112265 20
Residential
M R S Hangzhou Longfor CIFI Crystal Central HE 2019 34,172 95,082 19,525 20.0
Residential
JOERE N (SR AR | —F— /AR 55



B PG ks B 2 B

Management Discussion and Analysis

iﬂkf#ﬁ (#45) LAND BANK (Continued)
=oAL R F— NHE+ H Table4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018
E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂ@%ﬁ Hﬁﬂﬂ (#4F) (Continued)
?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R
ARG
kg
(RfLffpHch)
Total GFA under
development
HHEE and held KEH
HUE for future L4174
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
WM EE R Hangzhou CIFI Powerlong East Lake City ~~ f£E 2019 88494 203,536 199,737 50.0
Residential
UM AR S Hangzhou CIF Dongyuan Majestic Mansion £ 2019 93,300 201,000 61651 50.0
Residential
il R B EH Hangzhou Xiaoshan District, Beigandanguan £,/ 2019 11,400 37,700 - 300
Project Residential/Commercial
Wl TRERESRER Hangzhou Jianggan District, Yuanzhuyibao % 2020 3,900 26,100 - 50.0
Project Commercial
WM EBAT Hangzhou Haishang Mingyue West lixd 2019 21,200 46,700 45,59 330
Residential
il E%EEEIER Hangzhou Linan District, Tianmushan Project %}M}fﬁ/ B3 2021 1,195,200 49,900 - 100.0
Office/Commercial
il EERERMEEE Hangzhou Linan District, Yugian Project N YA 2021 755,400 35,900 - 100.0
Office/Commercial
WM AR (EEEFLUMH  Hangzhoo CIFI Ronchamp County (Linan £ 200 63,500 158,700 7843 50.0
EUED District, Qingshanhu, Keji Cheng Project) ~ Residential
M EEERGELES WAL Hanghou CIFI Prime Lond (Xiaoshan i 2019 26,600 71,800 7293 50.0
District, Shushan Project) Residential
Bl EEME (EEEF WMA Hangzhou The Glorious City (Lin'an Districe, /T 200 120,800 333400 - 50.0
HEHIER) Qingshan Lake Sci-tech Ciy Light Rail -~ Residential Commercial
Project)
WM BUEEECEFEER  Hangzhou Xiaoshan District, Shushan Unit, 2020-2021 98,300 275,100 - 533
Zengjiagiao Project Residential
il Bl E R Hangzhou Lin‘an District, Wuyue Mansion 158 2019-2021 11,600 23300 . 500
North Project Residential
N AR 5EH Hangzhou Yuhang District, Chaoshan No.13 £ 2019 62,200 87,100 - 490
Project Residential
B LR Suzhou CIFl Wajiang Mansion frg 2019 96,78 173,300 165,316 500
Residential
BN EEA KR Suzhou Henderson CIFI Riverside Park ftE /% 2019 NG 115,118 82,706 300
Residential/Commercial N/A
BN AR Suzhou Henderson CIFI Discovery Island BN fﬁ/ [EE 2019 R 100,416 33316 30.0
Office/Commercial N/A
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

(Continued)

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
kg
(RfLffpHch)
Total GFA under
development
HH3E and held KEH
HUE for future L4174
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BN R EMIER Suzhou Wuzhong District, West Mountain £ 2019 161,766 32,393 - 100.0
Project Residential
Bl AmERPEREER) Suzhou Tnner Peace (Wuzhong District, Luzhi £ 2019 28,600 2900 - 50.0
Project) Residential
BN RHREEDER Suzhou Wuzhong District, Xukou Project % 2019 48500 121,300 - 50.0
Residential
BN KEER5ER Suzhou Taicang County, Chengxiang ftE 2019 49,000 83,400 - 333
No. 3 Project Residential
M BRI (R0 Suzhou Great Mansion (Hugiu District, e 2020-2021 80,700 169,400 25,742 350
JEA) No. 60 Project) Residential
BN BARINZ (BI85 Suzhou Kunshan Lakeside Mansion (Bacheng  fEE 2019-2020 128,200 248,800 63,610 311
JEfE)) County No.12-8 Project) Residential
BN KEBREE(KAIEE  Suhow Taicang Coastal Mansion (Shasi Town £ 2019 56,700 102,000 - 279
JEH) Project) Residential
BN R A R EIE Suzhou Taicang Livhe Town, Yinhewan i 2019 21,200 74,900 . 166
Project Residential
BN RAEMRE MR (REWIBE Sushou Zhangjiagang CIFI Majestic Mansion £ 2019 69,800 73,300 14,568 100.0
2013-B28-A5H) (Zhangjiagang Nanhu Road, Residential
No. 2013-B28-A Project)
M SRR S (MR Suzhou Zhangjiagang CIFI Majestic Mansion £ 2019 27,100 40,600 4387 50.0
2013-B278H) (Zhangjiagang Jingang Avenue, Residential
No. 2013-B27 Project)
fis MBS (IEEGS4EH)  Nanjing CIFl Mansion (Jiangning Distict, £ 2019 73,200 80,500 - 490
G4 Project) Residential
B MEZAKSE(TEREGSE  Nanjing CIFl Honor Mansion (Jiangoing ~ fEE 2020 84,000 231,500 - 490
EH) District, G36 Project) Residential
s MERRKMT%EG  Nanjing CIFl Times Mansion (Jiangning {56/ 2020 54200 178,200 - 200
JEH) District, G36 Project) Residential/Commercial
iR L (T=EGeEH) Nanjing Noble Mansion (Jiangning District, % 2019 14,700 29400 - 50.0
G6 Project) Residential
i TEELENGSER Nanjing Jiangning District, Jiulong Lake EIN V4 F 2020 26,700 133,300 - 330
68 Project Office/Commercial
B AAEREN (AT Nanjing Jurong Grand Mansion (Baohua ftE 2019 52,400 131,000 2,800 33.0
FHETERTER) Mudan Road West Side Project) Residential
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=oAL R F— NHE+ H Table4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018
E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂ@%ﬁ Hﬁﬂﬂ (#4F) (Continued)
?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
EE ST
(Rufps)
Total GFA under
development
BHEE and held A%EH
ik for future JER R
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
B EER=ITE Ningbo CIFI Powetlong Sanjiang Palace £ 2019 51,600 103,200 82511 50.0
Residential
= MEBLK Ningbo CIFI Landscape Poetry fi 2019-2020 184,200 300,300 26,594 50
Residential
CERY: e Nanchang CIFI Lingyun Mansion iz 2020 28,000 50,400 45,940 340
Residential
B RSO Wi CIF] Times City i 2019 137900 413,800 199,896 300
Residential
B BRIV (LETER) Wi CIF Mansion (Jiangyin City Project) € 2019 126300 220,000 2445 100
Residential
B BRI (BN IER) W Implicit Talent (Binhu District, lixd 2020 21,600 4200 - 50,0
Heliekou Project) Residential
W HRERE Wusi Yixing Grand Lakeview 2/ Hi% 20182021 T 485,665 - 50.0
Residential/ Commercial N/A
N R Wenzhou CIE] Furure City e 2019 51400 139,100 134975 340
Residential
BN BRI Wenzhou Country Garden CIFI Lake Mansion £ 2019 74,800 149,700 3172 50.0
Residential
B e T AHE Wenzhou Metropolis (Leging City, i 2020 65,100 130,200 26,634 140
1A) Jingkai District Project) Residential
WM AT RSB (BT Wenzhou CIF] Oujiang World's Metropolis {5 2020 131,100 219,900 1765% 340
[C-03AE8R ) (Oujiang River Estuary Area, Residential
C-03AE Project)
B EEETEES BIIE Wenzhou CIFI Oujiang Worlds Metropolis £ 2021 148,400 178,100 - 340
MEC-1FER) (Oujiang River Estuary Area, Residential
C-11FH Project)
B BRETE S (I Wenzhou CIFI Oujiang Worlds Metropolis ~ {£5¢ 2001 141,800 212,700 - 310
TEC0sAH) (Oujiang River Estuary Area, Residential
C-05A Project)
B BT OEEDIL- AR Wenshon Yueging City, Centnal District, £ 200 25,300 65,800 - 330
E-bL1-1 Project Residential
BN RN (B A M Wenzhou Dongchen Mansion (Cannan e 2020 47,200 103,900 6,468 35.0
1HA) County, Taishang Town Project) Residential
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
EE ST
(Rufps)
Total GFA under
development
BHEE and held A%EH
HUE for future L4174
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
A I Jiaxing CIFI Exquisite Mansion fig 2019 18,000 36,200 19,847 1000
Residential
ER EEMAM City Jiaxing Jiashan CIFI M City i 2019 64,900 142,700 30,500 1000
Residential
ER AT Jiaxing CIFI The Lanscape of Pinghu iz 2019 26,000 39,000 36,920 1000
Residential
ER RN Jiasing CIFI Star City fi 2019 107,300 214,600 - 100.0
Residential
E FER00-4%8E Jiasing Jiashan County, No. 201242 Project {7 2019 25,100 45,000 - 490
Residential
R FERoeER Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 20167 Project {1 2019 14,500 29,000 - 490
Residential
BE EENMUNN (EERER  Jiaing CIFI One City (Jiashan County, fig 200 58,900 106,000 71478 490
A) Huimin Project) Residential
ER EEEOER Jiasing Jiashan County, No. 34 Project iz 2020 35,600 89,100 3760 300
Residential
AR EEEsARE Jiasing Jiashan County, No. 54 Project fe 2020 48,400 120,100 3757 290
Residential
S SIISYALE Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 2016-52-1 frE 200 43,100 107,700 - 300
Project Residential
2R EEER018-65IRR Jiaxing Jiashan County, Yaozhuang e 2020 39,100 78,100 - 50.0
No. 2018-6 Project Residential
TR BRI KB SRS Xuzhou Aristocrat Palace (Gulou District, fie /i 2020 62,600 163,500 - 49.0
L8R Huanghe North Road Project) Residential/ Commercial
M BERER (AT T2EE  Xuzhou CIFI Dragon Regency (Xingshanzi £ 2019 57400 160,800 90,313 50.0
K=A%H) Industrial Park, Dasanjiao Project) Residential
BN BEITB AILE3GS  Xuzhou CIFINoble Mansion (Tongshan £ 2019 48,000 96,000 50,728 50.0
JEH) District, No.36 Project) Residential
B HN (RVTETHEER)  Wubu New Joy Mansion (Yijiang District, £ 200 124,100 272,900 8,199 400
Yuanmutang Project) Residential
BN ERSANRE (KEE R R Changzhou CIFI Park Mansion (Tianning ftE 2020 68,000 149,600 4,624 100.0
JA) District, Changgaoji South Project) Residential
BN KR ERERENTER)  Changzhon Culivated Mansion (Zhonglow £ 2020 51,600 113,500 7269 400
District, Huanhua Project) Residential
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E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂ@%ﬁ Hﬁﬂﬂ (#4F) (Continued)
?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
EE ST
(Rufps)
Total GFA under
development
HH3E and held KEH
HUE for future L4174
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
Bl A (B K35 Quzhou The Glorious Ciry (Kecheng District, 1/ 2020 97,600 182,100 13013 500
EHIAH) Railway Station Wanda East Project) Residential/Commercial
Pl FIF GERIERIS013EH)  Nantong Jinghai Mansion (Gangzha District, (£ 2020 56,500 78400 6,54 510
No. R18013 Project) Residential
AN IREATCRILESLAEE  Taizhou Origin of Taizhou (Jaojiang Distrct, {7 /% 2020 28,200 57,400 - 95.0
1EH) Hongjia Street Project) Residential/Commercial
b Pan Bobai Rin
x ElEMEEE0074EE  Beijing Fangshan Districe, Gongchen Street,  HAME /% 2019 10,384 25,960 - 50.0
No. 0007 Project Office/Commercial
Ir YEREiEER0HH Beijing Fengtai District, Zhuangwei B0~ M /T 2019 5,200 15,500 - 500
Project Office/Commercial
5 WER(FUEFLEESE  Beiing Ciry of CIFI (Fangshan Districr, £ 2019 53,600 101,500 - 167
EH) Fangshan Street No.2 Project) Residential
15 WEEST BBEZTA  Beiing CIFl Joy Palace (Chaoyang Districe,  {F% 2019 59,500 89,300 - 90
Fikft2002-865H ) Sunhe Town, Xidian Village, 2902-86  Residential
Project)
L ERER RERRIIRE  Beijing CIFI Lakeside Mansion (Shunyi e/ 2020 65,600 120,200 - 45
REIER) District, Shayu Town Matouzhuang Project) - Residential/Commercial
T5 BEFE EGEREER)  Beijing Brocade to Home (Chaoyang District, 2019 78,000 194,900 - 260
Dongba Project) Residential
Ix KEEE(EGEATAE)  Beiing Roal River Villa (Chaoyang District, 2020 93,500 58,900 10,783 200
Sunhe Project) Residential
W RRORI CKRIERERAT  Shenyang Fastern Tree Shade City North lixd 2019-2022 89,354 196,580 - 50.0
AfEmEe) (Dadong District, Vocational and Technical ~ Residential
College South Project)
W0 BEK(FREMHSE  Sheyang Jingchen Mansion (Yuhong District, e/l 2022 85,600 188,300 - 100.0
JEH) Xihe Road, No 2 Project) Residential/Commercial
Bl MEABE AT Shenyang CIFI Metropolis A.D. frz /% 2001 16,200 113,700 69,776 200
Residential/Commercial
W PR RIS Shenyang Zhongnan CIFI Harmonious (Tiexi g/ 2020-2021 99,500 199,100 36,085 40.0
HAER) District, Dongyang Zhigang Project) Residential/Commercial
Bl JOEAEN ETEESH  Shenyang Central Palace (Shenhe District,  fE 2020 29,400 223,600 22,588 100.0
SO5ETEH) Tuanjie Road No. 59 Project) Residential
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Table 4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018

?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
EE ST
(Rufps)
Total GFA under
development
iR and held A%H
HUE for future L4174
Primary bR T4 development Interest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
KRR Tianjin CIF] Tianyuefenghua i 2019 150,241 202825 157,207 250
Residential
K BEHEHEEWEEE  Tianjin Binhai New District, Sino-Singapore £ 2019 20,305 49735 - 35.7
JEH Tianjin Eco-city, Toutism Area Project Residential
kit REATI01FEREAK  Tanjin Olympic New Era (finghai District, £ 2019 55,800 139,400 - 400
WHPER) Tuanboyishan County Project) Residential
Tt WhESYERA Tianjin Hexi District, Diecai Road Project K 2021 24,000 48,000 - 3.0
Residential
BE MEREEEIR Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Starry City e 2019 104900 187,000 18,764 50.0
Residential
B MERERLET Qingdao CIFI Yinshengtai Zhenggang frz 2020 98,600 243,700 51,772 50.0
Mansion Residential
B EBBBMA LML) Qingdao Fairview Park Mansion (Jiaozhou {5 /i 201 156,400 299,200 - 50.0
City, Taihu Road Project) Residential/Commercial
#E MEEE Qingdzo Boguansinghai lizd 2020 42,700 93,600 43483 100.0
Residential
B8 WE-0 Qingdzo Boguanyipin fex/HE 2019 32,000 34700 24814 100.0
Residential/Commercial
e JOREANEE & (FE Jinan CIFI Stage (Licheng District, Fengshenln £ 2019 40,000 112,000 - 100.0
BIlEEER) Project) Residential
W R BWESATER)  Jinan Ciry of Starry Sky (Licheng Districe, {6,/ T2 2001 126,600 278,600 - 25
Hancanghe Project) Residential/ Commercial
e BN Jinan Boguanshanyue frz 2020 24900 60,300 4,969 510
Residential
TN Jinan Ruigongguan fE 2021 37,800 128,600 - 1000
Residential
BZHE RN (RERAER  Shijiazhuang Wise Mansion (Yuhua District,  fF%E/ T 2020 28,700 92,200 - 65.0
JEH) Nanli Village Project) Residential/Commercial
K FEOOEEHANGES  Dalin Family Vills Shahekou District, — {F/Fi% 2019 16,100 16300 - 100.0
BH) Police Affiars Training Base Project) Residential/Commercial
B 2 Lingi Xinghe City g/ 2001 203,100 408,700 83416 255
Residential/Commercial
M BB R Linyi CIFI Yinshengtai Boguanxincheng Fast  {£€ 2019-2020 86,700 153,000 - 700
Residential
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?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R
AR
kg
(RfLffpHch)
Total GFA under
development
HHEE and held REH
HUE for future Mt
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fiik) (Eik)  (Eik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BT MR A Linyi CIFI Yinshengtai Boguansincheng West £ 2020 59,900 21,100 - 700
Residential
i EER{RBER Linyi Luozhuang District, Huawu Road g/ % 20202021 74,600 186400 - 100.0
Project Residential/Commercial
EE E%EARA0ER Yantai Development Zone, A2 & AL0 Project £,/ T 2021202 189,100 378,200 - 100.0
Residential/Commercial
Wy WEER(EXESENE  Weing Waterfronr Mansion (Kuiwen e 2020 48,800 151,500 24,145 400
JEH) District, Jinma Road Project) Residential
it BRI LIER)  Zibo Starry City (High-tech Zone, e 2019 33,600 67,300 28,674 1000
Huabei Road Project) Residential
R RN (AR B Jining City of Starry Life (High-tech Zone, i 2020 58,400 64,200 - 5.0
HA) Fangyuanxinju South Project) Residential
H Central Western Region
B ERE Chongging CIFI The essence of River iz 200 26,400 105,600 99,707 50.0
Residential
BE MEAIN Chongging CIFI Jiangzhou Impression i 2022 128,000 473,600 130,498 35.0
Residential
R METIRE Chongging CIFI Waves River fbz 201 293,000 759,800 21,99 $3
Residential
BE EEENL REETE  Chongging CIFI Panorama (Yubei District,  HE /1% 2022 21,100 601,600 193963 300
A Huayu Lijia Project) Residential Commercial
B RERRKERE Chongging Yuzhong District, Shidaitianje ~ {EE 200 14,400 60,000 - 330
Project Residential
B REGTIHEKASEE)  Chongging Superstar (fiangbei District, i 2019 4500 15,700 3013 100
Dashiba Project) Residential
FE WIEER-1FER Chongging Shapingba District, fz /% 2019 8,500 27,700 - 500
F6-1/F7 Project Residential/Commercial
B OLIERE(EEEAR  Chongging Verdant Landscape (Banan i 2020-2021 200,200 389,500 4182 1000
1803288 ) District, Yu Dong No. 18032 Project) ~~ Residential
BE ZUWEEHELRNEE  Chongging Cloud Poem (Banan Distric, ftE 2020 92,000 230,000 4,109 35.0
180518 H) Yudong Xiaonanhai 18051 Project) Residential
BB WBR (R RS Chongging Nature Grace (Lingjieng New {57/ ¥ 2019-2021 162,000 444,600 - 333
180615 H) Area, Yuelai 18061 Project) Residential/ Commercial
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?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R A
ARG
EE ST
(RfLffpHch)
Total GFA under
development
BHEE and held A%EH
ik for future JER R
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fik) (Bik)  (Fik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
FE TUEL (WIHERAK  Chongging The Landscape (Liangjiang New £ /T 2019-2021 161,700 387,300 - 333
18065781 ) Area, Yuelai 18065 Project) Residential/Commercial
R EHEERNERBR Wuhan Hanyang District, Hangiao Village /1 20192021 103,822 481,010 - 5.0
Project Section B Residential/Commercial
RE T/ MUE ELEE%  Wuhan Noble Wonderland (Hongshan g/ M 2021 247,500 784,800 - 347
fiK1-2-4%H) District, Qingling Village K1-2-4 Project)  Residential Commercial
RE MLEFERNGER Wuhan Hongshan District, Qingling Village, 2021 204,600 058,800 - 510
K3 Project Residential
RE BEIER LEEROH  Wahan CIFI Jiangsia Palace (Jiangsia i 2020 70,200 238,400 1609 500
1HA) District, Qixin Village Project) Residential
R A Changsha Henderson Arch of Triumph fie /i 2018-2019 TR 230,222 227,904 30.0
Residential Commercial N/A
R BRI Changsha Kaif District, Dadi Project fiE 2018-2019 518,697 830,356 65,499 50.0
Residential
R MEHFN (KUERAE  Changsha CIFI City Mansion (Tianin fig/H¥ 2019 30,100 90,200 - 700
EH) District, Aoyuan South Project) Residential/Commercial
Fi% IBRARAHEEHERE X CIFI Park Avenve (Chanba Ecological /M /i 2019 27,500 151,100 - 490
1EH) District Project) Office/Commercial
Ji% SRR (IR E K E  Xvan CIFI Honor Mansion (New Area B 2020 30,700 107,500 - 700
IR District, Daming Palace Residential Residential
Project)
% HEN(HEHEHUEH)  Xi'an Essence Mansion (Changning New lixd 2019 20,600 41,200 12,159 340
District 31 mu Project) Residential
Fi% LU (FRAEZERN  Xi'an Landscape (Xixian New Area, fr 2020-2023 200,300 387,900 12,599 480
- E%IE ) Qinhan Lanchi 2nd Avenue Project) Residential
BB (BERBEER  Chengdu Glorious Flower City (Chenghua ~ [1E 2019 84,900 169,800 3,547 300
1: A District, Jinxiuhuacheng Project) Residential
A BRI E R Chengdu Chenghua District, fig /g 2020 42,400 202,300 - 30.0
Beichengzhongyang Project Residential/Commetcial
i BRI (RERLERER) Chengdu Rivera Impression (Wuhou District, lixd 2019 10,700 20,200 - 25
Hongpailou Project) Residential
WA S0 (ERRSHER) Chengdu Tang Mansion (Shuangliu District, £,/ % 2019 49,800 99,600 . 340
75 Mu Project) Residential/ Commercial
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W R
AR
FHSTT
(Ruikuafs)
Total GFA under
development
HHER and held REH
WA for future Mt
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fiik) (Eik)  (Eik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
B AFEEFBIOHEE  Chengdu Jinniu District, Weijianian 102 mu £ 20202021 68,500 137,000 - 100.0
Project Residential
B £BERESGC-2018-20%F  Yinchuan Jinfeng District, Yindi NoG-2018- £ 2020201 88,700 133,000 - 400
20 Project Residential
I 2BEG018-195 Yinchuan Jinfeng District, No. G2018-19 ~ fF%E 20202021 101,400 152,100 - 400
Project Residential
B MEEE(GERSEAREN  Guiyang CIFT Skyline (Baiyun District, /g 200 64,300 199,200 16,114 100
G(18) (485 H) Yanshanhong Nanhu G(18)048 Project)  Residential Commercial
B MG Zhengzhou CIFI Grand Mansion %4 2020 69,400 173,600 13,549 60.0
Residential
G AE1ss7 GRARIEIRR ) Xuchang Anno Domini (Dongcheng Districe £ 2020 95,300 159,800 - 100.0
Project) Residential
TR BEE2018-205E H Xiangtan Yuetang District, No. 201820~ £ 2021-2022 66,600 186,500 - 50.0
Project Residential
# South China
B SBHREATES GEEAT Gunghon CIFI Poly Flowers Bay (Livan 17 2019 31900 143,600 - 35
BB AL ARMER) District No.111, Bathua Road, Bai Hua ~ Residential
Xiang Liao Chang Project)
P& ML (RBEEGC2017-  Nanning CIFI Landscape (Liangging District, {EE 200 25,900 67,500 - 100
095%E) GC2017-095 Project) Residential
R MR (RAEEA S Nanning City of Midea & CIFI (Xixiangrang 200 26,300 65,800 - 50.0
30HIEH ) District, Xiw'an Road 39 actes Project) Residential
B WERE§ER Xiamen Xiangan District, 2 MuProject 18 2020 8,100 19,400 - 100.0
Residential
= SRS (HEEEH)  Saya Yalong Bay Project N VA E 2019 46,930 18772 1909 50.0
Office/Commercial
il JERELA Foshan CIFI Homeland fz/ M 2019-2020 114319 285,19 131,505 1000
Residential/ Commercial
il EAEFE (EERALEH005  Foshan Joy & Peace (Shunde District, Beijioo £ 200 81,500 203,600 - 600
A No. 003 Project) Residential
bl =KEZFEEE09EH  Foshan Sanshui Districe, Yundonghai Sereet £ 2020 27,900 69,800 - 100.0
No. 009 Project Residential

64 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



WP W B o B

Management Discussion and Analysis

iﬂ'—’tf#ﬁ (#%) LAND BANK (Continued)
=oAL R F— NHE+ H Table4: Breakdown of the Group’s land bank as at 31 December 2018
E"I_‘_' H Hg:tﬂ@%ﬁ Hﬁﬂﬂ (#4F) (Continued)
?EE\‘ H %‘Jﬁ (%) By project (Continued)
W R
AR
kg
(RfLffpHch)
Total GFA under
development
HHEE and held REH
HUE for future Mt
Primary e AR development Incerest
Intended use Estimated Year b (excluding BHE  attributable
HH Project of the Project of Completion Site Area carpaks) Pre-sold  to the Group
(Fiik) (Eik)  (Eik)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
il FRRELHRER Foshan Gaoming District, Xijiang New Town £ 2021 81,100 243,400 - 340
Project Residential
IF KR (B HEAEE  Jiangmen Natural Gift (Heshan City, i 2020 51,200 153,700 - 490
IFEH) Fangyuanyuedao Shoufu Project) Residential
TH S4h BT ERR) Jiangmen The One Mansion (Pengjiang ftE 200 60,500 16,400 4035 400
District No. 4 Project) Residential
M EENAE Jiangmen Pengjiang District, No. 11 Project 2020 3,900 10,800 - 100.0
Residential
il SRR Zhongshan Nantou Town, Suixi Vilage {1 200 26,300 65,900 . 100
Project Residential
il FEEAERR16-163%EH  Zhongshen Nancou Town, Suixi Village ~ {EF 200 39,800 99,400 . 330
No.162-163 Project Residential
il EEBBERRW02-17-0135  Zhongshan Nantou Town, Suixi Village No. ~ E% 201 11,000 33,100 - 30
A W02-17-0135 Project Residential
il ETEEERAW02-17-0137  Zhongshan Nantou Town, Suixi Village o, {E 2020 34,300 85,700 - 20
TEH W02-17-0137 Project Residential
SN AR (AEHEEE  Quanshou Shishi CIFL City, (Baogai Town £ 200 68,000 169,900 8,112 1000
20175-40%8H ) No. 20178-40 Project) Residential
5% WRIE (MHI0YHE)  Dongguan Landscape (Shipai Village, i 2020 33,900 84,700 - 100.0
No. 25 Project) Residential
i BA Hong Kong Maya lixd 2020 3816sqm.  Net saleable area: 50.0
Residential (41,0805t 21,368 sq.m.
3816FHK  (2300005qf)
(4080  ERmH:
FAR) 6Tk
(230,000
iR
(s Carpark 6,127,523 290,595
FEE R TER AR B M EE  TOTAL GFA of Properties under development 33,859,032 5,791,100
L and held for future development
MR BT W RHERAR  GRAND TOTAL (Completed, under 41,159,249
) development and for future development)
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HEMRER - 8 AEBBEENRE
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AR AL A A )\ AR i) HE R
7 48 T A 4 55 12,400,000°F K > Hop
A A [ A HE 4515 7,100,000°F K o A
£ M L b Y I A R AR A By AR
76,868,000,000 JG > FH 7% £ [H] AR 45 R
A B TE B 0 AR £ AR RN R
41,113,000,000 7C o AR 45 4% 4 8] B A5 i
(1 72 56 T R L B AG MG A A A4 [t
T AR P2 0 AR £ B
T KN ERH6,1900C ©
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LAND BANK (Continued)

Land acquisition in 2018
In 2018, the Group acquired interests in a total of 93 new projects. During the
year, the Group continued utilizing joint ventures strategies to jointly develop

the newly acquired projects.

Total planned GFA of the Group’s land acquisition in 2018 amounted to
approximately 12.4 million sq.m., out of which 7.1 million sq.m. were
attributable to the Group’s equity interests. Total contracted consideration of
the Group’s land acquisition amounted to approximately RMB76,868 million,
out of which RMB41,113 million were payable by the Group according to its
equity interests in relevant projects. Based on the Group’s attributable GFA
acquired and the attributable acquisition considerations, the Group’s average land

acquisition cost in 2018 was approximately RMBG6,190 per sq.m.
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Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018

LAY |
T ST 4
K%M RATR (R4 H AR LA
i 46 RABER)  Auriburable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned GFA BRA B 1 S Bt land cost
Wi BH TERHNG equity 0 0 ¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carparks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(AR S/
CEik) CEAR) Rk (ARE) (AR Fiik)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBIsq.m.)
M H%EXEUER [LE3 100% 1,195,200 49900 29900 159830000 159,830,000 3,03
Hangzhow  Linan District, Tianmushan Project Commercial
ir R [ 100% 755,400 35,900 BI00 68E000 68,620,000 1911
Hangzhou  Linan District, Yugian Project Commercial
M B LR R i 50% 63,500 158,700 9400 1763500000 881,750,000 1,1
Hangzhou  Linan District, Qingshanhu, Keji Cheng Project Residential
e MLER R EERH {2/ M 95% 28200 57,400 54500 346200000 328,890,000 6,031
Taizhou Jiaojiang District, Hongjia Street Project Residential/ Commercial
B B 048R fiz 51% 92,200 174,200 88,800 1,784,700,000 910,200,000 10245
Hefei Luyang District, No.1704 Project Residential
A MiH013-B28-ABUEH i 100% 69,500 73,300 TBI00 609770000 609,770,000 8319
Zhangjiagang  Nanhu Road, No. 2013-B28-A Project Residential
Kk Gk HE2013-B27EH iz 50% 27,100 40,600 20300 287460000 143,730,000 7,080
Zhangjiagang ~ Jingang Avenue, No. 2013-B27 Project Residential
L HifEE S ERH /N YA E 50% 36500 109,500 54800 2,980,000,000 490,000,000 2715
Shanghai Yangpu District, Dinghai Community Project Office/Commercial
s HHEHRTEH fiz 0% 53,500 58900 11800 3365000000 673,000,000 57,131
Beijing Chaoyang District, Sunhe Project Residential
kL MR = FORH i 100% 13,800 21,600 2600 95620000 95,620,000 44n
Qingdao Jiaozhou District, Boguanjinan East Project Residential
Hh A R T iz 100% 63,700 136,200 136200 402520000 402,520,000 2955
Qingdao Jiaozhou District, Boguanjinan West Project Residential
il FEERERG-1RA fig 100% 18,600 58,700 58700 148300000 148,300,000 252
Qingdao Huangdao District, Boguanxinghai First Phase Project Residential
#h EEERESE_IER fiE 100% 24,100 34900 34900 161620000 161,620,000 461
Qingdao Huangdao District, Boguanxinghai Second Phase Project Residential
Hh R AE— R g/ mE 100% 32,000 34700 34700 154740000 154,740,000 4459
Qingdao Chengyang District, Boguanyipin Project Residential/Commercial
Hh SRR ER TR iz 100% 106,700 70,500 0500 17380000 173,820,000 2,466
Qingdao Chengyang District, Dejun Fifth Phase Project Residential
il GRER B % 100% §7.400 4400 44200 304320000 304320000 6885
Qingdao Chengyang District, Shuxiangjiayuan Project Residential
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T ) EI b ) Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
FKH  REER ZF— )EMNEHIKE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
(#F)
HEAh
wE REmH g
A%EH REWH AABER + A
i 4 ABEHER)  Adbuable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned GFA MMM WANE land cost
Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(MRS
CEAk) CEAk) CEik) (AR¥)  (ARW) Tk
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBJsq.m.)
il b EFBILBUEH iz 51% 24900 60,300 30800 185,730,000 94,720,000 3,080
Jinan Shizhong District, Boguanshanyue Project Residential
i JRE B R i 70% 86,700 153,000 107,100 291,890,000 204,320,000 1,908
Linyi Beicheng District, Boguanxincheng East Project Residential
il TR HRER fiz 70% 59,900 21,100 154800 302370000 211,660,000 1,368
Linyi Beicheng District, Boguanxincheng West Project Residential
A FEE01248H E 49% 25,100 45,200 248 401860000 196,910,000 8891
Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 2012-42 Project Residential
R FER0167ER i 49% 14500 29,000 14200 232080000 113,720,000 8,003
Jiaxing Jiashan Councy, No. 2016-7 Project Residential
R EEREREH i 499 58,900 106,000 SL900 789260000 386,740,000 7446
Jiaxing Jiashan County, Huimin Project Residential
B THEATSER fiz 100% 4500 15,700 15,700 131,000000 131,000,000 8344
Chongging ~ Jiangbei District, Dashiba Project Residential
£ WIEElREG-1FTEH 2/ Hig 50% 8,500 27,700 13900 212000000 106,000,000 7,69
Chongging ~ Shapingba District, F6-1/F7 Project Residential/Commercial
R TEEAKLHEH iz 50% 70,200 238400 119200 1501710000 750,860,000 6299
Wuhan Jiangxia District, Qixin Village Project Residential
fih il fiz 50% 26,600 71,800 35900 1271300000 635,650,000 17,706
Hangzhou  Xiaoshan District, Shushan Project Residential
e BRI HEH fE/ % 40% 99,500 199,100 79600 1313950000 525,580,000 6599
Shenyang Tiexi District, Dongyang Zhigang Project Residential/ Commercial
A FEERE iz 30% 35,600 89,100 26700 630,750,000 189,230,000 7079
Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 34 Project Residential
28 BEESHRR i 29% 48,400 120,100 34800 850320000 246,590,000 7,080
Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 3 Project Residential
&5 TR fig 100% 126,300 220000 220000 1,565,580,000  1,565,580,000 7116
Wuxi Jiangyin City Project Residential
) Brekitio4stEE fiz 50% 73,800 96,000 48000 675380000 337,690,000 7035
Ningbo Yuyao City, No.24 Project Residential
) frBkiossEH iz 50% 65,800 105,300 2700 762880000 381440000 745
Ningbo Yuyao City, No.29 Project Residential
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Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)

FKH  REER ZF— )EMNEHIKE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)

(#F)
HEAh

wE REmH g

A%EH REWH AARERE + A

i A 1 (AHBHR)  Auributable Average

The Group's Planned GFA  planned A WAMH  WANE land cost

Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding

City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)

(AR S/

CEAR) CEER) CEik) (AR¥)  (ARW¥) Tk

(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)

S BtitacE A i 50% 30800 76900 8500 532280000 266,140,000 6922
Ningbo Yuyao City, No.26 Project Residential

£t fkirsE R i 50% 13,800 22,100 1,100 134360000 67,180,000 6,080
Ningbo Yuyao City, No.27 Project Residential

il RS 162-16350 R B fiz 33% 39,800 99,400 32800 529000000 174,570,000 530
Zhongshan  Nantou Town, Suixi Village No.162-163 Project Residential

& EEREFHAREH lizd 5% 31,600 47400 26,100 130800000 71,940,000 2759
Qingdao Huangdao District, Shuxiang bancheng F2 Project Residential

M B EES07s-408H i 100% 68,000 169,900 169900 1,075,000,000 1,075,000,000 6327
Quanzhou  Shishi City, Baogai Town No. 2017840 Project Residential

i JERER 8013 H fig 51% 56,500 78,400 40000 849750000 433,370,000 10839
Nantong Gangzha District, No. R18013 Project Residential

ide] FARREH fiz 100% 55,300 159,800 159800 601,100,000 601,100,000 376
Xuchang Dongcheng District Project Residential

By B {3 1803288 H #E 100% 200,200 389,500 389,500 1,620,000,000  1,620,000000 4159
Chongqing  Banan District, Yu Dong No. 18032 Project Residential

it EERlIER i 100% 33,600 67,300 67300 120,800,000 120,800,000 1,795
Zibo High-tech Zone, Huabei Road Project Residential

EE FHEASRH % 34% 28,000 50400 17100 147310000 50,090,000 29%
Nanchang High-tech Zone No. 49 Project Residential

BT TR AP fiz 33% 52400 131,000 2000 790800000 260960,000 6037
Zhenjiang Jurong city, Baohua Mudan Road West Side Project Residential

Gl PSR Hwoo-17-0135%8 H iz 3% 11,000 33,100 10900 148,890,000 49,130,000 4498
Zhongshan ~ Nantou Town, Suixi Village No. W02-17-0135 Project Residential

Gilll R Fwoo-17-01378H i 2% 34,300 85,700 18900 326440000 71,820,000 3,809
Zhongshan ~ Nantou Town, Suixi Village No. W02-17-0137 Project Residential

M S fr 100% 68,000 149,600 149,600 1,530,000 1,530,000,000 10227
Changzhou  Tianning District, Changgaoji South Project Residential

il JEfE e oos S H fiz 60% 81,500 203,600 122,160 1,980,000,000 1,188,000,000 9725
Foshan Shunde District, Beijiao No. 003 Project Residential

HE R BT R #E 5% 58400 64,200 35300 139540000 76,750,000 2174
Jining High-tech Zone, Fangyuanxinju South Project Residential

JOERE N (SR AR | —F— /AR 69



WP W B o B

Management Discussion and Analysis

iﬂk‘%ﬁ (#%) LAND BANK (Continued)
TR )\SE A IO ) Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
FKH  REER ZF— )EMNEHIKE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
(#F)
WA B
BE REEK T4
AN REWH (54 F A LA
i 4 ABEHER)  Adbuable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned GFA MMM WANE land cost
Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(ARH/
CEAk) CEAk) CEik) (AR¥)  (ARW) Tk
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBJsq.m.)
M HURE K3k B URH /g 50% 97,600 182,100 9L100 911000000 455,500,000 5,003
Quzhou Kecheng District, Railway Station Wanda East Project Residential/Commercial
&H B RAE 2/ 499 62,600 163,500 80,100 1560000000 764,400,000 9,541
Xuzhou Gulou District, Huanghe North Road Project Residential/ Commercial
&M BT LEREL=AEH i 50% 57400 160,800 80400 762600000 381,300,000 4743
Xuzhou Xingshanzi Industrial Park, Dasanjiao Project Residential
I B R A & TER iz 49% 51,200 153,700 75300 889250000 435,730,000 5,786
Jiangmen Heshan City, Fangyuanyuedao Shoufu Project Residential
i E A fixd 40% 68,800 151,500 60600 621670000 248,670,000 4103
Weifang Kuiwen District, Jinma Road Project Residential
i THE NG EE EYR N 330 26,700 133,300 44000 615000000 202,950,000 4614
Nanjing Jiangning District, Jiulong Lake G358 Project Office/Commercial
ELY il AR 805 VER i 35% 92,000 230,000 80500 S8LGT0000 203,580,000 259
Chongqing ~ Banan District, Yudong Xiaonanhai 18051 Project Residential
i ERE 55595 i 100% 29,400 223,600 23,600 1,073,370,000  1,073,370,000 4,800
Shenyang Shenhe District, Tuanjie Road No. 59 Project Residential
% e VE iz 340% 20,600 41,000 14000 125000000 42,500,000 3,034
Xi'an Changning New District 31 mu Project Residential
i B EE RS 2/ 50.0% 120800 333,400 166700 1,775,000000 887,500,000 5324
Hangzhou  Lin'an District, Qingshan Lake Sci-tech City Light Rail Project ~ Residential/Commercial
M FLE6ER i 50.0% 48,000 96,000 48000 192,160,000 96,080,000 2002
Xuzhou Tongshan District, No.36 Project Residential
il FETR0OEH iz 40.0% 60,500 166,400 66,600 1146850000 458,740,000 6892
Jiangmen Pengjiang District No. 4 Project Residential
L] RITR iR iz 40.0% 124,100 272900 109200 1486850000 594,740,000 5448
Wuhu Yijiang District, Yuanmutang Project Residential
Bl ARG 1806 UE H fiz/hi% 33% 162,000 444,600 148,100 2450000000 815,850,000 5,511
Chongging  Liangjiang New Area, Yuelai 18061 Project Residential/ Commercial
B LA RRA 18065 H fE/ M 33.3% 161,700 387,300 129000 2320000000 772,560,000 5.990
Chongqing ~ Liangjiang New Area, Yuelai 18065 Project Residential/Commercial
M BT O RC03AFE R iz 340% 131,100 219,900 4800 431000000 146,540,000 1,960
Wenzhou Oujiang River Estuary Area, C-03AE Project Residential
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Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)

FH : REFER —F— )ERWLHKEE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
(#)
WA B
BE REEK T4
AN REWH (54 F ) LA
i A 1 (AHBHR)  Auributable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned A WAMH  WANE land cost
Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(ARH/
CEAR) CEER) CEik) (AR¥)  (ARW¥) Tk
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)
el BRI AlRC-11PHIRH iz 340% 148,400 178,100 60,600 466000000 158,440,000 2617
Wenzhou Oujiang River Estuary Area, C-11FH Project Residential
A BTN HEC-0sAH H iz 31.0% 141,800 212,700 65,900 466000000 144460,000 2,101
Wenzhou Oujiang River Estuary Area, C-05A Project Residential
il ARSI E YR EEH lid 533% 98,300 275,100 146,600 3706750000 1975,700,000 13474
Hangzhou Xiaoshan District, Shushan Unit, Zengjiagiao Project Residential
il S KREEEEH0ER i 100.0% 27,900 69,800 69,800 494,600,000 494,600,000 7,086
Foshan Sanshui District, Yundonghai Street No. 009 Project Residential
s HERSA NG 19 0485 H /g 100.0% 64300 199,200 199200 579960000 579,960,000 29011
Guiyang Baiyun District, Yanshanhong Nanhu G{(18)048 Project Residential/Commercial
M D IEEb1-UEH fiz 33.00 25,300 65,800 2700 691000000 228,030,000 10,502
Wenzhou Yueqing City, Central District, E-b11-1 Project Residential
Bl Bhigin-s5EH i 3L1% 128,200 248,800 400 141100000 451,290,000 5832
Kunshan Bacheng County No.12-8 Project Residential
il I #E 1000% 3,900 10800 10800 58550000 58,550,000 541
Jiangmen Pengjiang District, No. 11 Project Residential
fi% [ilzE 2 T iz 48.0% 200300 387,900 196,200 698,010,000 335,040,000 1,799
Xian Xixian New Area, Qinhan Lanchi 2nd Avenue Project Residential
il E%E RN EER 4 50.0% 11,600 23,500 11700 218920000 109,460,000 939
Hangzhou  Lin'an District, Wuyue Mansion Norch Project Residential
iR 01820585 H i 50.0% 66,600 186,500 93300 721960000 360,980,000 3871
Xiangtan Yuetang District, No. 2018-20 Project Residential
il SRESNG-2018-20%BH iz 400% 88,700 133,000 53200 364480000 145,790,000 2,740
Yinchuan Jinfeng District, Yindi No.G-2018-20 Project Residential
kit AEEREHH iz 35.0% 24000 48,000 16800 1164690000 407,640,000 2464
Tianjin Hexi District, Diecai Road Project Residential
A EHBAN MR i 350 47,200 103,900 36400 991,630,000 347,070,000 9,544
Wenzhou Cannan County, Taishang Town Project Residential
BN KRB ERE i 33% 49,000 83,400 7800 629010000 209,460,000 7542
Suzhou Taicang County, Chengxiang No. 3 Project Residential
E1 FEB01652-VBH iz 300% 43,100 107,700 2300 765500000 228,760,000 7,080
Jiaxing Jiashan County, No. 2016-52-1 Project Residential
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TR )\SE A IO ) Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
FKH  REER ZF— )EMNEHIKE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
(#F)
HEAh
HE RRmH TH
A%EH REWH AABER + A
i A 1 (AHBHR)  Axribuable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned GFA MMM WANE land cost
Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(MRS
CEik) CEik) (Fik) (ARE)  (ARW) i k)
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMBJsq.m.)
5 BRI OER i 50.0% 21600 43,200 2600 630000000 315,000,000 14,583
Wi Binhu District, Heliekou Project Residential
BN SERERENAR fig 40.0% 51,600 113,500 45400 850000000 340,000,000 7489
Changzhou  Zhonglou District, Huanhua Project Residential
L HhlRXZQTD2383E H fiz 34.0% 86,000 154,800 2600 838620000 285,130,000 5417
Hefei Xinzhan District, No. XZQTD238 Project Residential
B 2 RBEG18- 1988 H E 40.0% 101,400 152,100 60800 459,830,000 183,930,000 3,003
Yinchuan Jinfeng District, No. G2018-19 Project Residential
% TEAHE R A M3 0WUR H i 50.0% 26,300 65,800 2900 314880000 157,440,000 4785
Nanning Xixiangtang District, Xiu'an Road 39 actes Project Residential
it SHEERR0000EH fig 100.0% 68,500 157,000 137,000 1,385,900000 1,383,900,000 10,101
Chengdu Jinniu District, Weijianian 102 mu Project Residential
il WERMARER fiz 100.0% 37,800 128,600 18600 1089420000 1,089,420,000 8471
Jinan Huaiyin District, Ruigongguan Project Residential
4 FE EA R AL0%EH it/ 100.0% 189,100 378,00 378200 832,000,000 832,000,000 2,200
Yantai Development Zone, A2 & AL0 Project Residential/Commercial
Bl BiRIRBER e/ ME 100.0% 74600 186,400 186400 246,100,000 246,100,000 1,320
Linyi Luozhuang District, Huawu Road Project Residential/Commercial
i AR 3EER i 49.0% 62,200 §7,100 2700 921690000 451,630,000 10582
Hangzhou  Yuhang District, Chaoshan No.13 Project Residential
BEM ARG fiz 35.0% 80,700 169,400 59300 2311970000 809,010,000 13,645
Suzhou Hugiu District, No. 60 Project Residential
A FEELI08-6578H #E 50.0% 39,100 78,100 30000 512920000 256,460,000 6,565
Jiaxing Jiashan County, Yaozhuang No. 2018-6 Project Residential
il FRREILHER i 34.0% 81,100 243400 82800 1490000000 506,600,000 6122
Foshan Gaoming District, Xijiang New Town Project Residential
Ait 12,417,000 7098200 76868,050,000 41,113,110,000 6,190
TOTAL
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LAND BANK (Continued)

TR )\SE A IO ) Land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
FKH  REER ZF— )EMNEHIKE  Table 5: The Group’s land acquisition in 2018 (Continued)
(#)
L4PS |
BE REEK T4
A%EH RETR (RAHIER ER 173
i 4 ABEHER)  Adbuable Average
The Group's Planned GFA  planned A WAMH  WANE land cost
Wi BH LERHM G equity A 48 i 8¢ (excluding (excluding Total  Attributable (excluding
City Project Intended Primary Use interest Site area carparks) carpacks)  consideration  consideration carparks)
(ARH/
(Fik) CEHR) Pk (ARE) (AR¥) Tk
(%) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB) (RMB)  (RMB/sq.m.)
SR MEFZAZ 1 ORREAM ) bl
Land acquisition subsequent to 31 December 2018 (and up to the announcement date)
BiM SR 02018-We 35 R R BEH fig 100% 45,200 76,800 76800 719130000 719,130,000 9,364
Suzhou Wauzhong District, Xukou Town, No.2018-WG-32 Sunwu Road ~ Residential
Project
B APRAER018-WGAI A HIER E 100% 46,600 102,600 102600 LA55,600000  1,455,600,000 14,187
Suzhou Wauzhong District, Mudu Town, No.2018-WG-41 Jinmao Road ~ Residential
Project
B S EAEF018-WG-HHERIER i3 100% 45,100 99,200 9200 1113220000 1,113220000 11,22
Suzhou Wuzhong District, Luzhi Town, No.2018-WG-43 North Yanli ~ Residential
Project
fin) EHREEHER i 100% 100,100 521,600 SAL600 4056920000 4056920000 7778
Wuhan Hanyang Village, Shuguang Village Project Residential
R R s fit 100% 63900 192,000 192000 764620000 764,620,000 398
Changsha Changsha County, No. 081 Project Residential
i SRR R iz 100% 6,500 19,600 19600 85110000 85,110,000 4342
Shenyang Huanggu District, West Rail Yard Project Residential
L R A BCooo20 B H [iE 50% 3,700 3,000 1500 6L900000 30,950,000 20,633
Shanghai Pudong New Area, Yangjing Subdistrict, C000204 Project Commercial
24 AHEKC018-5HH i 51% 71,800 179,500 91500 425490,196 217,000,000 2370
Kunming Economic and Technological Development Zone, KCJ2018-5 Residential
Project
K Bl RSB iz 100% 41,600 62,400 62,400 333,000,000 333,000,000 5,337
Tianjin Binhai New Area, Tanggu Bay Project Residential
G AR EHR2019003 5 i 100% 96,100 211,500 21500 605,590,000 605,590,000 2864
Nanchang Honggutan New District, 2019003 Project Residential
g WA LR B/ 30% 38,100 95,900 8800 157,100000 371,130,000 12,900
Shanghai Pudong New Area, Pujiang Overscas Chinese Town Project Office/Commercial
R NEERRA LSGAI00 147500 10.857680,196  9,752.270,000 6942
Fist 2M 2019
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=t+—H : #HAR¥29,786,900,0007C) K&
Z BRI $RAT A7 3K 9 N R %91,290,000,000 7T
(T —L4F W) -

%
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¥ 77,865,000,000 7 ( — & — L 4+
A=+—H: AR ¥ 47,239,100,000
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=+—H: AR%33,113,000,0007C) *
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N #9,628,000,0007C) ~ MR (H 2 A K
907,700,000 7 1Y AT # i 5 (—F— &
FrTA=t—H ) RIREES A
K #5 15,293,600,000 JC Y 58 40 8 ol 22 95
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4,498,100,0007T) °
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB43,327.6 million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB29,786.9
million) and restricted bank deposits of approximately RMB1,290.0 million
(2017: nil).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding total borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB77,865.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB47,239.1
million), comprising bank and other loans of approximately RMB49,903.6
million (31 December 2017: RMB33,113.0 million), onshore corporate
bonds with carrying amounts of RMB11,760.1 million (31 December 2017:
RMB9,628.0 million), convertible bonds with carrying amount of RMB907.7
million (31 December 2017: nil) and offshore senior notes with carrying amounts
of RMB15,293.6 million (31 December 2017: RMB4,498.1 million).
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(Continued)
Indebtedness (Continued)

Table 7: Breakdown of indebtedness

By type of borrowings and maturity

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

—Z- N\ ZE L4
+TZH=Z+4—H |+t ZHA=+—H
At 31 December | At 31 December
2018 2017
ARWT X PN T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B aUT 8 Onshore bank loans
—4ER Within one year 4,264,171 3,253,907
—AEDLE o {H S HE I AT Over one years and within two years 9,323,378 1,895,410
WAELLE s B AKRIE =4F Over two years and within three years 13,179,872 6,775,429
SAERL L (RSB A P A Over three years and within four years 3,706,300 2,080,000
PULED b > {HOR R 14 Over four years and within five years 660,000 3,300,241
HAFLILE Over five years 416,170 402,910
Ak Subtotal 31,549,891 17,707,897
BN A RS Onshore corporate bonds
—4ER Within one year 3,646,140 5,093,233
—AERLE > BB AR Over one years and within two years 3,886,550 -
ML E > R EBH =4F Over two years and within three years 4,227,447 -
ZAEDL b s {HAS A DY AR Over three years and within four years - 4,534,737
it Subtotal 11,760,137 9,627,970
Bish e £k Offshore bank loans
—4ER Within one year 4,578,200 3,473,201
—4ERLE > HAR B R A Over one years and within two years 8,859,536 3,661,247
WAL » (EARHEE =4F Over two years and within three years 4,915,933 7,092,762
ZAERL L (RSB A P A Over three years and within four years - 1,177,908
ik Subtotal 18,353,669 15,405,118
W B A I I A Oy Debt component of convertible bonds
—4ER Within one year 907,724 —
iYris Subtotal 907,724 -
BEAME SR 08 Offshore senior notes
—AERL L AR A Over one years and within two years 5,897,068 -
WERLE o (B = 4F Over two years and within three years 3,450,757 2,651,344
=AEDL b {HASER I Y AR Over three years and within four years 3,877,490 —
POAERL b > {HR AR LA Over four years and within five years 2,068,299 1,846,780
YA Subtotal 15,293,614 4,498,124
Mt TOTAL 77,865,035 47,239,109
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&5 (47) Indebtedness (Continued)
= AWM ) Table 7: Breakdown of indebtedness (Continued)
HH Wl 4y By currency denomination
—Z- N\ e a2
FoHE—H [+ A=
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ARWT L AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
LR ) 3 1) 08 33 Analysis of borrowings by currency
— AR ¥EFHE _ Denominated in RMB 45,124,929 28,270,867
—PLEICEHA — Denominated in USD 22,876,919 12,740,798
— DLk oEHE — Denominated in HKD 9,841,840 6,227,444
— DIHAL & A — Denominated in other currencies 21,347 -
77,865,035 47,239,109
i I 2 sl B ) A3l 43 By fixed or variable interest rates
—Z— N\ S e S
FoHE—R [+ A=
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ARWT L AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EFE Fixed interest rates 34,807,640 17,505,439
)R Variable interest rates 43,057,395 29,733,670
77,865,035 47,239,109
A HEA B A Secured versus unsecured
—Z2— )\ —F L
+=H=Z+—H | +ZHA=+—H
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
ARWT L AR¥ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Secured 36,754,386 22,493,276
AT Unsecured 41,110,649 24,745,833
77,865,035 47,239,109

76

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



WP W B o B

Management Discussion and Analysis

VB4 ~ B B AR a0

EE %N

ALY T — ) AE I S8 M B AR
Rl R AS AR A A N R M5 4,388,600,000
It B FE—EFEM AR %2,310,800,000
JEHEING9.9% © MR T i 1A A= 45 [ AR A
TS

ALEEPD _FE—)ET A =1T—H
A AEH5 I HE P34 BUA (48 SR AT S At
B~ BENA AME S R AME SRR &
5.8% > MKk E—tET+_H=1+—H
£55.2% o WIRINFEF-BIE B LA E Tt »
FE AR RIR TG E A -

A1 o e e

AL E LR AR LT - AEH
A T RAT AR LI T X R IURHE - A
B 1 R 1A B A1 R AT LR M B SR S R
RILA R T e JURHE » AL B T
WA MR AR - W AR SCRHE -

H % — N A S R A b B
o RRRR A BRI N B (R R 5 1 B
AR o A B AT BT UL M BE R GE
B o 25 BE T AL B 22 PR LUK R
(HAR 2 -

A SR ] ) BSRS890 B A 5 A
Rca B3 TR s DU LR N R T
(B fR0PS 1O BEE 3 By o A% 45 11 14 38 b 22 B
WA 7R ik PT AE 3BT I B JE T 3 2 DU B O
NRFHEEB SR LA -

AR B BOR - AR5 B 2 AT 3L R0 S B

SN RSB T B 4 > DL o DA
N R FHE 85 9 S M HE TR,

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Cost of borrowings

The Group’s total finance costs expensed and capitalized in 2018 was
approximately RMB4,388.6 million, representing an increase of 89.9% from
RMB2,310.8 million in 2017. The increase was due to the increase of the

Group’s total indebtedness level.

The Group’s weighted average cost of all indebtedness (including bank and other
loans, onshore corporate bonds and offshore senior notes) as at 31 December 2018
was 5.8%, compared to 5.2% as at 31 December 2017. The increase in weighted
average cost of indebtedness during the period was primarily attributable to the

increase in global market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars, and the majority of the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Certain of the
Group’s property projects are located in Hong Kong and are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Starting in early 2016, the Group has adopted a hedging policy to actively
manage its currency risk exposure concerning non-RMB denominated
indebtedness. The Group may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
currency rates, consider and enter into hedging arrangements to mitigate the

impact of RMB depreciation.

It is the Group’s policy to utilize the most appropriate and cost effective hedging
instruments to hedge its currency risk exposure of non-RMB denominated
indebtedness. The Group’s hedging arrangements shall, to the extent possible,
match the value and the maturity of the relevant non-RMB denominated

indebtedness being hedged.
Based on the above policy, the Group has entered into US dollar versus offshore

RMB capped forward contracts to hedge certain of its foreign currency exposure

in non-RMB denominated indebtedness.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Certain currency capped forward contracts entered into have “capped gain”

feature; on the expiry date:

- if the then prevailing US dollar versus offshore RMB exchange rate (“Expiry
Rate”) is less than or equal to the pre-specific capped gain rate (“Capped
Gain Rate”), the Group shall buy the contract amount of US dollar against

offshore RMB at the pre-specified contract rate (“Strike Rate”); or

- if the Expiry Rate is greater than the Cap Rate, the Group shall receive the
amount of relevant depreciation amount of offshore RMB against US dollar

up to the Cap Gain Rate (“Capped Gain Amount”).

Certain capped forward contracts that we entered into have additional “capped

loss” feature; on the expiry date:

. if the Expiry Rate is between the Capped Gain Rate and the pre-specific
capped loss rate (“Capped Loss Rate”) or equal to either rates, the Group
shall buy the contract amount of US dollar against offshore RMB at the

Strike Rate; or

. if the Expiry Rate is greater than the Cap Gain Rate, the Group shall

receive Capped Gain Amount; or

o if the Expiry Rate is lower than the Cap Loss Rate, the Group shall pay the
amount of relevant appreciation amount of offshore RMB against US dollar

up to the Cap Rate (“Capped Loss Amount”).

The capped forward contracts utilized by the Group had contract values and
expiry dates matching the outstanding amounts and maturity dates of the specific
US dollar or Hong Kong dollar denominated indebtedness being hedged. These
capped forward contracts enable the Group to lock-in to the relevant pre-specified
Strike Rate of US dollar versus RMB exchange rate for the repayment of its
outstanding non-RMB denominated indebtedness. However, the Group’s
protection against RMB depreciation will be limited up to the extent of the

relevant Capped Gain Rates.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Other than those disclosed above, the Group did not have any other material
exposures to foreign exchange fluctuations or any other hedging arrangements
as at 31 December 2018. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of foreign currencies,

consider adjusting its foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

Financial guarantees

The Group has provided mortgage guarantees to PRC banks in respect of the
mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group’s customers. The
Group’s mortgage guarantees are issued from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and released upon the earlier of (i) the relevant property
ownership certificates being obtained and the certificates of other interests with
respect to the relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagee banks, or (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee banks and the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided mortgage guarantees in
respect of mortgage loans provided by the PRC banks to the Group’s customers
amounting to approximately RMB19,067.9 million (versus 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB12,714.6 million).

During the year, certain of the Group’s joint ventures and associates have utilized
offshore and/or onshore bank loans. The Company provided guarantees on several
basis covering its respective equity shares of outstanding obligations under
certain offshore and/or onshore bank loans incurred by its joint ventures and
associated companies. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s aggregate share of
such guarantees provided in respective of loans incurred by these joint ventures
and associate companies amounted to approximately RMB8,431.9 million
(31 December 2017: approximately RMB2,631.9 million).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

Gearing ratio

The Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio (total indebtedness net of bank balances
and cash divided by total equity) was approximately 67.2% as at 31 December
2018, versus approximately 50.9% as at 31 December 2017. The Group’s
debt-to-asset ratio (total indebtedness divided by total assets) was approximately
32.3% as at 31 December 2018 versus approximately 31.1% as at 31 December
2017. The Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
approximately 1.7 times as at 31 December 2018, versus approximately 1.6 times
as at 31 December 2017.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s property development and property
investment business had approximately 7,300 full-time employees in China
including Hong Kong, among which approximately 7,120 employees worked
for the property development business, approximately 180 for the commercial

property leasing business.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working

experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the

employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Zhong, aged 50, our founder, is the executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Mr. Lin Zhong has about 28 years of experience in the real estate
business. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011, and is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and is also a substantial shareholder of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Zhong is also the chairman
and a director of Shanghai Yongsheng Property Service Co., Ltd. (“Yongsheng
Property Service”, NEEQ stock code: 871385), the shares of which were quoted
on National Equities Exchange and Quotations (‘“NEEQ”) from 14 April 2017 to
9 March 2018, and an executive director, the chairman of the board of directors,
the chairman of the nomination committee, the chairman of the strategy
committee and a member of remuneration committee of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle
Services Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1995), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 17 December 2018 and is the
holding company of Yongsheng Property Service. Mr. Lin Zhong was appointed
as the vice chairman of Shanghai Population Welfare Foundation in 2013,
the deputy chief council member of the Eighth Term of Council of Shanghai
Real Estate Association and the rotating chairman of Shanghai Entrepreneur
Association in 2014, and an honorary chairman of Fujian Chamber of Commerce
in Shanghai and the chairman of Xiamen Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai
in 2016. Mr. Lin Zhong graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s
degree in economics. He further pursued and obtained an executive master of
business administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
M. Lin Zhong is a brother of Mr. Lin Wei and Mr. Lin Feng. Mr. Lin Zhong is a
director of Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”) and Ding Chang
Limited, substantial shareholders of the Company, whose interests in shares of
the Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this annual report.
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Mr. LIN Wei, aged 46, is the executive Director and Vice-chairman of
the Company. He was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011, and is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Lin Wei has about 23 years of experience in the real estate
business. He laid the foundation of our Group’s development with Mr. Lin
Zhong. Mr. Lin Wei is a brother of Mr. Lin Zhong and Mr. Lin Feng. Mr.
Lin Wei is a director of Rosy Fortune and Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent
Talent”), substantial shareholders of the Company, whose interests in shares of
the Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this annual report.

Mr. LIN Feng, aged 43, is the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He is also a substantial shareholder of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lin Feng has about 19 years
of experience in the real estate business. He joined our Group in 2001 and
was appointed as Director on 20 May 2011. Mr. Lin Feng is also a director of
Yongsheng Property Service INEEQ Stock code: 871385), the shares of which
were quoted on NEEQ from 14 April 2017 to 9 March 2018, and a non-
executive director, the deputy chairman of the board of directors, a member of
the audit committee and a member of the strategy committee of Ever Sunshine
Lifestyle Services Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 1995), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 17 December 2018 and
is the holding company of Yongsheng Property Service. Mr. Lin Feng is currently
the vice chairman of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, a council member
of All-China Youth Federation, executive council member of Shanghai Youth
Federation, executive council member of Shanghai Federation of Industry and
Commerce (Commerce Chamber), council member of Shanghai Changning
District Association of Industry and Commerce (Commerce Chamber), executive
council member of Shanghai Putuo District Youth Federation, representative of
Shanghai Putuo District People’s Congress, rotating chairman of the executive
council of China Urban Realty Association and director of CIFI Charity
Foundation. Mr. Lin Feng graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and further obtained a master of business administration
degree from the University of Dundee. Mr. Lin Feng is a brother of Mr. Lin
Zhong and Mr. Lin Wei. Mr. Lin Feng is a director of Rosy Fortune, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, whose interests in shares of the Company are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities” in the “Directors’ Report” section of this annual report.
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Mr. CHEN Dongbiao, aged 51, is the executive Director of the Company
and Executive President of the Group, responsible for management of brand,
customer relationship, operations, construction, and procurement and cost. Mr.
Chen joined the Group in August 2013, and was appointed as Director on 18
December 2017. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd., as the
director of Engineering and general manager and chairman of Shanghai Vanke
Real Estate Co., Led. Mr. Chen was a representative of Shanghai Pudong District
People’s Congress from 1997 to 2002 and the rotating chairman of Shanghai
Real Estate Trade Association from 2011 to 2012. Mr. Chen graduated from
Shanghai City Construction Institute with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and
further obtained a master of business administration degree from China Europe

International Business School.

Mr. YANG Xin, aged 45, is the executive Director of the Company, the Vice
President and the General Manager of Finance Center of the Group. Mr. Yang
would become the Chief Financial Officer of the Group from 30 March 2019.
Mr. Yang joined the Group in July 2010, and was appointed as Director on 18
December 2017. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
He has experience in banking and finance. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in various management positions at Agricultural Bank of China Limited. Mr.
Yang had been a director of Yongsheng Property Service (NEEQ stock code:
871385), the shares of which were quoted on NEEQ from 14 April 2017 to 9
March 2018, and resigned on 11 December 2017. Mr. Yang graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor’s degree in international finance
and further obtained a master of business administration degree. He also obtained
a master’s degree in accounting from Shanghai National Accounting Institute.
M. Yang also holds the Senior International Finance Manager qualification issued

by International Financial Management Association.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WANG Wei, aged 50, was appointed as our non-executive Director on 25
November 2018. Mr. Wang is the Managing Director of Strategic Investment
with Group Asset Management (%@%E%ﬁt{mb) at Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. (together with its subsidiaries, “Ping An,
*F-42”). Before being appointed to the said position in August 2018, he had
been the Managing Director of Ping An Real Estate Capital Ltd. CFL AR
B AT PR F)) since early 2013, Prior to joining Ping An, Mr. Wang was
a Managing Director and China head for Forum Partners, a U.S. real estate
private equity fund; a Vice President and the CFO of Sunshine 100 China, a
real estate developer; a member of the Group China Management Committee,
Managing Director and co-head of China Fixed Income & Derivatives at UBS
Group in Hong Kong. Between 1994 and 2005, Mr. Wang was an Associate,
Vice President and Senior Vice President in Fixed Income and Equity Capital
Markets at JP Morgan in New York, Singapore and Hong Kong. From 1991
to 1994, Mr. Wang started his career in Treasury Department of the Bank of
China, Head Office, in Beijing, and focused on international debt capital markets
and derivatives. Mr. Wang owns a master’s degree in business administration
(MBA) from Columbia Business School, and a bachelor’s degree in economics,
majoring in international finance, from Fudan University. From 8 October
2018 till now, he is currently a non-executive director of China Fortune Land
Development Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE stock
code: 600340), and a director of Sasseur Cayman Holding Limited (the REITSs of
which are listed in Singapore with SGX stock code: CRPU). Mr. Wang was non-
executive director of two companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely Hydoo
International Holding Limited (SEHK stock code: 1396) from 23 January 2015
to 21 September 2016 and Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (SEHK
stock code: 1369) from 26 September 2014 to 25 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GU Yunchang, aged 74, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 9 October 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Gu was the vice chairman of the
China Real Estate Research Association from 2006 to May 2013 and had also
been the vice chairman and sectetary-general of the China Real Estate Association
from 1998 to 2006. He is currently the chairman of National Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce.

M. Gu formerly served at different positions in the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC, including the deputy director at Policy Research Centre of Ministry of
Construction from 1988 to 1998; the person-in-charge of the City and Township
Residence Research Centre of Ministry of Construction from 1986 to 1988;
and the deputy division head and division head at Urban Residence Bureau of
Ministry of Construction from 1979 to 1986.

Mr. Gu specializes in theory and policy research, market research and analysis
concerning China real estate industry. In the 1980s, he participated in the policy
research and formulation of China’s city and village residential construction
techniques, carrying on a State key project “2000 China”, and won the First Class
National Science Technology Advance Award in China twice. After joining the
China Real Estate Association in 1998, he has been involved in promoting the
development of the China real estate industry as well as undertaking the research
and analysis of the national real estate market. He is also the main organizer and
writer of the China Real Estate Market Report, an annual analysis report issued
by the China Real Estate Association. Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive
director of Shimao Property Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 813) from
April 2006 to May 2011, was an independent non-executive director of E-House
(China) Holdings Limited (NYSE stock code: EJ) from August 2008 to March
2014, was an independent non-executive director of Sino-Ocean Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Sino Ocean Land Holdings Limited) (SEHK stock
code: 3377) from June 2007 to March 2016, and was an independent director
of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000031) from April
2012 to June 2018. Mr. Gu is currently an independent non-executive director,
a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of Jiayuan
International Group Limited (SEHK stock code: 2768), an independent non-
executive director of Sunshine 100 China Holdings Ltd (SEHK stock code:
2608), and an independent director of Zhejiang Yasha Decoration Co., Ltd. (SZSE
stock code: 002375). Mr. Gu obtained a bachelor’s degree in urban planning from
Tongji University.
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Mr. ZHANG Yongyue, aged 64, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 9 October 2012, and is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from
East China Normal University where he taught since his graduation and he had
become a professor of the Business School at the same university since 1998 until
he retired in 2017. He is currently a tenured professor at East China Normal
University, and the Dean of Shanghai E-house China R&D Institute, concurrently
as the vice president of the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and Agents,
and the supervisor of Shanghai Real Estate Economy Society. Mr. Zhang was
an independent director of Shanghai Wanye Enterprises Co. Ltd. (SSE stock
code: 600641) from May 2010 to August 2015. He is currently an independent
director of Shanghai Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600748).

Mr. TAN Wee Seng, aged 63, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 9 October 2012, and is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tan is a
professional in value and business management consultancy. He is currently an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of
Xtep International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 1368), an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Sa Sa
International Holdings Limited, (SEHK stock code: 178), an independent
non-executive director, and the chairman of the remuneration committee of
Health and Happiness (H&H) International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Biostime International Holdings Limited) (SEHK stock code: 1112), an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and
a member of the strategy and investment committee of Sinopharm Group Co.
Led. (SEHK stock code: 1099), and an independent non-executive director, and
the chairman of the audit committee and remuneration committee of Shineroad
International Holdings Limited (SEHK stock code: 1587), the shares of all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent
director and the chairman of the audit committee (appointed as the chairman
of the audit committee with effect from 8 March 2016) of ReneSola Ltd (NYSE
stock code: SOL), the shares of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange.
He is also a board member and the chairman of the finance and operation
committee of Beijing City International School, an academic institution in
Beijing. Mr. Tan had been an independent director of 7 Days Group Holdings
Limited whose shares were listed on the New York Stock Exchange between
November 2009 and July 2013 until the group was privatized and he was the
chairman of the special committee for privatization from October 2012 to July
2013.
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Mr. Tan has over 35 years of financial management, corporate finance, merger
and acquisition, business management and strategy development experience.
He has also held various management and senior management positions in a
number of multinational and Chinese corporations. From 2003 to 2008, he was
an executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of Li Ning
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (SEHK stock code: 2331). From 1999 to 2002, he was the senior vice
president of Reuters for China, Mongolia and North Korea regions, and the chief
representative of Reuters in China. Prior to that, he had served as the managing
director of AFE Computer Services Limited, a Reuters subsidiary in Hong
Kong which was a company mainly engaged in domestic equity and financial
information services, and as director of Infocast Pty Limited, a Reuters subsidiary
in Australia and as the regional finance manager of Reuters East Asia. Mr. Tan
is a professional accountant and a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants in United Kingdom, and the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Sze Ka (Albert), aged 47, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group since July 2011 and would leave this position from 30 March 2019. Mr.
Yau has over 24 years of experience in real estates, capital markets and corporate
management and has substantial experience in a wide range of capital markets
transactions including initial public offerings, equity and bond issues, syndicated
loans, project financings, mergers and acquisitions and corporate restructuring.
He was ranked the “Best CFO — Overall Number 1” in the “Property” category of
“All-Asia Executive Team” of 2017 and 2018 rankings published by Institutional
Investor, the global finance magazine. Before joining CIFI, he had held senior
positions at Lai Sun Group of Hong Kong and a number of international
investment banks. Mr. Yau graduated from the University of California at
Berkeley with a bachelor of science degree. He is also a holder of Chartered

Financial Analyst.
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Ms. FAN Yiting, aged 46, is the Vice President (Design) of the Group. Ms. Fan
joined the Group in October 2015. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Fan worked
for China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited as assistant president and vice
chief architect from 2011 to 2015. She held the positions of director, design
director (Eastern China), design director (Northern China), general manager
of planning and design management center and deputy manager of Shenzhen
branch for China Overseas Property Group Co., Ltd. from 2000 to 2011. Ms. Fan
worked for Beijing Architectural Design Institute of China Construction as an
architect from 1993 to 1997. Ms. Fan graduated from South China University
of Technology with a master’s degree in architecture and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in architecture from Chang’an University (formerly known as The
Northwest Institute of Construction Engineering). She is also a certified architect
with professional qualification.

Mr. PAN Taoyuan, aged 51, is the Vice President and General Manager of
Investment Center of the Group. Mr. Pan joined the Group in February 2008
and was previously the General Manager of Sales and Marketing Center of the
Group. Before joining our Group, Mr. Pan worked in Shanghai P & R Real Estate
Consultant Co., Ltd as the deputy general manager from October 2004 to January
2007. Mr. Pan graduated from the National Taichung Institute of Technology
majoring in Japanese language.

Mr. GE Ming, aged 39, is the Vice President and the General Manager of Human
Development Center of the Group. Mr. Ge joined the Group in April 2012 and
have vast experience in human resources management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Ge worked at Oriental Cambridge Education Group as the director of human
resources and a member of the executive committee. Prior to that, Mr. Ge worked
at Shanghai Tuosheng Associates and Longfor Properties. Mr. Ge is currently a
non-executive director of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Services Group Limited (SEHK
stock code: 1995), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 17 December 2018. Mr. Ge graduated from Fudan University
with a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in international finance.

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming (Lawrence), aged 44, has been the Director of Investor
Relations of the Group and would become the Head of Capital Markets and
Investor Relations from 30 March 2019. He has extensive experience in investor
relations, investment banking, Listing Rules compliance and accounting. In
his career, Mr. Leung worked for Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited,
Macquarie Capital (Hong Kong) Limited, DBS Asia Capital Limited, the Listing
Division of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and Ernst & Young. Mr. Leung
received his bachelor’s degree in commerce and LLB from the University of
Calgary and the University of London respectively. He is a holder of Chartered
Financial Analyst, a member of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
the Group in June 2013.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



LYY 35 YN N Py

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

BIMRSE A - 4358 > A EIIEE O
AR o Bl —F——FNANAMA
AL o AR E T > BISEAER R
TEEFERE DL R ERE (L
) A R F SR AT A AT ACEE I
TLREEHATN « AT B0 E
T BB AT RS W AR AT B AR I AT
PRI EAE o BISTAE R WTRE TR
R o A TERH B o

EIERA > 365K > S A F 7 S A HE
DR ARACH o FAEAR T FT A+ —
HMAARER > SeR A LB BE S
oL 1 R A P R B A B P B A o
FIR IR HE R A R, > A K

BLEL AL -

TR - 46HE o S AR I A
BREm A o TR —F A SLA
ARG o IMAASEEF > TR
TRFAEAH & T — WA JLH o
R A R A > 8 AT SR A
SERL A PR A B 15 TR R AR A B~ AR
oo TR RS R A AR A
JEE s BLER B > HARBU P BN RK
BRI -

AL S
MEREE  cd > R_F—4TH
R/ AFME BEEDBFTBG
FHETA G & B o B A B AL IR 5
F 304 K85 > Bl A — B AR 3 IR S
4l 2 2 W) AR R RS A B A |
3o BRI IR By B RN A BT BT
CINEPASE /S RO Er k- 2Ry &Sl
7w (7 e A2 BT e AR 98 < 2018) ~ A
6 11 B P A BR 2 B (5 W B 52 r 1l 44X
9% 1 239) MORAEB PR BR A A (il
Wi A8 B e AR A 5% = 2398) o

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

Mr. LIU Feng, aged 43, is the General Manager of the Operation Center of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in August 2011. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Liu worked for China Resources Land (Shanghai) Co. Ltd from 2003 to 2011
and held the positions of contract manager and Shanghai and Zhejiang Area
contract responsible officer. Before that, he worked for Shanghai Vanke Real Estate
Co., Ltd. as head of procurement in the engineering management department.
Mr. Liu graduated from Zhejiang University majoring in civil engineering, with

a master’s degree in engineering.

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 36, is the Deputy General Manager of Sales and
Marketing Center of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in November
2005 and held positions of Senior Manager at Investment Center and Marketing
Director of Sales and Marketing Center of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from

East China Jiaotong University with a bachelor s degree in economics.

Mr. DING Zhaohui, aged 46, is the Director of Legal and Risk of the Group.
Mr. Ding joined the Group in September 2014. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Ding worked for China Vanke Co., Ltd. from October 2000 to September 2014
and held the positions of deputy general manager and general manager of legal
department of China Vanke Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ding graduated from East China
Normal University with a bachelor’s degree in history and later obtained a master

of laws degree from Renmin University of China.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Tai On, aged 64, was appointed as our Company Secretary in October
2012. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience in the field of company secretarial
services and is now a director of Fair Wind Secretarial Services Ltd., a secretarial
company rendering secretarial services. Mr. Lo is also the company secretary of
several companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including AAC Technologies
Holdings Inc. (SEHK stock code: 2018), Pak Fah Yeow International Limited
(SEHK stock code: 239), and Good Friend International Holdings Inc. (SEHK
stock code: 2398).
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year under review, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consisted of nine Directors comprising
M. LIN Zhong (Chairman), Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairman), Mr. LIN Feng
(Chief Executive Officer), Mr. CHEN Dongbiao and Mr. YANG Xin as the
executive Directors; Mr. WANG Wei as the non-executive Director; and Mr. GU
Yunchang, Mr. ZHANG Yongyue and Mr. TAN Wee Seng as the independent
non-executive Directors. The overall management and supervision of the
Company’s operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies

were vested in the Board.

There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
members of the Board except that Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN

Feng are brothers.

During the year under review, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent one-third of the Board,
complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby
independent non-executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence element in

the Board to safeguard the interest of shareholders.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, and monitor the performance of
the senior executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. Their names and biographical details
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of

this annual report.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company is
maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal liabilities

which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other senior
executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-
to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole,
co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain

appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Model code for securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed
that he complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the

year under review.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the Company are
also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to deal in securities of the
Company at any time when he possesses inside information in relation to those
securities. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant

officers and employees was noted by the Company.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities
to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared

the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board by
virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry significant weight in
the Board’s decision. They bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s

strategies, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and have provided their

professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-executive Directors can
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategies, results and

management so as to safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a term of three years. As at 31 December 2018, none of the
independent non-executive Directors held any other offices in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in more than 1% of the shares of the
Company. Details of interests of each independent non-executive Director are
set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in Securities” in the Directors’ Report section of this annual report. For the
year under review, all independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
respectively their independence to the Company in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors are independent. Further, it is noted that Mr. TAN Wee Seng, an
independent non-executive Director, holds 7 directorships in companies listed
in Hong Kong and New York (including the directorship in the Company). It is
nevertheless of the view that Mr. TAN has devoted sufficient time to the Board
and its committees as illustrated by the fact that Mr. TAN has attended every
meetings of the Board and its committees as well as the annual general meeting
of the Company held during the year under review and on the basis that all the

directorships being held by Mr. TAN are of independent non-executive nature.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Company’s Articles
of Association provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible

for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least

once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, remove a Director
by ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Company’s Articles of Association or
in any agreement between the Company and such Director and may by ordinary

resolution elect another person in his stead.

During the year under review, changes of the Directors are as follows:

Mr. WANG Wei had been nominated by Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China, Ltd. (“Ping An Investor”) for appointment as a non-executive Director
to fill the casual vacancy occurred by the resignation of Mr. ZHOU Yimin.
Such nomination right was exercised by Ping An Investor pursuant to the
subscription agreement signed when it invested in the Company as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 27 July 2017. Mr. WANG Wei was
appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 25 November 2018 in

place of Mr. ZHOU Yimin.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board meetings
The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors may participate

either in person or through electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year. In addition to
regular Board meetings, the Directors also participate in deliberation and
approval of routine and operational matters of the Company by way of written
resolutions with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by additional
written information from the management when required. Additional Board
meetings would be held whenever warranted. During the year under review, the

Company held four Board meetings and one general meeting.

HERPEFETEWT The attendance of each Director is as follows:
HWRERaaSRAY - HBRBRKREaRYE
WA R JBE SR £ 48 ¥
No. of No. of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/ attended/
Total no. of Total no. of
WL A Name of Directors Board meetings general meetings
BiTEF Executive Directors
M ded: Mr. LIN Zhong 474 1/1
MRS Mr. LIN Wei 4/4 0/1
Rl e A Mr. LIN Feng 4/4 0/1
PR SR Mr. CHEN Dongbiao 4/4 0/1
Bk etk Mr. YANG Xin 4/4 0/1
FFHfrEH Non-Executive Directors
64 B SE A (FfFEED) Mr. ZHOU Yimin (Note 1) 3/3 0/1
FRUEA (FEE2) Mr. WANG Wei (Note 2) 11 AN N/A
W B TEH Independent Non-Executive Directors
ENSD Mr. GU Yunchang 414 1/1
SRAKAR e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 4/4 1/1
BRAZE RS AR Mr. TAN Wee Seng 4/4 1/1
Pt 5E Notes:
1. s e g — U+ — A =+ I H BT 1. Mr. ZHOU Yimin resigned as a Director since 25 November 2018.
HH o
2. FRAEEN T — ) Ft+—H o+ O ERTE 2. Mr. WANG Wei was appointed as Director on 25 November 2018, and no general meeting has been

B TR AR A A RS -
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held after his appointment.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board meetings (Continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form of seminar and provision of
training materials, and all Directors received their training by attending either in
person or through electronic means of communications. A summary of training
received by Directors during the year under review according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:

MRAR
BAT R K

JC AR B 32 R
Training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development

WL Name of Directors and other relevant topics
HATHEHE Executive Directors

oA Mr. LIN Zhong v
A B Mr. LIN Wei v
ARIGE e A Mr. LIN Feng v/
PR 50 E Mr. CHEN Dongbiao v
BafksetE Mr. YANG Xin v
T F Non-Executive Directors

i 4n R AR Mr. ZHOU Yimin v
F RS Mr. WANG Wei v
PP LI TESF Independent Non-Executive Directors

JHE E et Mr. GU Yunchang v
SRR e A Mr. ZHANG Yongyue v
BRAR RS Mr. TAN Wee Seng v/
R jjﬁlé Corporate governance functions

EHEA TR EE IR The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

B R S AR 7 A 2 VA BUR K
WL

el B S o R R A
Bl B AR AR LB

et M S AR N I BOR SRR > L
ESTIEH R EERUE

BEIR - M B R RMME B X
WA ER AR
H) s K

S AR 2% ST b TIAR JU) B k-
ZAE UL (SR <7 A A S R
W) o

EHANRM

REIRAEE - SRR BT -

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b)

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(¢)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(G

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

The Board had performed the above duties during the year under review.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year under review, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr.
LIN Zhong, and the role of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. LIN Feng.
The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and
provide leadership for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility

to manage the Company’s business.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”) and
has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website and the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Board Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at

the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to provide the Board with
an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit

process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. TAN Wee Seng (being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate

professional and accounting qualifications.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings with
the senior management and independent auditor of the Company to consider
the independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and
discuss the risk management and internal control systems, the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor before reporting and

submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R ek s,
R

No. of
meetings
attended/

Total no. of

BB A Name of members meetings
BRAE RS AE (%) Mr. TAN Wee Seng (Chairman) 2/2
= pis Mr. GU Yunchang 2/2
TRIK RS Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 2/2

iM% 2

Ao B AL HT N ZE B o 3l BT AR
BABUHUE » FI oL RHERE [ o Hrm
Z B G EERE AR (EARD) © @t
B A S E A N B I BOR S e
o ROt e Sr I AR T EL 47 W R 4 AR A
TEFFMECR > [ T g R R s (bR
EREGERMATEST LARERAR
) R 5 B I R 8 5 % (o) PR R o AN Iy
i PR 1A A SE T B K R T g S M A v
FBL L FLVE R Fr I A o

FriMZ B ol =4 B A > 4
BT AT o =2 B AR K
B (BFHMEZRG TR  YiTHEF
Fe L B S A DL BR AR RS

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but not limited to): (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b) making
recommendations on the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management; and (c) reviewing and approving
performance—based remuneration proposals with reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, of whom two are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. ZHANG
Yongyue (being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. LIN Zhong,

the executive Director and Chairman and Mr. TAN Wee Seng.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration structure of the Directors and senior management
of the Group and appraisal system of the key positions of the Group, discuss
the challenges of attracting and retaining senior level staff of the Company, and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management for 2018; and reviewing the remuneration packages of
candidates to be appointed as new Directors and make recommendation to the
Board for approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

Hi)acr e
RAR

No. of
meetings
attended/

Total no. of
BBk Name of members meetings
K E A (FTE) Mr. ZHANG Yongyue (Chairman) 2/2
b sEE Mr. LIN Zhong 2/2
B AR A S A Mr. TAN Wee Seng 2/2

O SR A BN B A S R
B BN BB RE B R 0 A A IR
LA B A - R BRI E
T LA R AT SE A e % i LT R E o

A7 TR IS [0 A 52 A 28 o AR B I T 44
T 50 B - B 1 SR i T B R
BERELL o AFA > AR T 2 K v s B
N B A ) — 80 Fr s e A B B
P T~ LA S

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined based
on the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior management, their
job responsibilities and involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance
and profitability as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

Details of the remuneration payable to the Directors and five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year under review are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of the members of the
Senior Management named in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report during the year falls within the following
bands:

2,000,001 %5 JC 2 3,000,000%5 G HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2
3,000,001 1% G £ 4,000,000¥5 IC HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 1
4,000,001 % JC £ 5,000,000%5 TG HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1
5,000,001 %5 76 22.6,000,0005 JC HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3
9,000,001 5L 210,000,000%5 JC HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1

8

B 48 A & S TR - fEAD - DUR
A £ 45 B M0 DA B SRS AR RO SR AR
HEAMBERK -
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Remuneration comprise basic salaries and allowances, bonus, equity-settled share-
based payments and retirement benefit contributions.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, and select and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, re-appointment of Directors, succession planning for
Directors and assesses the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination process, selection criteria and succession plan are set out in the

nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, of whom two are
independent non-executive Directors. The three members are Mr. LIN Zhong
(being the chairman of the Nomination Committee), the executive Director and
Chairman, Mr. GU Yunchang and Mr. ZHANG Yongyue.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
review the composition of the Board and its committees as well as the background
and experiences of the Board members and evaluate the contributions of the
Board members to the Group in 2018 and make recommendation to the Board
on the re-appointment of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and to review the nomination of new directors and make

recommendation to the Board on appointment of new directors.

During the year, Mr. WANG Wei was appointed as Director. In considering the
new appointment of director, the Nomination Committee assessed the relevant
candidate on criteria such as integrity, independent mindedness, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out his duties and responsibilities

effectively etc., and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

Hi) A e
kA

No. of
meetings
attended/

Total no. of
BB 4 Name of members meetings
MR SEAE (F2RE) Mzr. LIN Zhong (Chairman) 1/1
BEE A Mr. GU Yunchang 1/1
R e Mr. ZHANG Yongyue 1/1
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board. The Company has reviewed the Diversity
Policy in view of the enhanced corporate governance practice on board diversity
under the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2019. The Group’s business
development and strategy as well as the operational need have been taken into

account when reviewing the Diversity Policy.

Under the Diversity Policy, the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through inclusion and making good use of differences in the talents,
skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender and other qualities
of the members of the Board. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced

appropriately.

The Company has also considered the measurable objectives under the Diversity
Policy and assessed the diversity profile of the Board and senior management
members. It is believed that the matrix of the industry skills, expertise and
experiences, knowledge and experiences in operational and financial management
and corporate governance, business connection, educational background, age and
gender of the existing composition of the Board and senior management members
are well balanced and diversified in alignment with the business development

and strategy of the Group.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy from time to time

to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Nomination Policy

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee has been
delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and

appointment of new Directors.

The Nomination Committee should utilize various methods for identifying
candidates for directorship, including recommendations from Board members,
management, and professional search firms. In addition, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates for directorship properly submitted by the

shareholders of the Company.

The evaluation of candidates for directorship by the Nomination Committee
may include, without limitation, review of resume and job history, personal
interviews, verification of professional and personal references and performance
of background checks. The Board will consider the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the shareholders for their election at the general
meeting of the Company, or appointing the suitable candidate to act as Director
to fill the Board vacancies or as an additional to the Board members, subject to
compliance of the constitutional documents of the Company. All appointments
of Director should be confirmed by letter of appointment and/or service contract

setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee should consider the following qualifications as a
minimum to be required for a candidate in recommending to the Board to be a
potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

o the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

o skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (coninued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
o the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required for a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary to

diligently carry out those responsibilities;

. independence: the candidates for independent non-executive directorship
should meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing
Rules and the composition of the Board is in conformity with the

provisions of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may deem

are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Financial reporting system

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
used and applied. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment of
the Group’s performance in the annual and interim reports to the shareholders,
and make appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
Pursuant to code provision C.1.1 of the Code, management would provide such
explanation and information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put before the Board

for approval.
The working scope and reporting responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,

the Company’s external auditor, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s

Report” on pages 181 to 188 of this annual report.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS (Continued)

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remunerations paid or payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
are approximately RMB6,400,000 and RMB4,500,000, respectively. The amount
for 2018 non-audit services comprised mainly the tax-related services fee and
corporate bonds issuance related fee. The Audit Committee was satisfied that the

non-audit services in 2018 did not affect the independence of the auditor.

Risk management and Internal control systems

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

Principles and guidelines of our risk management framework are set for an
effective and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage the
risks associated with its business and operations. This framework is designed to
enhance risk management of the Group through an integrated framework so that

all material risks faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks
within its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective risk
management are implemented. The management is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control activities of the Group. The internal
audit department of the Group is responsible for evaluating the effectiveness
of the Group’s policies and procedures in relation to risk management and
internal control systems and submitting their reports of their findings to the
Board. The Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and gives their
recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible for reviewing the internal

audit report and approving policies and procedures designed by the management.
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(B) FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM,
RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS (consinued)

Risk management and Internal control systems (Continued)

The Group also engaged an external consultant specializing in identifying
and evaluation of significant risk of our business and operation. The external
consultant does not have any connection with the Group and the Board believes
that their involvement could enhance the objectivity and transparency of
evaluation process. In conjunction with our internal audit department and senior
management, the external consultant conducts an annual assessment on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group together with suggestion

and solutions and submit to the Board for their consideration.

During the year under review, the management assisted the Board in the
implementation of the Group’s policies and procedures within the Board’s
delegation by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design,
operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control
such risks. The Board conducted reviews and discussed with the management on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
as required by paragraph C.2 of the Code, covering adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes for the staff and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions and any

resolutions for material internal control defects.

The Board also considers major investigation findings on risk management and

internal control matters and management’s response to these findings.

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed on
an on-going basis by the Audit Committee and the executive Directors, and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Board. During the

year under review, these systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Since shares of the Company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy which
aims to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and all relevant
employees to ensure inside information of the Company is to be disseminated
to the public in equal and timely manner in accordance with the Securities and

Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide secretarial service
and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its Company Secretary. Mr. LO has
confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr. LO is set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on page 89 of this
annual report. Mr. LO is not an employee of our Group and Mr. YAU Sze Ka
(Albert), our Chief Financial Officer, was the person whom Mr. LO could contact
for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code during the year under review.

From 1 January 2019 onward, Mr. YANG Xin and Mr. LEUNG Yuk Ming,
the executive Director and the Director of Investor Relations of the Group
respectively, are the persons whom Mr. LO can contact for the purpose of code

provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2015 Revision).
However, shareholders are requested to follow article 12.3 of the Company's
Articles of Association. Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Company's Articles of
Association, general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them

by the Company.
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(C) COMPANY SECRETARY AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders’ rights (Continued)

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings (Continued)

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant general
meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the nominating shareholder)
to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to the secretary of the
Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for election as
a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be
so elected, no eatlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed for the

relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director

are available on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board by contacting the Company either
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 2002-
2003, 20th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong or email at

ir@cifi.com.cn or directly by raising questions at general meetings.

(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’ value, enhancing the corporate
transparency as well as establishing market confidence. Effective investor
relations can contribute towards lower cost of capital, higher market liquidity
for the Company’s stocks and bonds as well as a more stable investor base. The
Company’s investor relations team is committed to maintaining a high level of
corporate transparency and following a policy of disclosing relevant information
to investors, analysts and bankers in a timely manner to keep them aware of the

Group’s corporate strategies and business operations.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(Continued)

The Company has adopted a stringent internal control system to ensure true,

accurate, complete and timely disclosure of relevant information pursuant to

requirements of relevant laws and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders

and investors equal access to information.

During the year, the Company has proactively taken the following measures to

ensure effective shareholders’ communication and transparency:

. maintained frequent contacts with shareholders and investors through
various channels such as meetings, conference calls, video meetings and

emails;

o held numerous roadshows and participated in investor conferences
introducing the Group’s development strategies and recent business

developments;

o regularly update the Company’s news and developments through the

investor relations section of the Company’s website;

. arranged on-site visits to the Group’s projects for investors and research

analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavours to communicate with
the investment community and provide them with the latest development of the

Group and the real estate industry in China.

In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. In 2018, an annual general
meeting was held on 3 May 2018. The Chairman of the Board, as well as
chairman of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members of the
respective committees, and the representative of external auditor of the Company,
were available to answer questions from shareholders at the annual general
meeting. At the annual general meeting, procedures for conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman and a resolution was proposed in respect of each

separate issue itemized in the agenda.

The forthcoming 2019 annual general meeting will be held on Tuesday, 14 May
2019.
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(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(Continued)

Further, the Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders

of the Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend policy to

achieve such goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s results of
operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future prospects,
as well as statutory, regulatory and debt covenant restrictions on the payment
of dividends, and other factors that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the

Board will review from time to time for determination on proposed dividend with

the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance that dividends will

be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.

AR ] %:g_‘/\ﬂa/:g_‘j’bﬁag,\ Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in 2018/2019
B TR R )
ZEZ N 2018
—H January OB - F i K BNP Paribas Asia Pacific Financials, Property &
Yy gk (i) Logistics Conference (Hong Kong)
TSR B gk (L mt) dbAccess China Conference (Beijing)
2 JEME S SENARTE | CBTnd)  DBS Vickers “Pulse of Asia” (Singapore)
TR e g (L) UBS Greater China Conference (Shanghai)
" H February MRk (B ) Citi Fixed Income Conference (Hong Kong)
= H March ARG E R R Final Results Announcement Press Conference and
I bT B ek (i) Analysts Meeting (Hong Kong)
SERAAR IR 2 5 B (T Post-Results Non-Deal Roadshows (Hong Kong, Singapore,
s - RES - Jbat Kuala Lumpur, Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen)
it~ BN
B S B &k (i) Credit Suisse Asian Investment Conference (Hong Kong)
M- April FdR /N A F H () UBS Small/Mid Cap Corporate Day (Hong Kong)
TR A b B (R ) UBS HK/China Property Conference 2018 (Hong Kong)
HEOEEATH (B BNP Paribas Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)
T A May e U iy (TR HSBC Annual China Conference (Shenzhen)
i B q: B S () CITIC CLSA China forum (Hangzhou)
SR 55N Er sk G sk) dbAccess Asia Conference (Singapore)
JEEAR P e g (b ) Morgan Stanley Fourth Annual China Summit (Beijing)
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2018

Nomura Investment Forum Asia 2018

Galaxy-CIMB HK/China Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)

Haitong International Property Corporate Day (Hong Kong)
HSBC Asia Credit Conference (Hong Kong)

Maybank Invest Asia (London)

CITTI Asia Pacific Property Conference 2018 (Hong Kong)

Interim Results Announcement Press Conference and

Analysts Meeting (Hong Kong)

Post-Results Non-Deal Roadshows (Hong Kong, Singapore,
Kuala Lumpur, Beijing, Shanghai)

BNP Corporate Access Series (Hong Kong)

BoAML Asian High Yield Credit Conference (Hong Kong)
Credit Suisse China Investment Conference (Shenzhen)
BoAML China Conference

Daiwa Investment Conference (Hong Kong)

China Investor Conference (Macau)

Morgan Stanley Asia Pacific Summit (Singapore)
Huatai Annual Conference (Shenzhen)

Nomura HK China Property Day (Hong Kong)

2019

CLSA “Meet the Boss" Luncheon (Hong Kong)

UBS Great China Conference (Shanghai)

DBS Vickers “Pulse of Asia” (Singapore)

DB China Conference (Shenzhen)

BNP Paribas Asia Pacific Financials & Property Conference
(Hong Kong)

(D) INVESTOR RELATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Major Investor Relations Events Participated by the Company in 2018/2019
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (hereinafter
referred to as the “Report”) of CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as “the Group”, “we” or “CIFI”), which focuses on the
Group’s ESG policy and performance, and corporate social responsibility fulfilled

by the Group during the year.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT
The Report covers the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018

(hereinafter referred to as the “Reporting Period” or “Financial Year 2018”). The
reporting scope of the Report includes the property development projects under
the direct management of our Group in the PRC and the relevant administrative

operations.

THE REPORTING BASIS AND PRINCIPLES

The Report discloses the environmental, social and governance information
of the Group in compliance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and takes the principles of “importance”,
“quantification”, “balance” and “consistency” as the reporting basis, to ensure
that this report presents the environmental, social and governance affairs with
which stakeholders are concerned in a clear manner and by making a meaningful

comparison.

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT

The Report was jointly prepared by senior management of each department, and

submitted to the Board for approval, to ensure the authenticity of the Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
STRATEGY

CIFI has always regarded the promotion of sustainable development and
preservance of a blue sky and a pure land for future generations as its corporate
responsibilities. While its business growing at a fast pace, the Group also pays
attention to balancing the interests of stakeholders from all fields, as well as
actively contributing to society with unstinting support for environmental

protection, upholding the principle of sustainability as always.

The Group’s ESG framework consists of two levels, the Board of the Group
and the management of all operation departments. The Board is responsible for
the Group’s environmental, social and governance affairs and lays down long-
term and effective sustainable development objectives and directions for the
environmental and social affairs. The Board will participate in the annual risk
assessment and internal control assessment, to ensure the effectiveness of the
assessment mechanism, with a view to review the Group’s environmental, social
and governance performance and learn about the relevant risks and opportunities
to continuously enhance the Group’s environmental and social performance.
Details related to the risk assessment and internal control can be found in the

“Corporate Governance Report” of the year.

The Board delegates the direct management power of the ESG to the
management of all departments, and allows them to deal with all matters related
to the ESG in accordance with the management directions established by the
Board, including the establishment of the ESG policy, effective implementation
of management measures by promoting the ESG measures in all aspects of
the businesses, participation in the preparation of the Report. In addition to a
thorough understanding on the Group’s business, the management of all the
departments also has a deep insight into the corresponding ESG matters. The
management coordinates with each other and reports the ESG results to the

Board, thus to make a comprehensive and sustainable governance mechanism.
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STAKEHOLDERS COMMUNICATION AND
ENGAGEMENT

The Group acknowledges the annual construction projects of tens of millions of
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square metres creating impacts on the environment and the society. Therefore, the
Group is committed to establishing a close relationship of mutual support and
trust with stakeholders. By learning about and listening to their ideas, the Group
can balance the needs of stakeholders and perform better in the corresponding
ESG matters. The Group currently engages in conversation with stakeholders
through the following channels, and will continue to improve its communication

mechanism in the future to enhance the communication with, and engagement
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Staff

Tk TR E
BT i B
B TRBIEFAY

® Meeting and seminars

® Staff meeting and activities

Staff performance evalua-

tion

of, stakeholders.

%P REE

Customers and
Landlords

o HHGR KRR
o HEMETA
o SEHE

® Customers’ hotlines and

e-mails

® Customers’ questionnaire

® Regular communications

JBE SR B B
Shareholders and

Investors

o ORI
o GEIRI RIS

® Annual general meeting
® Annual report and interim
report

® (Circular

PLME g B BB AF

Suppliers and
Business Partners

e

o HE AR BEH
R

® Business meetings
® Inspection and

performance evaluation

Industrial forums

BOR BB A BB

Governmental and
Regulatory Authority

o IRk

o ABHIEH)
o HEKAE
® Public consultation

® Public activities

® Promotion and

announcements

o i [ 95 % B b

Community and
Others

o SEEAE
o BT
o EE Pt el

® The Group’s website
® Press release

® Charity and social services
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT OF ESG ISSUES

The Group has conducted the materiality assessment to identify the ESG issues
which are important to the Group. In response to the ESG matters involved in
the development of the real estate, the Group’s management of all departments
has made a common effort to set up a complete database for ESG issues. We
engage the management of departments and the representatives of stakeholders
from various fields to conduct internal and external materiality assessment from
the importance of the issues to the Group’s long-term operation and to the
stakeholders, respectively. The result of the assessment is found to be in line with
the business nature of the Group by the Group’s management. According to the
materiality of the issues, we list out the following 25 ESG issues. This Report

also makes a disclosure of the following items.
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SRR

Compliance governance

LIST OF MAJOR ESG ISSUES

10 V4 ~ 20 KB
Equality, diversity and

19 HIK & B

Water consumption

anti-discrimination management
2 ERfRHEIL L A 11 HERE HE 20 L5 %
Workplace health and safety Energy management Light pollution
3 EMEE 121 % S8 A 21 Bt y5 Y
Product quality Greenhouse gas management Dust pollution
4 BRI B 5 T 13 BRIR A A0 22 E R R

Management of procurement and

Environmentally friendly

Recycle and reuse of resources

suppliers construction model
5 Bk #is R 14 W i 23 RS i5 KBk

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery Noise pollution Exhaust emission and sewage discharge
6 B T3 S Am Al 15 B THaI LB R 24 HE N JBEEY)

Staff remuneration and benefit Staff training and development Office wastes
7 S M KA A 8 25 B IR 25 bR

Sales service and complaint Community engagement and Use of raw material!

contribution

8 Y 17 B ER LA B

Construction wastes

ArALIAH

Greening project

Management of customer

information and privacy
18 AR 1L B T R i 55 1

Prevention of child

labor and forced labor

© aRER LI EHEs O e
Compliance All-round Caring for the Caring for
Governance Development Environment Society

1 SEETE LSBT AN AR R RL > i 1
o Bl R I A 7

Disclosure for the data of packaging materials is not applicable as the Group does not consume
packaging materials during production

114 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



BB REREY

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

TMER

G AR AL > L AR Y S S
R ROBEAE > ks AR L L LK
BODMEAT RAFSEB WL - REF R0
SR MBI o B FIR U THAE
il 4 e IR B R SR - B B KR
L P FP A RE ) - SEEEL T B
FHUERAN - UARGHSEHE B
T A AR BRSO > A RSN BT K A
W& R > HEREEE b - &
B N B T S M SR A BB - AR
R TAEREA BCE T -

B ] 2 S R0 R B L Rt B A e ML
AR R - E R R g M SR
P THEE [ B A R E > AT IR 4R Y
AR B o R R A A
JE g B2 T KRB B o TR B A
FHEL S F -~ TR TS RIEH
Al ~ PR B TS SRR - R
A R BRI~ AL R AR A
AR B JE B BB R R R o T R B A
A AR B S B R R R T AE > $R
SR i P TE S S
L4 P BB 2 5 B AR w - B
L HA s G HIE E - Al OR5E E E kBT
9 JE AT A L B A PR A B A S > A
SR Y PR R OE R~ R
WS SOET EATB T - FHRFER A
HR IS g 22 SLAE [ R ECHE R R o THP
& Eea il SUEA

EHERGEREFENSRARE I
Iy 5 B PR JE A R o BB e
WL E A o SR R AR A - B
HRHVE SRR > RiEEEELE A
FrafgE R T 8t

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

COMPLIANCE GOVERNANCE

The Group attaches great importance to compliance, runs and operates under
prudent business rules. In strict compliance with the requirements of laws
and regulations, it is committed to promoting sound business practices and
maintaining a high level of corporate governance and code of conduct. Multiple
measures have been adopted to improve governance accountability, transparency
and sustainable operation. The Group has put in place a complete compliance
governance structure for compliance matters, including the formulation of
compliance policy and procedure, management and control of external and
internal compliance risks and fostering of compliance culture across the board.
The Group has adequate and independent compliance resources to ensure effective

implementation of such compliance work.

The legal and risk department and the audit and compliance department are
two departments set up by the Group to directly report to the Board, jointly
raise the Group’s compliance standard and comprehensively reduce legal risks
exposed to the Group. The legal and risk department is mainly responsible for
the management and control of legal risks and external compliance risks, such
as review of business contract, follow-up of latest market and law information,
arrangement of compliance training for staff, as well as inspection of risk exposure
and rectification of each department through risk identification, assessment and
control. The audit and compliance department is responsible for conducting
independent audit work, proposing annual auditing plan and preparing auditing
program in respect of internal control compliance, special projects and other
auditing projects, to ensure the fulfilment of legal obligations by the Group and
the effectiveness of internal operation, and issue rectification notice on problems
found during auditing, follow up the rectification and hold the one concerned
accountable. The audit and compliance department also participates in the
establishment of an integrity system of the Group and helps to prevent and

investigate non-compliance and malpractice issues.

The Board of the Group sets annual compliance targets and is in charge of risk
assessment and internal control. Through the measures above, the Group will be
able to identify, supervise and regulate its compliance matters in a systematic

way, and achieve the Group’s sustainable development policy in the long run.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT

Employment

The Group believes that people are a critical factor for the success of a company.
As such, during our development and operation in mainland China, we have
established and maintained a comprehensive, fair and market-competitive
employment policy based on the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and other applicable labour laws and regulations. The regulations
safeguard the labour interests and benefit for staff, and the Group dedicates to
creating value for its staff by the following measures in compliance with ethical

and regulatory standards.

Equality, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is determined to build an equal, diverse and caring working
environment for its staff, and rejects discrimination and harassment in any form.
Selection of recruitment and promotion takes into account culture, abilities,
skills, experience and past performance, and a set of unified selection and
evaluation standards through position qualification has been established. The
Groups works to advance equal pay for equal work for men and women and
make payment based on the amount clearly stipulated on labour contract. Any
operation that violates the corresponding policy requirements will be regarded as
invalid and the responsibility of the relevant staff will be investigated. The Group
seeks to provide every employee with a broad occupational development platform

and fair opportunities.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Remuneration and Benefit

The Group has formulated a comprehensive remuneration system based on
employees’ performance, work experience and the prevailing market rate. It
consists of three parts including compensation, benefits and corporate culture.
Among which, cash compensation includes fixed remuneration, variable
remuneration (performance bonuses or year-end bonuses), cash benefits, share-
based incentives etc.; for benefits, on top of the statutory insurances, social
security and annual leave etc., the Company also offers a number of cash or
non-cash benefits schemes and various health, sports, family aid and other care
schemes. In addition, the Group advocates staff values of “Happy, Healthy, Rich,
Progress” to create a quality work life for its employees and establish a stage

revealing their values.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with the relevant employment regulations and relevant
policy requirements in relation to labor standards at any time, including but
not limited to the labour regulations mentioned above, and an internal guidance
is therefore established to carry out strict inspection over human resources
management to prohibit child labour and forced labour so as to ensure human

rights.

As stipulated by the Group on construction contracts, engineering contractors
should implement measures to ensure that no forced labour or child labour are
employed for construction works. The engineering management department of
the Group and the third party inspectors will also conduct regular inspections at

the construction sites to eliminate the possibility of forced labour or child labour.
Thanks to the measures above, during the Reporting Period, there was no

material breach of applicable laws and regulations relating to employment by the

Group.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Consinuedy

Health and Safety

The Group focuses on workplace health and safety of all employees and fully
complies with applicable health and safety laws and regulations, including the
Regulations on Safety Production Management for Construction Project and
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases. Such
regulations require entities to take safety responsibilities during planning,
building, construction and operation process, and take relevant prevention,
supervision and emergency approaches to protect staff’s health and safety. As
such, the Group has established a safety management mechanism, requiring staff

at all levels to work together to strengthen safety performance of the Group.

The Group has organized an occupational safety group to regularly assess the
safety risks exposed to the Group’s property business, monitor contractors on the
effectiveness of their regulatory measures and constantly review and optimize
current safety regulatory measures. At the same time, the Group has set up front-
line staff occupational safety representatives who would help to reflect real-time
safety condition on construction sites and enable the Group to understand the

safety situation of the sites.

The “Site Safety Standardized Management Guidelines” and the “Construction
Safety Inspection Standards” were formulated to monitor whether the
construction sites meet the requirements of safe construction from various aspects
such as site planning, personnel setting, safety equipment, emergency measures,

publicity and education, and special checks are conducted quarterly, including:

o Refreshment kiosk and resting areas etc. are available in the project site;

. Regular safety education is in place to enhance safety awareness of project
staff;

o Safety protective equipment and facilities are provided for physical

protection for staff;

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Health and Safety (Continued)

Implementing the daily examination and renovation mechanism based on

the relevant policies to effectively manage the safety of on-site production;

Information reporting system of the Group is put in place to realize

dynamic monitor of the safety accidents;

Safety guidelines are provided in observable areas;

Our staff who operate construction machinery and equipment at work
are required to be well trained for operational safety and to have obtained

relevant qualifications and certificates;

Safety measures and construction work control are implemented, with a

focus on the impacts imposed on the surrounding areas by our projects;

The supervising staff of the Group will regularly inspect the safety
performance of construction sites and require contractors to implement

necessary remedies to the potential safety risks immediately.

The Group requires contractors to put the health and safety of the workers at

first place as the same as the Group and continuously reviews the safety work

of contractors. The Group holds regular meetings with contractors, reaches

agreement in respect of the safety construction measures for early, middle and

late stages of construction business and sets up emergency response measures

to decrease the impact of accidents. The Group includes the contractors’ safety

performance in the annual assessment and will terminate the cooperation with

poor occupational safety performance.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Consinuedy

Health and Safety (Continued)

In addition to the occupational safety of staff on site, the Group also concerns
about the occupational health and safety of its staff in the office. The Group has
issued the emergency guidelines for fire and accidents, and requires all our staff
to be familiar with the locations of fire escapes and emergency exits with fire drill
conducted regularly every year. Meanwhile, the Group has formulated standards
for office environment, requiring our staff to maintain office and public area
cleanliness and prevent obstructions in fire escape routes. To ensure electricity
safety, electricity management personnel regularly conducts inspection and
maintenance of wire and conduit. The Group also arranges repairs immediately
when any damage to electrical equipment is found. Moreover, the Group pays
great attention to the development of physical and mental health of our staff.
We organize annual body checks within the scope of our Group, arrange regular
sharing and social sessions, and hold various cultural and sports activities for our

staff on a regular basis.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of applicable laws and

regulations relating to employee health and safety by the Group.

Development and Training

The Group emphasizes on the importance of the staff’s career development, hence
it continues to invest resources to provide the staff with training and learning
opportunities, assisting the staff in their career planning. We offer opportunities
for rotations and promotions to help our staff improve their abilities and achieve
rapid development. We have set up CIFI Institute providing various professional
training, general training and leadership training to the staff, and arrange
management of different levels to provide the staff with individual development
plan (IDP) guidance. Through different kinds of training and guidance, we help
our staff determine the development goal and path for their career and enhance

their working abilities, which improves the overall competitiveness of our staff.

The Group has various training programs in place, including the orientation
program for new staff, fast-paced development program for high potential staff,
and professional training systems and learning maps for other staff. In addition,
the Group has also developed an online learning platform that currently covers
more than 700 online courses, providing our staff with a comprehensive learning

channel from anywhere at any time.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

The Group promotes the principle of fair and open procurement with high
transparency of procurement environment, and upholds the concept of win-win
cooperation with outstanding suppliers to maintain a long-term relationship. To
ensure the execution of the above principles, we strictly implement the “Purchase
and Supplier Management System” and “Management Procedure for Construction

and Material Suppliers”.

The Group will conduct background investigation, including credit record, in
selecting its partners. Only the companies without illegal record can be accepted.
The Group will also investigate the historical results of its suppliers and reviews
their labour protection and performance on human rights. The Group check
its potential partners on site with the standards of quality, safety, environment
protection, etc. As to the supplies required to hold certificates such as ISO 14001,
ISO 9001 and ISO 45001, the Group reviews their certificates; otherwise, we
regard them as unqualified and will not cooperate with them. All of our partners
are treated with the same qualification standard to ensure fairness. The Group
currently has adopted an online platform with higher transparency and openness
for tendering. Terms for honesty and integrity and channels for complaints have

also been provided in the contracts and on its official website.

The Group will assess the quality and safety of the projects upon delivery,
conduct researches on the opinions and feedbacks from the customers on projects
and rectify in a timely manner. Project suppliers with low scores in the assessment
will not have opportunities for subsequent cooperation. If it is found that the
construction quality is lower than the contract standard or the service complaints
from the customers had been received, the Group would discuss with the

suppliers in charge and collect fine pursuant to the agreement in the contracts.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)

In addition, based on our emphasis on environmental protection and social
responsibility, the Group has joined the green supply chain, focusing on
monitoring the impacts to the environment and the control of our suppliers
of cement, steel, aluminium alloy, glass and coatings, and the control on
formaldehyde in materials for interior decorations and finished products. For the
selection of wooden products, products from members of the Global Forest Trade
Network (GFTN) will be given higher priority, so as to support the responsible
and sustainable enterprises in the forestry industry. The Group also includes
provisions related to environmental protection and series of terms requiring the
payment to farmers and safeguarding the rights of farmers in the contracts with

our suppliers.

Customers’ interests are the primary concern of the Group and the living quality
of owners is given thorough consideration. We select our decoration materials
with a standard higher than national standards, and strictly control critical
construction materials such as wooden products and wallpaper to ensure the

safety of incoming materials.

Product Responsibility

Quality Inspection

The Group acknowledges the importance of product quality and safety for our
customers, owners and the society, therefore, the Group strictly complies with
the requirements of laws and regulations relating to product quality such as
the “Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Regulation on
Quality Management of Construction Projects”, etc., including the compliance
with the state’s construction projects quality standard, the prohibition on cutting
corners, strict acceptation of completed buildings and setting defects liability

period to ensure the building quality.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Quality Inspection (Continued)
Our core principle is to maintain high standard of product quality, and strive to

continuously improve customer satisfaction on the Group’s products and services.

The Group considers safety factors in the early stage of real estate construction
plan and design. When choosing raw materials and inviting tenders from
contractors, the Group takes quality performance as one of the primary assessment
standards. During the construction, the Group holds close working meetings
with contractors to understand the construction process and condition, and
discusses together to prevent the quality problems resulting from hurrying
through projects or misallocation on resources. The Group conducts regular
quality inspection of buildings under construction with stringent standards, and
requests the contractors to submit inspection report on projects on process and
rectify the problems detected. The Group will also continuously follow up the

rectify process to ensure quality problems have been solved.

The Group has established a detailed project acceptance system and related
quality inspection procedures, i.e. “Construction Quality Management System
of CIFI Group”, “Inspection and Management Procedures of Customers’ Risks
in Full Cycle of Project”, “Drawing, Review and Management Procedures of
Pictures Attached to Contracts”, with which all sub-section of the project will
be inspected after completion to ensure that our products meet the national
construction safety requirements. Meanwhile, we also fulfil our product
commitment to customers and provide after-sales support services. The
Group has set up specific departments, including customer service, property
management, building repair, to provide repair, maintenance and after-sales
services after the completion of the projects, and formulated the “Guidelines for
Management Practice of Construction Maintenance of CIFI Group” and other
regulations to ensure the efficiency of repair work. The Group places emphasis
on after-sales quality testing, we set 2-level indicators for house design, house
quality and quality maintenance in customer satisfaction assessment to receive
the customer comments on house and follow up the quality problem in repairing
house in time. In addition, the Group has established a defect feedback system to
constitute the base line standard of construction quality through collecting defect

cases and prevent from making mistakes repeatedly.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Service

The Group strives to provide excellent value-for-money service and strictly
complies with applicable laws and regulations protecting customer rights
and interests, including the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumers Rights and Interests”, “Advertisements Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “General Principles of the Civil Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. With sincerity as the foundation of business, the
Group ensures to transmit real and accurate product information, properly meets

customers’ service demands and safeguards customers’ interests.

The Group has established the “Sales Risk Management System”, the “Overall
Sales Model Production and Audit Management Process” and other systems
in order to standardize all aspects of customer risk management in the project
development process specify the responsibilities of each functional department,
and provide better services from customers’ perspectives. The formulation of the
“Defect Management Procedure of the Group” prevents various defects in the
product development process to a certain extent, and helps the Group focus on

optimizing and improving product quality and service.

Through the well-established “Customer Complaint Handling Management
Procedures”, we are able to respond to customer complaints, follow up the
handling progress in time and address the problems effectively, enhancing
customer satisfaction. The “Operating Guidelines for Contact Point System in
Customer’s Full Service Cycle” ensures the customers receive a satisfactory and

timely service and experience every time they contact with CIFL

The storage and proper management of customer’s personal information is
governed by “Customers’ Information Management System” and “Operating
Guidelines for Customers’ Sales Files”. Customers’ information can only be used
for business purposes, and cannot be provided to third parties without customers’

consent.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of applicable laws and

regulations relating to the quality of products and services by the Group.
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ALL-ROUND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

The Group has implemented internal policies and guidelines to comply with
applicable laws in the PRC on anti-bribery and anti-corruption, including the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Interim Provisions on the
Prohibition of Commercial Bribery”, and the “Anti-money Laundering Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, etc., which require the operating organization to
maintain fair competition order and prohibit conduct any bribery by property or
other means or accept bribes for commercial purposes. The operating organization
also needs to take preventive and monitoring measures to avoid the occurrence of

money laundering activities.

The Group has established internal policies to provide guidance for clean
business, including the “Guidelines for Anti-Corruption and Complaint
Reporting”, the “Procedures for Supervision and Case Investigation of CIFI
Group”, the “CIFI Group Employee Ethics Manual”, etc. Employees are required
to read the code of ethics in the employee manual and sign the consent form to

confirm that they have been informed and will comply with the code at all time.

The Group reminds employees on the compliance of integrity through internal
e-mails, anti-corruption trainings cooperated with professional organizations
and CIFI Institute online courses. The Group also sets up an internal audit
mechanism and reporting procedures, and posts the necessary instructions on
supervision and reporting at its offices so that employees are able to promptly
report potential problems to independent management personnel. Measures above
are also in place to eliminate any bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

activities.

The Group’s construction contractors and suppliers are required to sign the
“Instructions and Commitment for Honest Business” in the tender and upon
entering into the contracts, complying with the code against corruption
and bribery formulated by the Group, and reporting to the Group any non-

compliance immediately.
The Group regularly reviews and updates its anti-corruption measures through

audits, monitoring of projects and annual risk assessment to ensure that it

effectively strengthens the Group’s internal control and compliance system.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of applicable laws and

regulations relating to anti-bribery by the Group.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Emissions

As a “superior student” of the TOP 20 real estate enterprises? in Mainland China
and the leader of “quasi-first-tier” real estate enterprises, CIFI has adhered to
the principle of sustainability. It is committed to be the leading green company
in the domestic property market while developing property projects. The
Group strictly implements the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Integrated Emission Standards for Air Pollutants”, “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”, “Regulations on the Administration of Environmental Protection of
Construction Projects” and other applicable laws and regulations on emissions
and environmental impacts. The regulations require business units to establish
environmental protection supervision mechanisms to prevent and reduce
environmental pollution and ecological damage, and to take responsibility for the

damage caused.

The Group has implemented comprehensive environmental protection policies
and a number of environmental initiatives to minimize the impact of business
operations on the environment, including the requirements for functional
departments to comply with the Group’s sustainable development principles,
the development of effective management measures to control the discharge
of various pollutants on the construction site and the establishment of a
resource data monitoring system for the consumption of energy and resources,
continuously reviewing the operation’s impact on the environment. The Group
practices environmental protection and promotes sustainable contribution to the

environment.

During the year, the Group’s business continued to expand, and the number of
construction projects increased significantly, driving administrative and logistical
demands, which directly led to an increase in the Group’s emissions. The Group
will continue to implement environmental protection measures to maintain the
growth rate of emissions at a manageable level and will seek and implement more

countermeasures to reduce the environmental impact of the business.

2 As showed in the evaluation results of TOP500 Real Estate Enterprises in China 2018 jointly released
by China Real Estate Association and China Real Estate Evaluation Center of Shanghai E-house China
R&D Institute.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Contined)

Emissions (Continued)

The Group attaches great importance to the compliance of various environmental
laws and regulations formulated by the state, and also requires employees and
construction contractors to be legally compliant in order to comply with our
standards and norms. During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach
of applicable laws and regulations relating to environment protection in the

projects fully managed by the Group.

Exhaust emission and sewage discharge
Our Group’s property projects generate exhaust, sewage and construction wastes.
Substantially most of our construction works are outsourced to third-party

construction contractors.

The Group has established the contractor monitoring procedures to regularly
oversee their environmental performances and require contractors to implement
various emission and waste reduction measures. When signing a contract,
contractors shall sign for and comply with the environmental protection code
established by the Group. The Group clearly stipulates the environmental
protection requirements in the contracted construction agreements and contracts
to limit emissions and discharges of various kinds of exhaust, dust, sewage
and wastes at the construction sites. Regular inspections are carried out on the
contractors according to the relevant requirements of the Group by a third-party
inspection agency, which examines, scores and rectifies the on-site emission items.
In addition, the Group sends personnel to monitor the environmental pollution
of the projects under construction, and holds regular meetings on environmental
compliance and discusses the performance on each stage of the construction. The
contractors are also required to report the environmental data to the Group on
a regular basis, enabling the Group to supervise the environmental performance

and compliance of the projects under construction.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Exbhaust emission and sewage discharge (Continued)

In addition, the Group has developed a series of detailed construction
instructions to control the exhaust emission and sewage discharge at construction
sites, including: controlling the use of heavy polluting diesel engines at the
construction sites to eliminate pollution gas emissions; installing catalytic
converters or particulate filters on the exhaust pipes of mechanical equipment
to reduce smoke, and adding sensors to measure the emissions of air pollutants
from equipment; using finished materials (finished concrete and mortar) to avoid
wet work and sewage generation; establishing indicators for pollutants and air
quality with daily monitoring on the above data and immediate follow-up on
any exceedance by the project construction supervisor; setting up environmental
monitoring sensors throughout the construction sites to monitor the air quality
at the sites and have real-time control over fine particulate matter, nitrogen
oxides and sulphur dioxide; strictly controlling sewage discharge standard, and
collecting all sewage at the construction sites and discharging to the designated

port after 3-stage sedimentation treatment.

As the Group’s transport vehicles for the construction works, machineries and
construction business are mainly managed by contractors, and the Group-owned
vehicles are mainly for providing transfer service to its staff and assisting staff
in inspecting the construction sites, there is no significant exhaust emission
involved. In addition, since the use, treatment and purification of water sources
are managed by the contractor, the Group’s main administrative business does
not involve significant sewage discharge. Therefore, based on this importance
assessment, the disclosure of exhaust gas and wastewater discharge data is not

applicable.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Our Group’s direct emissions of greenhouse gas are mainly as a result of
electricity and fuel usage in office operations. In order to demonstrate the Group’s
responsibilities and efforts in supervising the construction contractors, we have
estimated the greenhouse gas emissions from the construction works by the
contractors in respect of 222 property development projects actually managed by
our Group. During the Reporting Period, the total amount of greenhouse gas’

directly and indirectly emitted by the Group were estimated as follows:

w
(- FIik

I
(FEPJ5 K

20185F  REEEWIRY) 20174 HEEEWIRD)
Prigchk Intensity P it Intensity
55 R Pk Uk R WA Amount in (GFA per Amount in (GFA per
Source of greenhouse gas Unit 2018 sq.m.) 2017 sq.m.)
PN T A Office operations M Tonnes 2,899.31 0.0530 2,297.85 0.0574
7 e B Property development?  Mf Tonnes 36,244.56 0.0011 14,352.50 0.0012
3 W e 2 w2 AR A K A R 3 The calculation of carbon emission is based on the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by World

(WBCSD) LI FUE IRWF T BE (WRD) 2 Gl %
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Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and World Resources Institute (WRI),
“Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids” published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC, and “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

4 Due to the fact that all construction works were outsourced, the related GHG emissions were
indirectly emitted by respective third party contractors.

Due to the growth of business during this year, the Group’s direct and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions have increased significantly. However, due to the
increase in floor area and office space, and the Group’s strict management of
greenhouse gas emissions, the greenhouse gas emission intensity was maintained
at a level similar to that of last year. The staff and contractors of the Group have
been required to implement corresponding measures to reduce greenhouse gas

emissions. Please refer to “Use of Resources” for details on the relevant measures.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)
Construction Wastes
The Group’s wastes mainly come from the property development business and
office operations. During the Reporting Period, the amount of wastes generated

by the construction contractors was estimated as follows:

23 8 2/FIE R

¥ fr 20184E B 201748

Type of construction wastes’ Unit Amount in 2018 Amount in 2017
i ERE R Hazardous wastes®

BILIEE Fluorescent tube MH Tonnes 284.6 102.0
eyl Asbestos H Tonnes 72.9 26.4
BB Ry Harmless wastes

e Ay Building debris MA Tonnes 169,600.2 60,577.2
FLHE Rubble M Tonnes 8,680.2 3,100.8
et Soil M Tonnes 4,768,400.1 1,703,030.4
REE T Concrete MH Tonnes 301,660.9 107,739.6
BE Asphalt H Tonnes 42.7 15.6
LB BEY Metal scraps M Tonnes 14,970.5 5,348.4
il Bamboo scaffolding 8 Tonnes 1,571.5 561.6
ARbF Wood MH Tonnes 21,365.2 7,630.8
i35 Glass M Tonnes 3,185.6 1,138.8

5 E ﬁ%?z PAEEIH B 0 @SR B e R th TRUR R 5 Dara for construction wastes for property development projects was provided by respective contractors.
6 A EEEYIRYE A N AL RS (R EE T ¢ Hazardous wastes are classified according to the “National Hazardous Waste List” issued by the

1 IR A B BE W 44 B0 BT 4006

A A 1 1Y) R0 H R DU 0P X
B BECREEEYA EIES - R
T 3% 2 400 1) 434 Wi BELIEL 1 ) 1 W A4 < A 7D
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2 e
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Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China.

The number of the construction projects of the Group has increased by multiples
during the year, resulting in an upward trend in construction wastes. However,
the increase in wastes is in line with the increase in projects, showing that the

Group’s waste management and control has achieved some results.

The Group implements stringent monitoring measures on contractors to ensure
that the contractors observe the waste reduction principles during the early,
middle and late phases of construction. At the project level, prior to construction,
the Group and its contractors closely scrutinize the specific treatment plans for

wastes and formulate detailed follow-up measures.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Construction Wastes (Continued)

The Group requires contractors to implement stringent construction waste
management measures. The contractors should arrange separate storage for the
hazardous wastes specified in the “Directory of National Hazardous Wastes”,
such as oil-containing wastes, mercury-containing fluorescent tubes and nickel-
cadmium batteries. Storage containers must be clearly marked with names and

amount of wastes, and collected by recyclers with professional qualifications.

Meanwhile, the Group has also instructed the contractors on the disposal of
construction wastes, so as to achieve waste reduction at source and recycling for

reuse.

In respect of waste reduction at source, the contractors have strengthened the
standardized management of drawings and unified the drafting standards of
drawings, with an aim to assist the staff in understanding the construction
requirements better and eliminate the waste of materials at source. The
construction materials and decorative materials have been centralized for
processing to increase efficiency. Warehouses for raw materials and finished
products have had moisture-proof, sunscreen-proof, rust-proof and anti-

metamorphic works properly done to reduce unnecessary waste of materials.

In addition, the Group applies the concept of recycling for reuse. Contractors are
required to carry out screening of wastes and sorting of recyclable materials, and
reuse related materials as much as it can after analyzing the quality. Component
modular building design is used to facilitate future alterations and reduce
the amount of demolition materials. In terms of the design of foundation and
earthworks, spoils from excavation works are used as filling materials to reduce
the spoils generated from excavation works. The site supervisor records the daily
volume of construction waste disposal and reviews the effectiveness on a regular

basis.

Since 2013, the proportion of the Group’s residential housing with full fitting
has substantially increased. By switching from the sale of unfitted traditional
commercial housing to residential housing with full fitting, the Group is able to
systematically integrate its resources to avoid wastage from individual fitting by
the owners, thereby reducing unnecessary building materials and waste discharge

to save resources.
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BE (4m) Emissions (Continued)

WL ERHY Office Wastes

SR A P B A T Z A E o BEA The Group has set up various offices across the PRC that are mainly responsible
EFEEAFETEMERERN TE for the work on the management of the Group’s businesses, in which the most

RFEEEENBEEY B o AWMEY common waste generated is paper. During the Reporting Period, the amount of
o> WA EEAENBEEYBEASE U wastes generated by the office was estimated as follows:
T

e 2 8 T e 04 20184E ik 20174F S
Type of wastes generated from office operations Unit Amount in 2018 Amount in 2017
fiE 2 Hazardous wastes’

R Fluorescent tube MH Tonnes 1.77 1.92
JBE BE TR Waste battery MH Tonnes 1.96 1.57
e B Ry Non-hazardous wastes

A% Paper MH Tonnes 68.54 35.23
sy Ink cartridge MH Tonnes 5.31 8.46
gk Toner cartridge H Tonnes 4.77 5.04
oAt A= 38 B 3 Other domestic wastes WH Tonnes 212.20 331.62
7 B E RS PN R B B (e Hazardous wastes are classified according to the “National Hazardous Waste List” issued by the

1B R A ) 44 85 ) T 4345 = Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Office Wastes (Continued)

As the demand for administrative matters and the number of regional
departments and offices of the Group increased during the year, the amount of
some wastes including paper and battery also increased despite of a reduction
of other wastes. The Group will continue taking emission reduction measures
and regularly introducing its office staff to environmental measures to gradually
improve their environmental protection awareness. The staff are encouraged to
print on both sides of the paper as much as possible, and to print daily forms
and internal documents with recycled paper. The Group’s printers mainly use
recyclable toner cartridges to reduce the disposal amount. The Group strives to
keep balance between all businesses and the environment with an aim to reduce

office wastes.

Use of Resources

Adhering to the principles of sustainability and environmental protection, our
Group has conserved resources in property projects for building a green enterprise
image. All production and operating activities of our Group are carried out in
accordance with the purpose of energy conservation and emission reduction. We
believe that the improvement of efficiency in construction phases will effectively
reduce raw material and energy consumption. We have also implemented
environmental protection measures proactively to reduce the consumption of

energy and water use in the course of business operations.
During the year, the energy and resource consumption of the Group has a certain

level of increase due to the growth in business. The Group has adopted the below

management programmes to ensure sustainable development.
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HIRAEH a1) Use of Resources (Continued)
REVRE P Management of Energy

G 190 P (5 1 1) RE U R A DU > 23 2
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There are mainly four types of energy used by our Group, namely electricity,
petrol, diesel fuel and natural gas. During the Reporting Period, the amount used

by the Group was estimated as follows:

HEUERR 1 HLp 20184E Bk 20174F Y B
Type of energy Unit Amount in 2018  Amount in 2017
b e P g Property development®
ES Electricity TR K kWh 34,279,777.0 12,242,786.2
wIE Electricity intensity TRW ) KRR
kWh/GFA per sq.m 1.04 1.06
WL Petrol INTF Liters 56,145.4 20,053.7
VRIS Petrol intensity ﬁﬂ/@%ﬁ*@%ﬁfﬁf
Liters/GFA per sq.m 0.0017 0.0017
LEih Diesel INTF Liters 5,073,482.4 1,811,958.6
Bei % T Diesel intensity ﬁﬂ/@%ﬁ*@%ﬁfﬁf
Liters/GFA per sq.m 0.15 0.16
KIRFA Natural gas K m? AN N/A AN N/A
KIRE Natural gas intensity SEJOK BT KRR S R
m’/GFA per sq.m A N/A N N/A
WAEBE Office operations
& Electricity T kWh 2,931,910.1 1,974,184.5
EHEE Electricity intensity TR 35 oK 4R A
kWh/GFA per sq.m 53.59 49.31
PRl Petrol INTFF Liters 414,259.0 332,695.7
VR B Petrol intensity ANTE R OK RS A
Liters/GFA per sq.m 7.57 8.31
S Diesel ATF Liters 8,134.0 ANE N/A
S Diesel intensity ANTE BT K RS A
Liters/GFA per sq.m 0.15 ANEH N/A
FIRE, Natural gas K m 30,136.0 6,000.0
FIR T Natural gas intensity SEJ KT K R A T A
m?/GFA per sq.m 0.55 0.15
8 T M2 GRS TE H A REVRGE T R Bk b TRUREN 8 Data for energy usage of property development projects was provided by respective contractors.

Fefft o
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Management of Energy (Continued)

Our Group mainly uses the electricity supplied by the State as its basic energy
and petrol and diesel as the fuel for business vehicles. To further put into
practice the idea of sustainability, we require construction contractors to sign a
resources conservation statement and comply with relevant energy conservation
principles established by the Group. When selecting construction machinery,
the contractors should give priority to energy-saving or high-efficiency products
as recommended by the national standard. The contractors should formulate an
effective logistics plan to shorten the mileage and traveling route, so as to reduce
the use of petrol or diesel. When implementing projects, they should take the
initiative in using natural resources, such as solar and wind power, by adopting
renewable energy application technology, for example, installing solar street
lights and using solar water heaters in living areas to further promote the use of
new energy among the public. LED light strings should be placed in safe passages
and basements of construction projects in order to reduce consumption by about
10% as compared with traditional lamps. Besides, in living areas, the use of
high-power electrical appliances is strictly prohibited and the use of electricity is
under strict control. The project construction supervisor monitors the electricity
usage data of construction sites regularly and formulates improvement measures
for energy conservation accordingly. The contractors shall also promote saving
awareness to every corner of the construction site. After the untiring efforts of the
Group, the energy use density has decreased as compared with last year, ensuring

the proper use of energy.

In addition to proper control at construction sites, the Group has also carried
out corresponding energy conservation measures in offices. The office buildings
are equipped with intelligent air-conditioning temperature control and light
switches with self-adjusting function for indoor environment to reduce electricity
consumption. Also, the underground areas have had energy-saving LED light
strings installed. The Group has placed great emphasis on publicity and education
to raise every employee’s consciousness on energy conservation. The Group will
continue promoting and strengthening the environmental performance of the

office in the future.

135



BB REREY

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Bl IR )

BV )

JHKEPE

RIS EARIA > EB AR BRI T -

CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continned)
Water Consumption
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water consumption was estimated as

follows:

w W

20185 (WFIIK 20174 (FPIK

Jik#E  REWRD) AR REWRD)

Water Intensity Water Intensity
FK & WA consumption (GFA per consumption (GFA per
Water consumption Unit in 2018 sq.m.) in 2017 sq.m.)
b NG Office operations MH Tonnes 32,454.0 0.59 7,809.6 0.20
75 4 25 B %o Property development® MH Tonnes 2,504,443.2 0.076 894,444.3 0.077
9 75 7 DR 3 IE i1 K R R R TR R A R 4 9 Data for water consumption at property development projects was provided by respective contractors.
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The Group’s water efficiency continued to rise during the year, while its water
intensity of the real estate business declined. As for the office operations, the
water consumption data in relation to the Group’s headquarters building was

newly added, resulting in a significant increase in water consumption.

To further improve water usage, the Group has improved its water consumption
efficiency in three aspects, namely industrial planning, monitoring of contractors
and provision of construction guidelines. During the construction of works,
the Group has monitored the contractors closely, such as requiring them to
sign the declaration of energy-saving to comply with the proposed water saving
principles. Project construction manager also needs to monitor the data of water
consumption at the construction site regularly and to formulate water-saving
improvement measures accordingly. The Group propagates environmental
awareness at the construction site and advocates water-saving. Water-saving
faucets and sanitary ware have been adopted at the construction sites to
improve the use of water resources. The construction sites have also set up
sewage sedimentation tanks and sewage return pipes to recycle wastewater from
construction, living areas and rainwater runoff. For the purposes of recycling and
reuse, sewage is pumped into water after sedimentation, and the collected water is

then used in vehicle cleaning and spraying on the road to reduce dust.

The Group also has corresponding office water-saving measures, including
performing regular inspection and maintenance on water pipes to avoid leakage;
collecting waste water in a water tank for recycling and reuse; washing water
tank regularly to reduce wastage of water resources. During the year, the Group
does not have any issues on obtaining water resources. The Group will continue
improving the reported data and focusing on the management of water to reduce

water intensity in the future.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group attaches great importance to the impact of its business operation
on the environment and natural resources. Therefore, in addition to complying
with relevant national environmental protection regulations and international
standards, the Group also merges environmental protection concepts into our
daily management. It endeavors to mitigate real estate development project’s
impact on environmental protection from operating strategy, product design to

construction, project planning and construction work.

During the construction of each project, the Group regularly monitors and
measures the emissions produced and conducts environmental impact assessment
at the time of planning. After that, the management and environmental
consultant will formulate appropriate plans and measures according to the
environmental impact assessment so as to minimize the damage caused to the

environment and natural resources by the project.

The Group will also review the environmental impacts caused by its operations
and continue to update and improve the environmental protection mechanism as
well as to enhance employees’ environmental awareness, such that each function
can operate more efficiently. Apart from this, the Group has further expanded its
monitoring on resources consumption data to implement strategic operation, so as

to contribute to sustainable development and strive to be a “green enterprise.”
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Green Building Model and Greening Project

As a real estate developer, our Group considers the construction methods,
operation details and sustainability of buildings at design stage such that they
can conserve resources and improve the indoor air quality in the long run. Green
buildings can be better integrated into people’s lives, leading to a more livable
and comfortable city. Therefore, by combining the national green and healthy
building policies with the actual development needs, the Group formulates
“Green Standard” and “Health Standard” for CIFI’s residential and office projects
and prepares “Green Residence Manual” to guide projects. The Group has
adopted the BIM technology to integrate each work design and construction
drawing, coordinate construction session and properly utilizes resources, and
reduce unnecessary construction wastage, errors or omissions and remedial works
through three dimensional information system for promoting efficient, high-
quality and environmental construction process and creating a healthy living
environment for the owners. In addition, the Group has also integrated green

building elements into the design of real estate development as follows:

. It plans the building orientation and appearance in the overall planning
and individual layout based on the building function and local climate

characteristics to makes full use of climate resources;

. Windows should be installed in staircases and corridors to make use of

natural lighting;

o Energy-saving construction materials are used in the building to guarantee

thermal insulation performance of the building’s peripheral structure;
o Rainwater collection system have been used among building to connect

the collected rainwater after treatment to the fire pipelines for structure

maintenance or high altitude spraying.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Green Building Model and Greening Project (Continued)

Besides, on the project construction aspect, the Group is actively promoting
the projects under construction to comply with China’s three-star certification,
“Evaluation Standards of Green Building”, to further enhance the elements of
green construction. Contractors are required to implement specific environmental
protection measures, including the use of intelligent environmental monitoring
equipment on the site, installation of water spraying system for dust particles,

proper site planning, and installation of water-saving utilities etc.

Light Pollution

Large-scale construction work leads to light pollution, such as arc light from
the welding machine and the glare from night time construction work. Light
pollution could affect people’s sleep quality, and the continuous exposure to
glare could affect health. As such, the Group requires contractors to check the
lighting equipment for construction work, and prohibits the use of non-shielded
or unprotected equipment. All outdoor flood lights at the construction site are

required to be installed with an automatic time switch.

Noise Pollution

Construction sites generate noises. Continuously exposure in high-decibel noise
environment will damage people’s hearing and health. Due to the fact that
construction noises affect worker and nearby residents, contractors are required
to select quieter equipment, and to use soundproof equipment for the sensitive
areas closer to the residents. Contractors are therefore required to strictly comply
with regulations for construction sites in which the projects are located, control
the hours of operation where loud processes are undertaken, and also enhance the

training of workers, to reduce noise pollution impact for nearby residents.

Dust

Construction work raises dust, and results in a decline of the urban air quality,
endangering the health of human lungs. In order to reduce the impact of dust at
construction work, the road surfaces and construction sites in our projects under
construction are regularly sprayed with water to suppress dust; all vehicles in
and out of the sites are required to be washed before being allowed on the road;
construction wastes and materials with more dust are required to use leak-proof

vehicles to deliver or take measures to cover dusty load.
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CARING FOR SOCIETY

Community Investment

In order to promote the social culture of mutual assistance so that the
underprivileged groups in need in the community are able to receive material
aids and mental comfort, the Group has continuously fulfilled its corporate
social responsibility through donations. The Group has established the “CIFI
Charity Foundation” to continuously support community education and enhance

productivity.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has been active in conducting
community activities, including the organization of “Health into the
Community” free clinic activity, providing the residents in community with
various free body examination services, such as blood pressure measurement,
blood sugar test and electrocardiogram examination, and hosted the CIFI Public
Welfare Hiking Competition (174 JIEHA #5626 ) and over hundred of
regional events, which effectively promoted the neighborhood relationship within

the community.

Yongsheng Property, a subsidiary of the Group, also organized a community
team to hold community activities and enrich the lives of retired people in the
community. Yongsheng Property also engaged in poverty alleviation work by
supplying basic necessities such as rice, soybean oil, flour, milk, egg and fruits,
as well as housekeeping convenience service for poor family to address their needs
in life. The volunteer team of Yongsheng Property paid irregular visits during
festive and holiday seasons to understand the specific living conditions of the
residents in the community, and offer poverty alleviation services to the families
with particular needs. The above mentioned activities are all helpful for the staff
from the property company to integrate into the residents and send a sincere

warmth to the families in difficulties.

Yongsheng Property joined hands with the neighbourhood committee to assist
vulnerable groups in applying for charitable aid and obtaining certain material
subsidies to release their pressure in life. In addition, the neighbourhood
committee also explained the beneficial national policies to the groups which
could provide assistance to the needy suffering from difficulties in sickness, work

and life.
We will keep giving back society with sincere gratitude. In the future, the Group

will continue expanding its community investments to perform corporate social

responsibilities and bring benefits to all walks of life.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) presents the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development and property investment. The
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are shown under
note 55 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
turnover and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report and notes 5

and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” section of this annual report and the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 189.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.
Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental protection policies, performance and
relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and major stakeholders are set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set out
in note 52(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Performance Highlights”

section on page 19 of this annual report.
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PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend for 2018
(payable in cash with a scrip option) of RMB19.68 cents per share. The Proposed
Final Dividend declared in RMB is proposed to be paid in Hong Kong dollars
equivalent to HK23 cents per share, which is based on the average middle rate of
RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the
five business days preceding the date of the Annual Results Announcement for
2018.

Subject to the approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM”),
the Proposed Final Dividend will be payable in cash but shareholders will have an
option to receive the Proposed Final Dividend in form of new fully paid shares of
the Company (“scrip shares”) in lieu of cash, or partly in cash and partly in scrip

shares (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the passing of the resolution
relating to the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend at the 2019 AGM
and the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and
permission to deal in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip Dividend

Scheme.

A circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with relevant
election form will be dispatched to the shareholders on or about Wednesday, 5
June 2019. It is expected that the cheques for cash dividends or, if scrip shares
are elected, the certificates for the scrip shares will be sent on Wednesday, 3 July
2019 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, 30 May 2019.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8
May 2019 to Tuesday, 14 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 May 2019.

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 29
May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the Proposed Final Dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
28 May 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set

out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUE AND CONVERSION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
On 14 February 2018, the Company issued zero-coupon Convertible Bonds due

February 2019 (“Convertible Bonds”) with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$2,790 million which are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (the “Singapore Exchange”). The Convertible Bonds are convertible
into shares of the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$9.30 per share
(subject to adjustment) and adjusted to HK$9.04 per share with effect from 31
May 2018 as a result of declaration and payment of the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017, and further adjusted to HK$8.90 per share (the
“Adjusted Conversion Price”) with effect from 29 September 2018 as a result of
declaration and payment of the interim dividend for the six months ended 30
June 2018. If the Convertible Bonds are not converted into shares, the Company
will redeem each Convertible Bond on the maturity date at its 101.5% of the
principal amount. The Directors are of the view that the issue of the Convertible
Bonds can provide the Company with additional funds at lower funding cost for
the purposes of repayment of existing debt and as general working capital of the

Group.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds of approximately
HK$2,750 million had been fully utilised (i) as to approximately 40% for
repayment of debts and (ii) as to approximately 60% for general working capital

of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate principal amount of the remaining
outstanding Convertible Bonds was HK$1,028 million. Assuming full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the Adjusted Conversion Price of
HK$8.90 per share as at 31 December 2018, the outstanding Convertible
Bonds would be convertible into 115,505,617 Shares (the “Conversion Shares”),
representing approximately 1.49% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2018 and approximately 1.47% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of the Conversion Shares resulting from
the full conversion at the Adjusted Conversion Price. The Conversion Shares
had a nominal value of approximately HK$11,550,562 and a market value of
approximately HK$825,865,162 based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company of HK$7.15 on 25 January 2018 (being the date on which the terms of

the Convertible Bonds were fixed).
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ISSUE AND CONVERSION OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)

No share had been converted from the outstanding Convertible Bonds during the
year. The potential dilutive effect attributable to the Convertible Bonds on the

earnings per share is set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Based on the financial position of the Group, to the best knowledge of the
Company, the Company expects that it will be able to meet its redemption

obligations under the outstanding Convertible Bonds issued by the Company.

The Company believes that there will be more advantageous and beneficial for
holders of the Convertible Bonds to convert into shares rather than redemption
of the Convertible Bonds when the share price of the Company is higher than
HK$9.0335 per share (before considering transaction costs) based on the

Adjusted Conversion Price.

Details of the Convertible Bonds are set out in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company received a conversion notice from a holder of the Convertible Bonds
(the “Bondholder”) on 28 January 2019 in respect of the partial conversion of
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$4 million. Accordingly,
449,438 new Shares were allotted and issued to relevant Bondholder on 1
February 2019 at the Adjusted Conversion Price of HK$8.90 per Share. The
new Shares rank pari passu with all the existing Shares as at the date of allotment
and among themselves in all respects, and represent approximately 0.0058% of
the issued share capital as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the new Shares.
Immediately after such conversion, the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds held by the Bondholders was decreased to HK$1,024
million. The Convertible Bonds matured on 12 February 2019.

SENIOR NOTES AND CORPORATE BONDS

Details of senior notes and corporate bonds of the Company during the year are

set out in notes 35 and 36 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are respectively set out on pages 192 and 399 of this annual report. In
respect of the Company, the amount of its reserves available for distribution
under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands as at 31 December 2018 was

approximately RMB11.2 billion.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”

section of this annual report and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company purchased a total of 27,316,000 shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$85,618,680 and all the 27,316,000 repurchased shares were cancelled on
delivery of the share certificates. The repurchases were effected by the Directors

for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Details of the repurchases are as

follows:
P Aok 4 I A 4 I MR
JBe 4 48 9 I3 w18 TR AR Approximate
H Total number Highest price Lowest price aggregate
Month of shares paid per share paid per share consideration
BT eV I
HK$ HK$ HK$
—E—\FE+H 27,316,000 3.35 2.89 85,618,680
October 2018

CFE—NFET A AARRTS F
B AR 4 #2%F 911,000,000 # T (19 AT 6 B
&% > SARE £5910,986,690%5 G > 1 1
TR NFETH > RN AE R W
G B TR R AR SR A N B AR AR
851,000,000 %5 JC ) o] 46 I f& 75 > HEA0ME
£5859,510,000% 70 © HAZR » A2 H] 58 K
SR BN AEE £51,762,000,0009 TC 1) 1% 8] 7]
W& o ATHRRME SR —F— JLE

H B > 8 N A 4856 /51,024,000,000
VES T 114 1T 46 IR A S A 0 A BT e Tl -
A By A2 B LA [RME 9 101.59% 1E 8] o
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In October 2018, the Company purchased on-market an aggregate principal
amount of HK$911 million of the Convertible Bonds for a total consideration
of HK$910,986,690 and in December 2018, the Company purchased an
aggregate principal amount of HK$851 million of the Convertible Bonds
for a total consideration of HK$859,510,000 from the eligible holders of the
Convertible Bonds by invitation. Thereafter, cancellation of the repurchased
Convertible Bonds in the aggregate amount of HK$1,762 million was completed
by the Company. At the maturity of Convertible Bonds in February 2019, the
remaining Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,024
million were delisted from SGX-ST and were redeemed by the Company at the
Redemption Price of 101.5%.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s

securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Zhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Wei (Vice-chairnan)

Mr. LIN Feng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Dongbiao

Mr. YANG Xin

Non-Executive Director
Mr. ZHOU Yimin

(resigned on 25 November 2018)
Mr. WANG Wei

(appointed on 25 November 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. GU Yunchang

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue

Mr. TAN Wee Seng
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting and be
eligible for re-election. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association requires
that any Director appointed by the Board at any time to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the following annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr.
LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Feng and Mr. TAN Wee Seng shall retire from office by
rotation at the 2019 AGM of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Mr. WANG Wei, who was appointed by the Board as Director
after the 2018 annual general meeting, shall hold office until the 2019 AGM and

shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company and each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has signed an appointment letter with the Company.
The appointment of all the Directors is for a period of three years and shall
continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving not less than
six months’ (in case of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, being
executive Directors) or three months’ (in case of Mr. CHEN Dongbiao and Mr.
YANG Xin, being executive Directors, Mr. WANG Wei, being non-executive
Director, and Mr. GU Yuchang, Mr. ZHANG Yongyue and Mr. TAN Wee

Seng, being independent non-executive Directors) prior written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at the 2019
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within

one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors, the management shareholders of the
Company nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or might compete with the business
of the Group. In particular, Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng,
being the executive Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company,
declared that they did not engage in business competed or might compete
with the business of the Group during the year and they have complied with
the undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 November 2012. The independent non-
executive Directors did not notice any incident of non-compliance of such

undertakings.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out in the

“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As at the date of this annual report, the Group entered into a number of loan
agreements or facility letters containing covenants relating to specific performance
of the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Loan Agreements”) which
were subject to announcement disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules
and requirements of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the

Listing Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(1)  On 6 November 2015, the Group’s 50:50 joint venture companies formed
with Hongkong Land China Holdings Limited in respect of Shanghai
Lujiazui Yangjing project as borrowers, entered into an offshore facility
agreement and an onshore facility agreement with a group of offshore
financial institutions and a group of onshore financial institutions as
lenders. The relevant offshore facility agreement is a US dollar denominated
term loan facility with an aggregate amount of US$600 million with
final maturity of five years from the date of the relevant offshore facility
agreement. The relevant onshore facility agreement is a Renminbi
denominated term loan facility with an aggregate amount of RMB1.3
billion with final maturity of five years from the date of the relevant

onshore loan agreement.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

@i1)

(iii)

@iv)

)

On 21 December 2015, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement (the “Hang Seng Facility Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank
Limited as lender. The Hang Seng Facility Agreement refers to a US dollar/
RMB dual currency term loan facility with a principal amount of US$40
million, with final maturity of thirty six months after the first utilization

date.

On 11 March 2016, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with a group of financial institutions as lenders. The relevant
facilities granted under the facility agreement have an aggregate size of
approximately US$600 million (divided into two tranches: US$495 million
and HK$819 million), with final maturity of thirty six months after the

first utilization date.

On 29 August 2016, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited as lender. The facility
agreement refers to a USD/HKD dual currency term loan facility with a
principal amount of US$50 million (or its equivalent in HKD), with final

maturity of thirty six months after the first utilization date.

On 3 October 2016, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into an
original facility agreement with Hang Seng Bank Limited and Hang Seng
Bank (China) Limited, Shanghai Branch as lenders. The original facility
agreement was amended on 8 May 2018. The facilities granted under
the revised facility agreement have an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$548 million, with final maturity of thirty six months

after the first utilization date.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

On 30 December 2016, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with a group of financial institutions as lenders. The term
loan facilities granted under the facility agreement as at the date of the
annual results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2016
(pursuant to the amount committed under the initial agreement and the
supplemental agreements) have the following tranches: (i) RMB term loan
facilities (“RMB Tranche”) with an aggregate amount of RMB800 million
(equivalent to approximately US$116 million) with final maturity of thirty
six months after the first utilization date of the RMB Tranche; and (ii)
HKD/USD term loan facilities (‘HKD/USD Tranche”) with an aggregate
amount equivalent to approximately US$303 million with final marturity
of forty eight months after the first utilization date of the HKD/USD

Tranche.

On 29 August 2017, the Company as borrower, accepted a facility letter
relating to a three-year term loan facility of up to HK$500 million offered
by Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. as lender which shall be made available
for drawdown within six months from the date of the facility letter
countersigned by the Company with final maturity of three years from the

date of first drawdown.

On 4 September 2017, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with a group of financial institutions as lenders. The facility
agreement refers to a USD and HKD transferrable term loan facility with
final size of USD289 million with final maturity of thirty six months after
the first utilization date and a utilization period of six months from the

date of the facility agreement.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

On 15 November 2017, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., Offshore Banking Center
as lender. The facility agreement refers to a term loan facility of HK$380
million with final maturity of twenty four months after the first utilization
date and a utilization period of six months from the date of the facility

agreement.

On 28 March 2018, the Company as borrower, and certain offshore
subsidiaries of the Company as original guarantors, entered into a facility
agreement with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as initial lender. The term loan facilities granted under the facility
agreement have an aggregate initial amount of HK$500 million (with
an accession option of additional US$440 million from other accession
lenders), with final maturity of forty two months after the first utilization
date. The utilization period for the initial amount and the accession is three
months from the date of the facility agreement and the date of accession

letter, respectively.

On 3 July 2018, the Company as borrower, accepted a facility letter
relating to a two-year term loan facility of up to HK$500 million offered
by The Bank of East Asia, Limited as lender, which shall be made available
for drawdown within three months from the date of the facility letter
countersigned by the Company with final maturity of two years from the

date of first drawdown.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES (Continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

On 16 August 2018, the Company as borrower, accepted a facility letter
relating to a one-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$400 million
offered by Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited as lender.

On 21 September 2018, the Company as borrower, accepted a facility letter
relating to a three-year term loan facility of up to HK$300 million offered
by Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. as lender which shall be made available
for drawdown within six months from the date of the facility letter
countersigned by the Company with final maturity of three years from the

date of first drawdown.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreements as above-mentioned, it is required that:

Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, their family trust and
the companies beneficially owned by them (the “Controlling Shareholders”)
will collectively maintain a minimum percentage of beneficial ownership
of the entire issued share capital of the Company. As at the date of this
annual report, the minimum percentage of beneficial ownership of the
Loan Agreements under (iii) and (vi) have been 51%, while the minimum
percentage of beneficial ownership of the Loan Agreements under (i), (ii),
(iv), (v), (vii), (viii), (ix), (x), (xi), (xii) and (xiii) above have been or have
been amended to 40%; and

any one of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng shall remain
as the chairman of the Board (except for the Loan Agreement mentioned
in (i) above entered on 6 November 2015 which do not require this

undertaking).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(I) 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 October 2012
(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Directors may invite participants to take
up options at a price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an offer is made by the Company to
the grantee (which date must be a business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price being
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of the share of the Company
on the Offer Date. The 2012 Share Option Scheme had a life of 10 years but it
was terminated at the annual general meeting of the Company on 27 April 2016.
No further options shall thereafter be granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme but the options which had been granted during its life shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force

and effect.

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to motivate the Directors,
senior management and employees to optimize their future contributions to the

Group and reward them for their past contribution.

The participants of the share option scheme include any Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors) and employees of any member of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners, service providers of
any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have

contributed or will contribute to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (consinued)

(I) 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
577,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme and as at 31 December
2018, a total of 110,059,000 shares (representing approximately 1.42% of the
existing issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report) may be
issued upon exercise of all options which had been granted and yet to be exercised

under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the total number of
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue unless otherwise approved by the shareholders at a

general meeting of the Company.

The options already granted may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the option period which had been
determined and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time of making an
offer which should not expire later than 10 years from the Offer Date. The offer
should remain open for acceptance for a period of 14 days from the Offer Date.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.

155



R f

Directors’ Report

Yol Y BT ) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Covinued)
O B -TARREBRREST R 4p) @) 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contined)
A EE AR > ARYE F — AEBERETT  Particulars of the movement of options granted under the 2012 Share Option
B O R BRI S A Scheme in respect of the year under review are as follows:
HH Directors
JBEHE % H
Number of Share Options
bl RoZ—AE TRARAEE RAEE  REZ—\E
(¥ —H-H Tt XH AZHAZ—H
Exercise WAL Exercised Lapsed AT
w4 40 i HE Price Outstanding during during Outstanding
Name Capacity Date of Grant (HK$)  at1]Jan2018 the year the year  at 31 Dec 2018
A S Eafih A “E-ZHEFA A L5SHIL 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
M. LIN Feng Beneficial Owner 29 October 2013 HKS$1.55
“Z-HFLAT=A LT 2,800,000 (2,100,000) - 700,000
13 July 2015 HKS$1.77
BRI Ehifa A CE-CHEZHTAARR L4l 800,000 (800,000) - -
Mr. CHEN Dongbiao Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
“E-ZHEHASHAN L3I 10,330,000 (10,330,000) - -
29 October 2013 HKS$1.55
“E-EERTER LT 5,800,000 - - 5,800,000
13 July 2015 HKS$1.77
e -0k PN CE-SECACHAR 1684 600,000 (600,000) - -
Mr. YANG Xin Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
“FZ-=FFTAZTLAE 155 C 800,000 (800,000) - -
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
“E-HELATEH LT T 2,550,000 (1,575,000) - 975,000
13 July 2015 HK$1.77
(E8 % 8t ZIN CE-SEZAZEAR 168l 800,000 (800,000) - -
Mr. GU Yunchang Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
“E-ZEFAZTAA 155HTT 700,000 (700,000 - -
29 October 2013 HK$1.55
“E-TELEAT=ER 1773 600,000 (450,000) - 150,000
13 July 2015 HK$1.77
ok e Ehifa A CE-ZHEZHTAAE LesakT 800,000 (800,000) - -
Mr. ZHANG Yongyue Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HK$1.684
“E-ZHETAH A 1L55¥ 0 700,000 (700,000) - -
29 October 2013 HKS$1.55
ZE-HAEEATEA 17T 600,000 - - 600,000
13 July 2015 HKS$1.77
BRfEREE 0k PN CE-SECATEAR Lesai 200,000 (200,000 - -
Mr. TAN Wee Seng Beneficial Owner 26 February 2013 HKS$1.684
“E-ZEFAZTE 15SHTT 175,000 (175,000) - -
29 October 2013 HKS$1.55
“E-nELHTER LT 300,000 - - 300,000
13 July 2015 HKS$1.77

156 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



R f

Directors’ Report

U B B 3 )

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

M) ZF - TAERRBRER ) () () 2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
e 5 Employees
YUk B S H
Number of Share Options
(LT e 2y C S TRARAE . B=%— N\
(#c) —~H—H o ¥ P +ZH=+—H
Exercise AT B Exercised L AR AT B
apsed

il H b Price  Outstanding during during Outstanding

Date of Grant Capacity (HK$)  at1]Jan 2018 the year theyear  at 31 Dec 2018

SEEEIASAH L EcE 2PN L6S4EIE 69239356 (64,038091) (5,201,265 -

26 February 2013 Beneficial Owner HK$1.684

“E-EETAZ A L EcE 2N LSSHTE 52,693,331 (49,707,164)  (2,986,167) -

29 October 2013 Beneficial Owner HKS$1.55

“E-RAEEAT=H HaHA N L77i7T 64,980,000 (33,455,000) - 31,525,000

13 July 2015 Beneficial Owner HK$1.77

“FANF-AZH A A L478 T 87,691,000  (17,682,000) - 70,009,000

20 January 2016 Beneficial Owner HK$1.478

i Notes:

1. W T — AR A o BRI R 1. As for the share option granted on 26 February 2013, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
T RO B R R B T A T A BT Y Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$1.65. The options
Wi 8 2y 1.65 W TC o REIRBES> 25 DU - BRAEAN are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018.

25% > MR F AL A — AR 2% /VFER
A=+ HATE -

2. SR S AR A U H B R T 2. As for the share option granted on 29 October 2013, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
T M B W RRE A0 T L W S T Y Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$1.52. The options
W8 fy 152 T o WEIBCHE S J Uit > At AL are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018.

25% > MR EPAEL A — HESE - VER
A=+ HATE -

3. B CF— A A = HR R R S 3. As for the share option granted on 13 July 2015, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
TR 7 AR 1 W PR B8 30 T T 52 BT A o i immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$1.65. The options are
Fy1.65WI0 o BECHE S B VUt - BEALAL259% - AT exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 13 July 2015 to 30 June 2019.

e S T S g 2 R B e e S K A 2 R
HATfE -

4. R E N H A H R T S 4. As for the share option granted on 20 January 2016, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
R 7 BT ) SO RE 13U i W 32 i i i A Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$1.51. The options
F51.51% 00 o WEICHE Y FyDudtt > Bdtbdti259 » Al are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2020.

MR AEEA - HE RN =+
1Tt o
5. AT PR N7 A PR L S o 5. No option was granted or cancelled during the year.
6. AETR] > REAS A 2 I AR ME A ol S0 A W A T 1 6. The weighted average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange immediately before the dates

TRET- 05 T 5 £ 6.06# 7T

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

on which the options were exercised during the year was HK$6.06.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(II) 2016 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company at the annual general meeting held on 27 April 2016. The 2016
Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from 27 April 2016 and the remaining
life of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is approximately 7 years.

The purpose of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to motivate the participants of
the scheme, including Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group
to optimize their future contributions to the Group and reward them for their
past contribution.

Pursuant to the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the Directors may invite participants
to take up options at a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date on which an offer is made by the Company to the grantee (“Date of
Grant”) which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and (c) the nominal
value of the Shares.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate exceed 666,640,390 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the 2016 Share Option Scheme unless the Company obtains an approval from
the shareholders to refresh the limit and as at 31 December 2018, a total of
220,000,000 shares (representing approximately 2.84% of the existing issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report) may be issued upon
exercise of all options which had been granted and yet to be exercised under the
2016 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each grantee under the 2016 Share Option Scheme (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue for the time being unless otherwise
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period which may be determined
and notified by the Board to the grantees at the time of making an offer which
shall not expire later than 10 years from the Date of Grant. The offer shall remain
open for acceptance for a period of 7 days from the Date of Grant. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.
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B it ) 22 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cominmed)

an  ZFONEERE B8 ) (Il) 2016 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

WP EAEBE > iR T — SRR Particulars of the movement of options granted under the 2016 Share Option

B O I RE S BRI R Scheme in respect of the year under review are as follows:

A Directors

TR HE % H
Number of Share Options
fiepie % AAE RS RAREE  REF—NE
(#7) —H—H #ib fifl +oHE—H
Exercise WAL Granted Exercised WAL
k4 ah gHBH Pricc  Outstanding during during  Outstanding

Name Capacity Date of Grant (HK$)  at1Jan2018 the year the year  at 31 Dec 2018

s HRMHA ZE—LEHAZH 4340187 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000

M. LIN Feng Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340

BRI SEE 5 ZEDN “F—tETAZH 4340187 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000

Mr. CHEN Dongbiao Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340

Gl HRMHA “E—LEHAZH 4340170 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000

Mr. YANG Xin Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340

[ZELE 5 ZEDN “E-LEHAZR 434047 300,000 - - 300,000

Mr. GU Yunchang Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340

RAERE HiMHA “F—tETA=R 4340170 300,000 - - 300,000

Mr. ZHANG Yongyue Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HKS$4.340

BefERlse % 2N “E-LEHAZR 434007 400,000 - - 400,000

Mr. TAN Wee Seng Beneficial Owner 3 October 2017 HK$4.340

EE Employees

JEJBCRE ¥ H
Number of Share Options
BoF— N TRARAE RASEE  REFNE
AT BURE —~H—H il fif +oH=E—H
(#8) W ARATBE Granted Exercised w AR AT

Bt o Sh Exercise Price Outstanding during during Outstanding

Date of Grant Capacity (HKS$) at 1 Jan 2018 the year theyear  at 31 Dec 2018

—Z—LE+=H FECE LN 4340 T 204,400,000 - - 204,400,000

3 October 2017 Beneficial Owner HK$4.340

[ 5E Notes:

1. B &L H = A R S o L. As for the share option granted on 3 October 2017, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
37 A 1 R TRORE BT T 2 T 52 T A A i B 2 Exchange immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$4.35. The options
435W 0 o MERCHESY B DUt > 43 5l4Es5% ~ 109 are exercisable in 4 tranches of 5%, 10%, 20% and 65%, respectively, from 1 January 2019 to 31
209 1 65% > A F—JUE—-H —HE % December 2022.

AR T A= HATE -

2. A A SIf JRE S RN 1~ AT~ SRkl o 2. No option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 18 December 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”), pursuant to which the shares to be awarded
(the “Awarded Share(s)”) will be purchased by Prosperity Fountain (PTC)
Limited as the trustee (the “Trustee”) of the trust declared in the Trust Deed
dated 18 December 2017 entered into by the Trustee (as restated, supplemented
and amended from time to time) (the “Trust Deed”) from the open market or
subscribed from the Company as new shares out of cash contributed by the Group
and held on trust for the Eligible Person(s) selected by the Board for participation
in the Share Award Scheme (the “Selected Participants”) until such Shares are
vested with the relevant Selected Participants in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise
the contributions by certain any of the (i) key management personnel including
Directors and senior management of the Group; and (ii) employee of any member
of the Group (the “Eligible Persons”, other than any Eligible Person who is
resident in a place where the award of the Awarded Shares and/or the vesting and
transfer the Awarded Shares pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme is
not permitted under the laws or regulations of such place, or in the view of the
Board or the Trustee (as the case may be), compliance with applicable laws or
regulations in such place makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such Eligible
Person as excluded persons) and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme shall be subject to administration of the Board and the Trustee in

accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme and the Trust Deed.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on

the Adoption Date.

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares which will result
in the total number of Awarded Shares exceeding 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the Share Award Scheme in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the number of the Shares in issue.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2017 and 29
December 2017.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

During the year, the Trustee purchased 14,650,000 Shares on the open market
under the Share Award Scheme at a total cost (excluding related transaction costs)
of HK$75,313,200. Such purchased Shares represent approximately 0.19% of the

Company’s total number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2018.

Details of interests of the directors of the Company in the Award Shares under

the Share Award Scheme in respect of the year under review are as follows:

T
Ex Directors
iR w1y
JBe B v RBE 2 T 23 BE
Approximate
percentage
BE B EH of the issued
2EH B HW Number of shares of
Name Date of Grant Award Shares  the Company (%)
e e A “F—/\EAATAHE 2,930,000 ft7E1 0.04% Mfzk2
Mr. LIN Feng 16 August 2018 Note 1 Note 2
FFFEE - Notes:
1. %S S AR A & AR\ H L B 82 15 1. The Award Shares were vested to Mr. LIN Feng (or his designated family trust of which he is a
JB T ARG S A (SR T4 58 T AR 4 52 4 Y R iR beneficiary) on or after 17 August 2018.
i) -
2. Ao WA A R —F— /NE+ A =1+— 2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
HE B TR G5 December 2018.
3. Sk bt 452 R A S AR A o AR R A SR AR H ) 3. Except for the grant of Awarded Shares as mentioned above, the Company has not granted any Shares
BEZE—ETTH =T IR RO under the Share Award Scheme from the Adoption Date to 31 December 2018.
SRy EHBIRZ B AT TR -
4. A B A SE BT B 2 2B R R S A B R 4. Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
FbiE48 o statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares:

s/ HeHE I e
R DB 4 E
Number of Shares/

underlying Shares

2 W (49)

LH A B/ BT pursuant to % Interest
HAHM  Nameof Director  Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
Mt Mr. LIN Zhong /NG Exi AERA DNl 1,185,177,671 15.30%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
A 2GR MR ALA (HE2) 2,305,855,975 29.77%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
A HAHEA A (HE3) 6,956,950 0.09%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 3)
LBEENE AL (Wik16) 100,000,000 25%
ERARAR
Shanghai Lingyu Apartment  Interest of controlled corporation (Note 16)
Management Co., Led.*
IR0 ge s A B R (RE17) 40,000,000 40%
BHUERAR
Shanghai Yipixi Construction  Interest of controlled corporation (Note 17)
Technology Co., Led.*
FKTHAE 6 s S A R (aE1s) 440,000,000 29.33%
HIRAT
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Interest of controlled corporation (Note 18)
Services Group Limited
AKTHE I B S AL (ko) 330,000,000 22%
HIRAH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)
Services Group Limited
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HREFEATBABMNESHEZ DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

(#4%) IN SECURITIES (Continued)
TS B H R SBAR B SF RT ¢ (4

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)

e,/ RS0 B
IR By S H
Number of Shares/
underlying Shares 4 e (%))
LA Bh /BT pursuant to % Interest
HHHM  Name of Director  Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
AKTHE 7 AR S Hopt (H3k20) 287,000,000 19.13%
HIRATH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Other (Note 20)
Services Group Limited
WA Me LIN Wei AT SRR () 451,952,559 5.84%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 4)
AT SUEBOR ISP A 1o tae (WaEs) 200,000,000 2.58%
Company Interest of his child under 18 years of age (Note 5)
LY SHEFR MR ALA (HiE2) 2,305,855,975 29.77%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
AKTHE T S S T M R (3E19) 330,000,000 22%
HRAF
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)
Services Group Limited
AKTHE I RS S Hotr (k1) 727,000,000 48.47%
HIRAH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Other (Note 21)
Services Group Limited
MUESEE  Mr LIN Feng A 2HEFFER A (k) 210,600,580 2.72%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 6)
A 2GR MR AL (HE2) 2,305,853,975 29.77%
Company Co-founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
AT AL AR (2t 7) 500,000 0.01%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 7)
A Haih A A (its) 5,100,000 0.07%
Company Beneﬁcial Owner (Note 8)
A gtz ZONLE) 1,800,000 0.02%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner (Note 9)
AT 1 s 4 A R AR (WfeE22) 287,000,000 19.13%
HIRATH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Interest of controlled corporation (Note 22)
Services Group Limited
U (R A PRA R | —F— /N4 163
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HREFEATBABMNESHEZ DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

) IN SECURITIES (Conined)
AR B AH BB W4T (48 Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
e,/ RS0 B
IR By S H
Number of Shares/
underlying Shares 4 e (%))
LA Bh /BT pursuant to % Interest
HHHM  Name of Director  Name of Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest share options (Approximate)
TR T MR AL (ko) 330,000,000 22%
HRAH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Interest of controlled corporation (Note 19)
Services Group Limited
TR T MR Ho (H3k23) 440,000,000 29.33%
HRAH
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Other (Note 23)
Services Group Limited
BERUESEE  Mr. CHEN Dongbiao 7R/ 7] Haha A (k10 17,848,000 0.23%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner (Note 10)
/NG gt 2 NU D)) 13,300,000 0.17%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner (Note 9)
B Mr YANG Xin A gt GON(rall) 6,973,254 0.09%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner (Note 11)
AT HRHA A SR (5E12) 1,000,000 0.01%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner and Interest of his Spouse (Note 12)
LY HaHEA A (W) 6,975,000 0.09%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner (Note 9)
BEESAE MeGUYunchang AT ik ZON{GEAE) 1,950,000 0.03%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner (Note 13)
AR FHEA A (L 9) 450,000 0.01%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner (Note 9)
FokES g Mr ZHANG Yongyue A7\ HabA A (k1) 700,000 0.01%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner (Note 14)
LY HAHEA A (M) 900,000 0.01%
Company Beneficial Owner (Note 9)
BEMRREE  Mr TAN WeeSeng A/ g5 ZON(Fiab) 975,000 0.01%
Company Beneﬁaal Owner (Note 15)
A0 HahEA A (ko) 700,000 0.01%
Company Beneﬁc1al Owner (Note 9)

164 CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018



R f

Directors’ Report
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(#)

T Aoy B A B PR R 4 5T+ ()

BT -

1. AR d R EARAR ([ME DA - WA
1) 2 £ %84 7 AR FH Eernally Success International
Limited ([ Eternally Success ))& EHER [l Ecernally
Successi & FPCLHEATHEA A HiSun Success Trustft
%t AStandard Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited
(['Standard Chartered Trust]) ZE#SCTS Capital Pre.
Led. ([SCTS Capital ) F547 © Sun Success Trusc/J
s (FE 25 A EE 4% 7 N) BilScandard Charcered
Truse ((ERZFEN) R ZF—AF R +—HK
S AHEAS FE © Sun Success Trusef % %5 A ALFEHK
BRI T RS o MR R R R B R ]
HEXVES > MR SEAE (fF £5Sun Success Truse 8IS
) BB S S B R 91,185,177,671 B
WA o

2. B IR Ay B ARBUEA PR B ([ 848 D) 3547 - 1%
R TIRA R E A RA A (2%
i) REHA > M EEENETHE BT
A% J) f AR PO R A5 #E Y 52 58 A Standard Charcered
TrustE#MSCTS Capicalfif o FRICFKIEE FETIHK
oA~ BRfRRSE A BRI e (fF B TSR T )
BilStandard Chartered Trust (TEA&ZFCN) it =%
— ART A BRSO RS T o ARIREK
A REMY 32 4 N ALK e - Mg S bk
SeE A T R R o RYEE I K & o 56
XVHS » Mhepilae - MRS BopkIgsEA: (fF fspk
TR A5 R SL R AISE ) 25 B I 25 0 S 4
A 192,305,855,97 Bt Pl i i o

3. WA AR AR R R A

4. W2 Byt R A BRA R ([ 8R D) #5 4 - R
W2 T AR FHLW Assec Holdings Limited
(LW Assec)) R EHEA - LW Assecf) 2 HPE 5
AT IR AR dhy — 1 el AR AR e 2 (P A IR EE IR T )
BilCredit Suisse Trust Limited ([ Credit Suisse Trust])
(PEF 32 5E N A —F— A L 1 R REAE FE
G ACHA S WNOECE N SR ISR e 37
BE o MRYERE TR R B RO XV o M A S
As (R Bz sE A2 N B 2 i st SR R 1Y
451,952,559 BB v AT HE A

5. AL IO B — TR SRR - 2 A NS AR g
AR ISHEBRIY T4 o R > ARIERE S R f e
B XVER > MR S A B 2 i 5% 5 200,000,000
TR v A R AR

6. #% % % ¥ H Rain-Mountain Limited ([ Rain-
Mountain]) F#A ° Rain-Mountainf 2 HBE 517
A i Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited ([ Beauty
Fountain|) & %A MBeauty FountainfJ 42 #f
£ %547 B AR I B Sun-Mountain Trust 952 € A
Standard Chartered Trust/ZE#HESCTS Capitalff A ©
Sun-Mountain TruscJIMRIE e A4 (1F 5 B 4% T
N) BScandard Chartered Trusc (1F 2532 5E ) it
SR TAFERA S+ HSL 2RERE FC o Sun-
Mountain Trustf3Z fi NLFEARIE e A 1925 TR
R E o MRS R B BB XVER > Mg
A (FEF5Sun-Mountain Truse/WEISE ) B 25
Rain-Mountain 4 #1210,600,580/B B f73 H A1

5o

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)
Notes:

1. These Shares are held by Ding Chang Limited (“Ding Chang”). The entire issued share capital of Ding
Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success International Limited (“Eternally Success”), the entire
issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust (Singapore) Limited (“Standard
Chartered Trust”) as the trustee of the Sun Success Trust via SCTS Capital Pte. Ltd. (“SCTS Capital”).
The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as settlor and Standard
Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun Success Trust include
certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong. Mr. LIN Zhong as founder of the Sun Success Trust is
taken to be interested in the 1,185,177,671 Shares held by Ding Chang pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Rosy Fortune Investments Limited (“Rosy Fortune”). The entire issued share
capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty Assets Limited (“Gentle Beauty”), the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the
LIN’s Family Trust via SCTS Capital. The LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by
Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee
on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng. Each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr.
LIN Feng as a co-founder of the LIN’s Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,305,855,975
Shares held by Rosy Fortune pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. These Shares are directly held by Mr. LIN Zhong.

4. These Shares are held by Eminent Talent Limited (“Eminent Talent”). The entire issued share capital
of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by LW Asset Holdings Limited (“LW Asset”), the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Wei as settlor and
Credit Suisse Trust Limited (“Credit Suisse Trust”) as the trustee in 2018. The beneficiary objects of
the said trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Wei. Mr. LIN Wei as founder of the said
trust is taken to be interested in the 451,952,559 Shares held by Eminent Talent pursuant to Part XV

of the SFO.

5. These Shares are held by a trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. LIN Wei’s children under 18
years of age. Therefore, Mr. LIN Wei is deemed to be interested in these 200,000,000 Shares pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

6. These Shares are held by Rain-Mountain Limited (“Rain-Mountain”). The entire issued share capital

of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain Holdings Limited (“Beauty Fountain”), the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the
Sun-Mountain Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary
objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as
founder of the Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested in the 210,600,580 Shares held by Rain-
Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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20.

166

% % 9 B Towin Resources Limited ([ Towin
Resources ]) 745 © Towin Resources 2 #BE #F1T
JRAS bR S e A AT o

%A AR th BRI SR LR A

B 2 AR — AR B G B R o
A FBCAE R 303 T T B RZ L g ) S A
HE o S S5l B M 1Y P 2 N SO AR AR o
B A B R ) | — Bt o

WA ARt ORI SEAE A o
WAL AR B A

FLEE IR AR T AR ST R A o
AL By T B S A

%S AR H SRR T S AT o
% I AR o BRAR RSB B AT o

WA L RN A RN (AR LA
B2 ) §BCA iR A SE R RN R ([ L it
JEREASE ) A > AR S RG] AR
PEBAR BB EEIRE

i 5 i U0 BT A SRR A R R ([ e B
8 1) ey LA MRS SEREAT - AR S SR S )
EMs] > MRrb Se i WS R B IR o

WL K TR T IR AR EA PR W) (TR TR TS 1) B9
JBE 5 H Elice Force Development Limited ([ Elite Force
Development J) #574  Elite Force Developmencff 4
TS EEA TR A Ak B R 509 diARfEESEAE
T 259 L mARIGESEAE R A7 259 < TRIL  HEE
% BIREAR] » M SE A B i Elice Force
Developmen £ [11440,000,000 % 7k F+ A= 16 A7
A eI -

% 4 K TH A2 3 1 B 6y i Speceron Enterprises
Limited ([ Spectron Enterprises |) 75 > TfiSpectron
Encterprisesif 2 O 81T A QI AR F Bl #E2
ZHE A AR A RAFRAA o Bt R
T B fets] » AR SeE ~ bl de it Jobhig e
H ?ﬂimﬁfj’;\Spectron EnterprisesT# 47 330,000,000
Je K T AR 0 R A v A R AR

FZAE K THETE I B0 HiBest Legend Development
(PTC) Limited ( i % Best Legend Development
Limited > [Best Legend ) ¢4 > TfiBest Legend?.%
— {7 A Best Legend Trust/IfF 5L ([Best Legend
Truse]) BZFEA » 3% 45 5E MG SE A4 2 G B
TRk A 0 S 3 W 58 e A i 4% 22 D 75 i
BT SR AN B 3 S M o S F Y o 8
L ME AN H > MRARSEE ~ Moffe ek Bopkig
ST — BATEI SR - ARIERE SR M LR
MR Se AR £ Best Legend 545 119287,000,000
Je K T AR 0 R A v A R AR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)

7.

13.

14.

15.

17.

18.

19.

20.

These Shares are held by Towin Resources Limited (“Towin Resources”). The entire issued share
capital of Towin Resources is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Feng.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. LIN Feng.

The relevant Directors were granted options to subscribe for such number of Shares under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2016 Share Option Scheme, respectively. Details of the Directors’
interests in share options are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
Directors’ Report section of this annual report.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. CHEN Dongbiao.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. YANG Xin and his spouse.
These Shares are directly held by Mr. GU Yunchang.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. ZHANG Yongyue.

These Shares are directly held by Mr. TAN Wee Seng.

These shares of Shanghai Lingyu Apartment Management Co., Ltd.* (“Lingyu Apartment
Management”) are held by Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise Development Co., Led.* (& i JH A A S 5%
JRA TR A (“Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise”) of which Mr. LIN Zhong is regarded to have control by
virtue of the SFO.

These shares of Shanghai Yipixi Construction Technology Co., Ltd.* (“EPC Construction Services”)
are held by Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise of which Mr. LIN Zhong is regarded to have control by virtue
of the SFO.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle Services Group Limited (“Ever Sunshine Lifestyle”) are held by
Elite Force Development Limited (“Elite Force Development”). The entire issued share capital of Elite
Force Development is owned as to 50% by Mr. LIN Zhong, 25% by Mr. LIN Wei and 25% by Mr.
LIN Feng. Therefore, Mr. LIN Zhong is regarded to have control in these 440,000,000 shares of Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle held by Elite Force Development by virtue of the SFO.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle are held by Spectron Enterprises Limited (“Spectron
Enterprises”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Xu Sheng Limited which is
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, each of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei
and Mr. LIN Feng is taken to be interested in the 330,000,000 shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle held
by Spectron Enterprises pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle are held by Best Legend Development (PTC) Limited (formerly
known as Best Legend Development Limited, “Best Legend”), the trustee of a trust namely Best
Legend Trust (“Best Legend Trust”) which is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Feng and set up for the
purpose of a share incentive scheme of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle to be adopted at least six months after
listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr.
LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIN Zhong
is deemed to be interested in the 287,000,000 shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle shares held by Best
Legend.
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21. %A KT T R HiBest Legend M Elice Force
Developmentfffi o A =F— /\HF/AHNH »
e %ﬁf‘ﬁi&%”’“?ﬁiﬁ)ﬂ*ﬁﬂﬁﬂ
B8 o MRRRE I B B AR - A S A o Sy i
Elite Force Development%“ﬁn’]440,000,000ﬁﬁ/k9“|'
AT 9 K Best Legend A 19287,000,000 /8 7K T+
A3 B vh A R ©

22. FZAE K T TE A I Best Legend Truscf3Z5E
ABest Legend® ¥4 > TMiBest Legend Trust B ARIGSE
PE A AT BB TR IR 52 T AR b i1z 2D
PR A2 T SR AR R K T AR I R 5 Wb 2
WS E Y o MRS IR R B RRBIEXVER > Mg
JeAEAE FiBest Legend Trust (AT AP 25 7 Best
Legend 547 19287,000,000 8 7K FH2E 16 4 h AT
HEdE -

23. %K THETE I B A B Elice Force Development
F¥H © Elite Force Development 4 H L #5471k
N NG b e A N e B N e SR B
WA 50% ~ 25% K 25% = L > K% 6 5% & 40
AR - AR 58 A B S A 5% 55 H Elice Force
Development 34 A 1 440,000,000 & 7 T+ 4= 7 ik
By PR FERIAE o R T — M AANHE -
TR MR AR RbR I S AR SR RT — BT B 32
T o MRS S R B ] > bl S A AR 2
SR SELE FE 1 Elice Force Development T
440,000,000/B 7K T A= 1 FB 3 e A A

PAE TR HIRERT -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: (Continued)

21.

22.

23.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle are held by Best Legend and Elite Force Development. Mr.
LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIN Wei is deemed to be interested in the 440,000,000 shares of Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle shares held by Elite Force Development and the 287,000,000 shares of Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle shares held by Best Legend.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle are held by Best Legend, the trustee of Best Legend Trust
which is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Feng and set up for the purpose of a share incentive scheme of
Ever Sunshine Lifestyle to be adopted at least six months after listing of its shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LIN Feng as founder of the Best Legend Trust is taken to be interested in
the 287,000,000 shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle held by Best Legend pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

These shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle are held by Elite Force Development. The entire issued share
capital of Elite Force Development is owned as to 50% by Mr. LIN Zhong, 25% by Mr. LIN Wei and
25% by Mr. LIN Feng. Therefore, Mr. LIN Zhong is regarded to have control in these 440,000,000
shares of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle held by Elite Force Development by virtue of the SFO. Mr. LIN
Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng signed an acting in concert deed on 6 August 2018. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIN Feng is taken to be interested in the 440,000,000 shares of Ever Sunshine
Lifestyle held by Elite Force Development which is controlled by Mr. LIN Zhong.

Interests in the debentures:

LA

i 8y

A 2 A i
Y BER ¥ B b
Approximate
percentage of
the aggregate
principal amount

A B 2 i of the relevant

Name of Bh / B PEE Principal amount of debenture issued
KM Name of Director ~ Corporation Capacity/Nature of interest relevant debentures held (%)
Mg e Mr. LIN Feng EN/NE| S B A (FfE2) 15,000,000% 75 5%
Company Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) US$15 million
AN AR TEMAILA (HEE3) 10,000,000 7T 3.33%
Company Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3) US$10 million
i 53 Notes:
1. PR/ EAEH 347 A & A 1. The senior perpetual capital securities were issued by the Company in August 2017 with the
300, 000 0003575 ﬁ’[k - 79!'4"—:#*"':5 375% > aggregate principal amount of US$300 million at a distribution rate of 5.375% per annum (“2017
1 Hﬁ/\F)fJ:FEﬂ@{ETL IKANEAR S ([ ZF—LAF August Perpetual Securities”) which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
SNHKAESR])
2. Towin Resources{ﬁﬁ‘ﬂiﬁz\ﬁﬁl5,000,0003%77:5"]:2!3 2. Towin Resources owned the principal amount of US$15 million of 2017 August Perpetual Securities.

—-EMFE/\H K A#FR ° Towin Resources2HBE
SEFTIRAS PR Ao 2 CEBEAY

JATRER (SR AR R | R — ARAER

The entire issued share capital of Towin Resources is wholly owned by Mr. LIN Feng.
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3. Rain-Mountain®f A7 48 82 410,000,000 TG 1 — &

—LE/NHKAFES © Rain-MountainfJ 2HELE
BATIA H1Beauty Fountain® &HEA > MiBeauty
Fountain ) 438 © 5 17 i 4% Il 1 Sun-Mountain
Trustf)5Z 5L AStandard Chartered Trust/ZE it SCTS
Capital 45 ° Sun-Mountain TrustIMRIGESEAE (FF
Py FER T N) BilScandard Chartered Truse (fE4)
ZRCN) i T AR A T H L 2L
#E ° Sun-Mountain Trustﬂ‘]”\?’i/\@.fﬁ%mﬁ%im
TR E o ARERE I KA ) S X v
MR 5EA: (FE 25 Sun-Mountain Trustﬂgﬁuﬁ/\)%&'ﬁ‘
£ Rain-Mountain® A 193% % — LA/ H KA
ARG H D EEARERT -

TR i I A

AN TR T S S B AR A9 5 3361 A
ACE ] S VAL Ty =ty
Jr*ﬁ*wb H o> BRISA [ 25 5 i
AN E S SR PN = e
mhﬁﬂﬁﬁ%% AR B AR F
A AR LS B A B R B B 0y R e AR 45
75 5 N B B G0 55 XV RR 5 2 M3 R A G
5( AT TR o BORE > ol #
T PN (FEFERANF EEIT
BN B BRI A AR LS ) B0 A B s 3 A
YA JH RO BRI AR 15 75 7% I B 9158 336
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Interests in the debentures: (Continued)

3. Rain-Mountain owned the principal amount of US$10 million of 2017 August Perpetual Securities.
The entire issued share capital of Rain-Mountain is wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain
Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as
settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-
Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng as founder of the
Sun-Mountain Trust is taken to be interested in this principal amount of 2017 August Perpetual
Securities held by Rain-Mountain pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December 2018, the following
shareholders, other than those disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” in this Directors’ Report section
of this annual report, had notified the Company of its interests and/or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and so far as the Directors were aware, persons other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, who had an interest or a short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

A 2wl
CEAT IR Y
B2 I
Approximate
percentage of

Befr ¥ H the issued shares

FEBOR A 2/ £l Number of  of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
CE&RE PR A (B EE) 2,305,855,975 29.77%
Gentle Beauty Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
AR ok 2SN 2,305,855,975 29.77%
Rosy Fortune Beneﬂc1al owner (Note 1)
Eternally Success ZPEHE B LS (i RE2) 1,185,177,671 15.30%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
S5 A N (Ff5E2) 1,185,177,671 15.30%
Ding Chang Beneﬁaal owner (Note 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

A2 W)
CEAT B
BERE 2
Approximate
percentage of
the issued shares

BB ¥ H

FEBIRHAH By BEE TR Number of  of the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares (%)
Standard Chartered Trust Z L N (MHEE3) 3,701,634,226 47.80%
Trustee (Note 3)
SCTS Capital ZHEH I AR RS (ME3) 3,701,634,226 47.80%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
LW Asset A N (i 5E4) 451,952,559 5.84%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
HLER A N (BH5E4) 451,952,559 5.84%
Eminent Talent Beneﬁaal owner (Note 4)
Credit Suisse Trust ZREN (Ff5E4) 451,952,559 5.84%
Trustee (Note 4)
FH 122 N R DR B A A R ) AN (B5ES) 746,654,000 9.64%
Ping An Life Insurance Company of Benef1c1al owner (Note 5)
China, Ltd.
Hh BT 22 R B (SR 1) A3 A FR 2 ] YL BREAE (MERES) 746,654,000 9.64%
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of ~ Interest in controlled corporation (Note 5)
China, Ltd.
Hh e S A L (B s ) A PR ) OB (FHEs) 545,000,000 7.04%

Ping An of China Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

Investment manager (Note 5)

BT -

Notes:

1.

JEREE R (R A IRAT | =

BRI TR BATRA A R A - A
5% M A TR OB AT IR AR JU R IR R R AR RE RN 2
AStandard Chartered Trust/ZE#SCTS CapitalFFH o Ak
IRFEAGRETIM A et - MR Sa i Ropge S (fF
ﬁﬂﬁ%*&%/\) BilScandard Charcered Trusc (TE/3 3
AL A TR T A — FALE RO 2 R
e M\EE%E%.,EEE’J z i NI AR RSB - MRS
A AR SEAE A T RIEIRE -

B AT AT H Ecernally Success®: &
> MMEcernally Successi2HBC EEATRA I H Sun
Success Trust/3Z 5E AStandard Chartered TrusciZ
SCTS CapitalifH © Sun Success Trust/IFRH1 e 4 (FF
Py AT N) BlScandard Chartered Truse (fF 25325
N R ZF— AT +— BB R HEEFE © Sun
Success Trustl 32 fid NALHE AR 5825 19 25 F Kk i
J=1

— AR

1.

The entire issued share capital of Rosy Fortune is wholly owned by Gentle Beauty, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the LIN’s Family Trust
via SCTS Capital. The LIN’s Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up jointly by Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr.
LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as settlors and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The
beneficiary objects of the LIN’s Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr.
LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng.

The entire issued share capital of Ding Chang is wholly owned by Eternally Success, the entire issued
share capital of which is in turn held by Standard Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun Success Trust
via SCTS Capital. The Sun Success Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Zhong as settlor and
Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May 2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun Success Trust
include certain family members of Mr. LIN Zhong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

3. These include 2,305,855,975 Shares held by Rosy Fortune, 1,185,177,671 Shares held by Ding Chang
and 210,600,580 Shares held by Rain-Mountain. The entire issued share capital of Rain-Mountain is
wholly owned by Beauty Fountain, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn held by Standard
Chartered Trust as the trustee of the Sun-Mountain Trust via SCTS Capital. The Sun-Mountain Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Feng as settlor and Standard Chartered Trust as trustee on 11 May
2012. The beneficiary objects of the Sun-Mountain Trust include certain family members of Mr. LIN
Feng.

4. The entire issued share capital of Eminent Talent is wholly owned by LW Asset, the entire issued share
capital of which is in turn held by a discretionary trust set up by Mr. LIN Wei as settlor and Credit
Suisse Trust as trustee in 2018. The beneficiary objects of the said trust include certain family members
of Mr. LIN Wei.

5. These 746,654,000 Shares are held by Ping An Life Insurance Company of China, Ltd., the holding
company of which is Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (“Ping An Group”).
Accordingly, Ping An Group is deemed to be interested in these 746,654,000 Shares under the SFO.
Ping An of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Company Limited acted as the investment manager
of Ping An Life Insurance relating to 545,000,000 Subscription Shares issued by the Company in 2017.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2016 Share Option Scheme,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance (i) in relation
to the Group’s business; or (ii) for provision of services to the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) by a controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) between
the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted during or at the end of the year under review.

SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate amount of purchase and sales
attribution to the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers together accounted
for less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases and sales respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares, had an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest suppliers and
customers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and
contractors.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group

entered into the following transactions as described below with persons who are

regarded as “connected persons” pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Capital Injection

®

Subsequent to the formation of Lingyu Apartment Management on
21 March 2017, Lingyu Apartment Management became a joint
venture of the Company and also a connected person of the Company
since it is an associate of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN
Feng, being executive Directors and the controlling shareholders of
the Company. On 12 September 2018, CIFI Group Co., Ltd.* (JH
oA [ 45 A8 BR 23 ) (“CIFI (PRC)”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase agreement
with the shareholders of Lingyu Apartment Management, namely
Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise, Shanghai Xinjue Enterprise Management
Limited Partnership* (LRI EEHA B A% FREE))
(“Xinjue”), Shanghai Puru Enterprise Management Centre* ([ J§EE
RSB M A L) (“Purn”) and the new shareholder, namely Power
Main International Limited (“Power Main”), pursuant to which the
parties agreed to contribute further capital for a total amount of
RMB300,000,000 into Lingyu Apartment Rental by way of cash as
its registered capital. Among such RMB300,000,000, CIFI (PRC),
Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise, Xinjue, Puru and Power Main agreed to
contribute RMB170,000,000, RMB60,000,000, RMB40,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 respectively. It was expected
that Lingyu Apartment Rental would principally engage in the

provision of apartment rental and related services in the PRC.

Immediately after the aforesaid capital injection, the
registered capital of Lingyu Apartment Rental increased from
RMB100,000,000 to RMB400,000,000, and shareholding among
CIFI (PRC), Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise, Xinjue, Puru and Power
Main became 50%, 25%, 15%, 5% and 5% respectively.

Lingyu Apartment Rental would still be accounted for as an associated
company of the Company and the financial performance of which
will not be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of

the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(4] Capital Injection (Continued)

0

(Continued)

Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise is a company beneficially owned by
Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN
Feng are both executive Directors and controlling Shareholders of
the Company. As such, Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise is an associate
of Mr. LIN Zhong and Mr. LIN Feng. Mr. LIN Feng is a general
partner of Xinjue, which is a limited partnership established in the
PRC. Accordingly, Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise, Xiujue and Lingyu
Apartment Management are connected persons of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the capital
injection by CIFI (PRC) in Lingyu Apartment Management under
the capital increase agreement constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Further details of the
transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 12 September 2018.

(II) Formation of Joint Venture

0

On 8 October 2018, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with Henderson China
Properties Limited (“Henderson China”) and Great Asia Investment
Limited (1§T§§ﬁ FRNT]) (“Great Asia”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Henderson China) and Nantong Zhongnan New
World Centre Development Limited* (5% FF g tH A 00 B
BEHRATD (“Nantong Zhongnan”), for the onshore and offshore
joint venture arrangement to develop a site located at the south
side of Guihua Road and the east side of Wenchang Road, Huguan
Development Zone, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC (P BV AR 29 A M1 T 550 0 [t 357 ) 3 Do A S A e v
)‘C%Eﬁ%) (the “Site”). Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement,
the project company in the PRC would be the sino-foreign equity
joint venture owned as to 51% by Great Asia, 19% by Suzhou
Shengzhi Commercial Consultation Limited* (ff JM 8% B P 15w 70
H R T]) (a company indirectly controlled by the Company) and
30% by Nantong Zhongnan, and Great Asia would in turn be an
offshore joint venture vehicle owned as to 31.3% by the Group and
68.7% by Henderson China. The aggregate capital commitment
payable by the Group for the transactions under the Cooperation
Agreement is approximately RMB1,299 million. The Site has a
total site area of 80,651.4 sq.m. The average land cost attributable
to the Group under the terms of the Cooperation Agreement (being
total consideration divided by total site area) is approximately
RMB16,106 per sq.m.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

an

Formation of Joint Venture (Continued)

(i) (Continued)
The transaction further enables the Group to cooperate with
renowned property developers for development of particular project

to achieve synergy benefits and diversify its financial exposure.

Henderson China indirectly holds 50% interest in Xu An Co.
Limited JBZAHRAT]) (“Xu An®), a subsidiary of the Company,
which does not fall within the ambit of insignificant subsidiary under
Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, Henderson China
is a connected person of the Company at its subsidiary level. The
transaction under the Cooperation Agreement therefore constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Further details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 8 October 2018.

Disclosure under Rule 14A.72 of the Listing Rules

With regard to the related party transactions entered into by the Group during

the year as disclosed under note 50 to the consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions stated in the said note 50 fall within the definition of

connected transactions or continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules:

@

@i1)

(iii)

the transaction of rental income stated in note 50(a) constituted a connected
transaction of the Company, however, since all the relevant percentage
ratios in respect of the transaction were less than 0.1%, the transaction fell
within de-minimis exemption under 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and was
exempted from the annual review, disclosure and shareholders’ approval

requirements;

the transactions of (i) apartment leasing and renovation services income; (ii)
project management services expense; and (iii) prefabricated construction
materials supply and related installation and technical services expense
stated in note 50(a) constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company, details of which have been disclosed below under the paragraph

headed “Continuing Connected Transaction”;
the transaction of disposal of Xubei stated in note 50(d) constituted a

connected transaction of the Company, details of which have been disclosed

in the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2017;
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Coninued)

Disclosure under Rule 14A.72 of the Listing Rules (Continued)

(iv)  the transaction of capital investment in Lingyu Apartment Management
stated in note 50(e) constituted a connected transaction of the Company,
details of which have been disclosed in paragraph (I) (i) above under the

paragraph headed “Connected Transaction — Capital Injection”; and

The Company has complied with applicable disclosure requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the aforesaid transactions.

Other related party transactions taken place in 2018 which were disclosed in
note 50 to the consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group
continued to transact the following continuing connected transactions which fell

within the ambit of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(i) A property management services master agreement was entered into
between CIFI (PRC) (for itself and on behalf of the other members of the
Group) and Yongsheng Property Service on 30 December 2016 and as
amended and supplemented on 22 November 2018 in relation to provision
of property management services by Yongsheng Property Service and its
subsidiaries (the “Yongsheng Group”) to the Group for a term of 3 years
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD. | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

®

(Continued)

Since Yongsheng Property Service is a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the property management services
master agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 30 December 2016, the annual
aggregate maximum amounts of service fee payable by the Group to
the Yongsheng Group under the property management services master
agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December 2019 were set
for RMB300 million, RMB400 million and RMB450 million, respectively.
As amended and supplemented by the supplemental agreement to the
property management services master agreement, the annual caps for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was adjusted to RMB42 million and for the
year ending 31 December 2019 would be adjusted to RMB200 million.

The annual caps were determined with reference to, among others, the

following factors:

(i)  the historical amounts of the property management services
provided by the Yongsheng Group to the Group under the property
management services agreements entered into between CIFI (PRC)
and Yongsheng Property Service (directly or through their respective

subsidiaries);

(i)  the expected scale of sale, area and number of the property projects of

the Group; and

(iii)  the property management services and standard being proposed by

the estate agents.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iD)

On 18 January 2017, CIFI (PRC) (for itself and on behalf of the other
members of the Group) and EPC Construction Services entered into a
prefabricated construction materials supply master agreement, pursuant
to which EPC Construction Services agreed to supply prefabricated
construction materials and provide related installation and technical
services to the Group for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019 (both days inclusive).

EPC Construction Services is being held by CIFI (PRC) as to 30% and
the associates of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng as to
70%. Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng are all executive
Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company. As such, EPC
Construction Services is an associate of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei
and Mr. LIN Feng and hence, a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the prefabricated construction materials supply master
agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 19 January 2017, the annual
aggregate maximum amounts of materials and services being supplied and
provided by EPC Construction Services payable by the Group under the
prefabricated construction materiels supply master agreement for the three
financial years ending 31 December 2019 were set for RMB200 million,
RMB400 million and RMB500 million, respectively.

The annual caps were determined with reference to the prevailing market
prices for the comparable goods and services and the expected scale of

development projects undertaken by the Group in 2017, 2018 and 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)  As disclosed in the paragraph (i) under the section headed “Connected

Transaction — (I) Capital Injection” of this Directors’ Report, CIFI (PRC),
Shanghai Xuhui Enterprise, Xinjue and Puru entered into a capital
investment agreement in relation to the capital contribution into Lingyu
Apartment Management by CIFI (PRC) on 21 March 2017. Subsequent to
the said capital contribution, Lingyu Apartment Management became an
associate of Mr. LIN Zhong, Mr. LIN Wei and Mr. LIN Feng, who are all
executive Directors and controlling Shareholders of the Company. As such,
Lingyu Apartment Management is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. On 30 June 2017, a master agreement was
entered into between the Company and Lingyu Apartment Management
in relation to leasing of the relevant properties and provision of renovation
contracting services by the Group to Lingyu Apartment Management and
its subsidiaries (the “Lingyu Apartment Rental Group”) for a term effective
from 30 June 2017 to 1 December 2019 (both days inclusive) renewable

upon mutual consent and subject to applicable laws and regulations.

Since Lingyu Apartment Management is a connected person of the
Company, the transactions contemplated under the said master agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 30 June 2017, the annual
aggregate maximum amounts of service fee payable by the Group to the
Lingyu Apartment Rental Group under the master agreement for the three
financial years ending 31 December 2019 were set for RMBG600 million,
RMB700 million and RMB800 million, respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continnedy
(ii1)  (Continued)
The annual caps were determined with reference to, among others, the
following factors:

(i)  the prevailing market prices for (a) the rental of comparable
properties; and (b) the provision of renovation contracting services of
comparable properties;

(ii)  the expected scale of area and number of the relevant properties
developed and leased by the Group to the Lingyu Apartment
Rental Group under the respective specific agreement(s) , which is
to be entered into between members of the Group and members of
the Lingyu Apartment Rental Group regarding the leasing of the
relevant properties and the incidental provision of the renovation
contracting services by the Group to the Lingyu Apartment Rental
Group in accordance with the terms of the said master agreement,
which are expected to be leased by the Group to the Lingyu
Apartment Rental Group; and

(iii) the expected amount of renovation contracting services to be
provided by the Group to the Lingyu Apartment Rental Group.

CONFIRMATION FROM THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDITOR

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that
the above continuing connected transactions have been entered into in (i) the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) according to the agreement governing the transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholder of the
Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(ii)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of

the Group for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have exceed the respective annual cap.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules

during the year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the Group’s subsidiaries in China while the Group also has

a corporate and administrative office in Hong Kong.

Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, the PRC and Hong Kong that have a

significant impact on the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is of opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and complied

with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained

in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year under review.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted. Such provisions were in force during the course of
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and remained in force as at the date
of this annual report. In addition, liability insurance for directors and officers is
maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain legal actions

against the directors and senior management of the Company.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Details of donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the paragraphs headed “Community Investment” in the

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” and
“Share Award Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered

into during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into during the year

or subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire at the 2019 AGM. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2019
AGM.

By order of the Board

LIN Zhong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 14 March 2019

Note:  The English names marked with “*” of the PRC entities are provided for identification purpose only.

The Chinese names are the official names of the PRC entities.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CIFI HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO. LTD.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CIFI Holdings (Group)

Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 189 to 471, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the management’s judgements associated
with determining the fair value.

The investment properties of the Group represented shopping
malls, residential and office units located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and carried at RMB16,147
million as at 31 December 2018, which represented 6.7% of
the Group’s total assets. Change in fair value of investment
properties of RMB106 million was recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income for the year then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent qualified

professional valuers which are not connected with the Group (the

“Valuers”). Details of the valuation techniques and significant

unobservable inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note

14 to the consolidated financial statements. The valuations of

the completed investment properties and investment properties

under construction are dependent on certain significant
unobservable inputs which involve the management’s
judgements, including term yield, reversionary yield, market
unit rental, gross development value and developer’s profit.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

Evaluating the Valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

Obtaining an understanding from the management

and the Valuers about the valuation techniques and
challenging the valuation techniques and reasonableness
of the significant unobservable inputs used by the Valuers
by comparing to specific information of the Group and the
market;

Assessing the integrity of information provided by the
management to the Valuers by comparing details of rentals
on a sample basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements; and

Reperforming sensitivity analysis on the significant

unobservable inputs to evaluate the fluctuations of their
impacts on the fair values of the investment properties.
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We identified the valuation of the Group’s and the joint
ventures’ properties under development for sale (the “PUD”)
and properties held for sale (the “PFS”) (collectively referred to
as the “Properties”) as a key audit matter due to the significant
judgements involved in the net realisable value (“NRV”) and
the estimation of future costs to completion of the PUD.

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial

position, the Group had PUD of RMB84,137 million and PFS
of RMB10,238 million as at 31 December 2018, of which
substantially are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong. In
addition, as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the joint ventures had PUD of RMB92,323 million
and PFS of RMB3,722 million as at 31 December 2018, all of
which are situated in the PRC and Hong Kong.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group determined the NRV of the
Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of

the Properties, which takes into account a number of factors
including recent prices achieved for similar property types in
the same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing real
estate market conditions in the PRC and Hong Kong and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based in prevailing
market conditions.

If the NRV of the Properties are found to be lower than their
carrying amounts, the carrying amounts of the Properties are
reduced to their NRV.

Based on the management’s analysis of the NRV of the
Properties, no write-downs were considered to be necessary.
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Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of the PUD and PFS included:

Assessing the reasonableness of the NRV of the Properties
that determined by the management on a sample basis, by
comparing the NRV to the latest market prices achieved
in the same projects or by comparable properties, in
accordance with our understanding of the Group’s and
joint ventures’ business and the real estate industry in the
PRC and Hong Kong; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the NRV
and future cost to completion of the Properties by reference
to the actual development cost of other similar completed
projects of the Group.

183



B 3 B i
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

I S i 29

Key audit matter

TS R v o B B B i g Y 0

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

SR CHEBA

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

H A IO R B 3 1R i S LA S T i R T
Ja B LA 7 S 4 ) S A A e B R
PRI 45 LR A 7 B B 0

AP BB Y AR B % TR B HI M T &
J5 (B B R A 2E ) B R A ISR M a3 T 2
H %P S #2200 8 B RERD. - alingq & B
R s T ikEE - BE =R — /E+H=1—H IR
B BRI ERR A Y A N H39,014,000,0007C

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as

a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and there is judgement involved in determining the
appropriate point at which to recognise revenue from sales of

properties.

Revenue from sales of properties in the PRC is recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer,
i.e. at the point of delivering of the properties to buyers and

when the criteria as disclosed in note 3 “Revenue from contracts
with customers” to the consolidated financial statements are

satisfied. The Group recognised revenue of RMB39,014 million
from sales of properties for the year ended 31 December 2018 as

disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales of

properties included:

J Obtaining an understanding of and testing the
management’s control over the process of properties

delivery to buyers; and

o Assessing the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining the delivery
notices issued by the Group to the buyers to assess whether

the control of the properties are transferred to the buyers.
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We identified the accuracy of land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations in the PRC as a key audit matter since significant
judgement is required in estimating the amount of LAT to be
paid by the Group within each of the property development

projects.

LAT arises in the PRC when properties are delivered to the
buyers and revenue is recognised. As disclosed in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, LAT amounted to RMB3,676
million is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2018. As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the LAT calculations are highly dependent
on the appropriateness of the rates used, which are determined
by the amount of the land appreciation. The amount of the land

appreciation is determined by subtracting the related deductible
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Our procedures in relation to the accuracy of LAT calculations
included:

o Assessing the reasonableness of the input used in the
LAT calculation by comparing the related deductible
expenditure with the latest budgeted cost incurred for the

projects;

o Assessing the judgements adopted by the management
in estimating the land appreciation amount and the LAT
charge rate by comparing their judgements made in

previous periods to actual results; and

. Involving our tax experts to assess the accuracy of the land
appreciation amount of property development projects

on a sample basis, and to assess the reasonableness of the

expenditures, including the cost of land and estimated LAT charge rate used for each of the property development

construction costs, from the estimates of sales revenue. projects by comparing it to the LAT charge rate announced

by the State Administration of Taxation in the PRC.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated finan